

10-17-2019 1568-01 19-MED-02-0110 38404



COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

MEDINA COUNTY JOINT VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION

and

MEDINA COUNTY CAREER CENTER EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I <u>RECOGNITION PROCEDURE</u>

1.01 RECOGNITION AND SCOPE OF BARGAINING UNIT	1
1.02 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	3
1.029 LABOR/MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	4
1.03 NO REPRISALS	

II <u>NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE</u>

2.01	INITIATING MEETINGS	6
2.02	REPRESENTATION	6
2.03	MEETINGS	6
	GOOD FAITH BARGAINING	
2.05	CAUCUS	6
2.06	ADJOURNMENT	7
2.07	CONSULTANTS	7
2.08	EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION	7
2.09	REPORTING	7
2.10	ALTERNATE PROCEDURE	7
2.11	AGREEMENT	7
	DISAGREEMENT	
	EXCLUSIVITY OF PROCEDURE	

III <u>GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES</u>

3.01 DEFINITION	IS	
3.02 PROCEDURE	Ξ	
	EOUS	

IV INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTS

4.01	LENGTH OF LIMITED CONTRACT	12
4.02	CONTINUING CONTRACTS	13
	TERMINATION OF AN EXISTING CONTRACT	
4.04	NON-RENEWAL OF A LIMITED CONTRACT	13

V <u>LEAVES</u>

5.01 SICK LEAVE	
5.02 MEDICAL LEAVE (UNPAID)	
5.03 PARENTAL LEAVE	
5.04 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT	
5.05 PROFESSIONAL LEAVE	
5.06 PERSONAL LEAVE	
5.07 ASSAULT LEAVE	
5.08 ASSOCIATION LEAVE	

5.09 SABBATICAL LEAVE	
5.10 COURT APPEARANCE/ARBITRATION LEAVE	
5.11 JURY DUTY LEAVE	
5.12 UNPAID LEAVE	
5.13 MILITARY LEAVE	
5.14 ATTENDANCE INCENTIVE	

VI <u>REDUCTION IN STAFF</u>

6.01	PROCESS OF REDUCTION	28
6.02	ATTRITION	28
6.03	REDUCTION BY OTHER THAN ATTRITION	28
6.04	SENIORITY	29
6.05	RECALL	30
	PLACEMENT ASSISTANCE/RETRAINING	
6.07	PART-TIME EMPLOYEES FOLLOWING REDUCTION IN	
	STAFF	32

VII <u>COMPENSATION AND REIMBURSEMENT</u>

7.01 SALARY SCHEDULE	
7.02 PLACEMENT ON THE SALARY SCHEDULE	
7.03 EXTENDED TIME	
7.04 REGULAR INSTRUCTOR AS SUBSTITUTE	
SUPPLEMENTARY ASSIGNMENT	
7.05 SEVERANCE PAY	
7.06 BUSINESS EXPENSES	
7.07 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT	
7.08 CURRICULUM REVIEW	
7.09 ADULT EDUCATION CLASSES	

VIII WORK YEAR AND WORK DAY

8.01	WORK YEAR	. 46
8.02	WORK DAY	. 48
8.03	MEETINGS CALLED BY ADMINISTRATORS	. 48
8.04	COMBINED/DUAL PROGRAMS	. 49
8.05	I.E.P. CONFERENCES	. 49
8.06	NEW PROGRAM DELIVERY ASSIGNMENTS	. 49

IX <u>INSURANCE</u>

9.01	MEDICAL INSURANCE PLAN	51
9.02	TERM LIFE INSURANCE	53
9.03	PRESCRIPTION DRUG.	54
9.04	DENTAL INSURANCE	54
9.05	VISION INSURANCE	55
9.06	GENERAL PROVISIONS	56
9.07	PAYMENT FOR OPTING OUT OF INSURANCE	56

	9.08 125 BENEFIT PLAN	57
Х	EVALUATION PROCEDURE	
	A. OTES	59
	B. STAFF EVALUATION COMMITTEE	
	10.01 PROCEDURE (NON-OTES TEACHERS)	60
	10.02 FAIR TREATMENT	60
XI	INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS	
	11.01 RIGHT TO REPRESENTATION	
	11.02 ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILE	
	11.03 DISCIPLINE.	
	11.04 COMPLAINTS	
	11.05 USE OF ELECTRONIC DEVICES	
	11.06 DEDUCTIONS	
XII	ASSIGNMENTS, TRANSFERS AND VACANCIES	
	12 01 ASSIGNMENT	65
	12.01 ASSIGNMENT 12.02 INVOLUNTARY TRANSFER	
	12.03 VOLUNTARY TRANSFER	
	12.03 VOLONTART TRANSFER	
XIII	LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE	
	13.01 COMMITTEE MEMBERS	
	13.02 TERM OF OFFICE.	
	13.03 ESTABLISHMENT OF MEETINGS	
	13.04 TRAINING 13.05 EMPLOYEE PROTECTION	
	13.05 EMPLOYEE PROTECTION	
	13.06 APPEALS PROCEDURE	
XIV	RESIDENT EDUCATOR PROGRAM	
	14.01 DEFINITIONS	71
	14.02 MENTORS/REPC	72
	14.03 COMPENSATION	
	14.04 GENERAL	73
	14.05 PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES	74
XV	EMPLOYMENT OF STRS RETIREES	
	15.01 TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT	
	15.02 PROCEDURE	
		-

XVI <u>MASTER TEACHER</u>

16.01 ESTABLISHMENT OF COMMITTEE	77
16.02 OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES	77
16.03 COMPENSATION	77
16.04 SUPPORT SERVICES	
16.05 APPEALS PROCEDURE	
16.06 EMPLOYEE PROTECTION	78
TEACHERS ASSISTING TEACHERS	
17.01 INTRODUCTION	
17.03 PROCEDURE	
EFFECTS AND DURATION OF CONTRACT	
18.01 NON-DISCRIMINATION	
18.02 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	
18.03 FILING AND MAINTENANCE OF CERTIFICATES/	
LICENSES	
18.04 CONFLICT OF LAW	81
18.05 DEFINITION OF TERMS	
18.06 DURATION	81
	 16.02 OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A	SALARY SCHEDULE 2019-2020
APPENDIX A-1	SALARY SCHEDULE 2020-2021
APPENDIX A-2	SALARY SCHEDULE 2021-2022
APPENDIX B	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE FORM
APPENDIX B-1	GRIEVANCE DECISION FORM
APPENDIX C	PROFESSIONAL VISITATION FORM
APPENDIX D	PERSONAL LEAVE FORM
APPENDIX E	MILEAGE REPORT
APPENDIX F-1A	STANDARDS-BASED TEACHER EVALUATION BOARD POLICY (OTES)
APPENDIX F-1B	OTES RUBRIC
APPENDIX F-1C	OTES PRE/POST QUESTIONS
APPENDIX F-2A	STANDARDS-BASED SCHOOL COUNSELOR EVALUATION BOARD POLICY (OSCES)
APPENDIX F-2B	OSCES RUBRIC
APPENDIX F-2C	OSCES PRE/POST QUESTIONS
APPENDIX FA	PROFESSIONAL GROWTH PLAN
APPENDIX FB	IMPROVEMENT PLAN
APPENDIX G	ASSAULT LEAVE
APPENDIX H-1	REPORT OF ADMINISTRATIVE VISIT (Non-OTES/OSCES)
APPENDIX H-2	TEACHER EVALUATION (Non-OTES/OSCES)
APPENDIX I	REQUEST FOR ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY
APPENDIX J	REQUEST FOR EXTENDED DAYS/ SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES

APPENDIX K (L, 1-2)	MEDICAL MUTUAL SHC ALTERNATE IDEAL PLAN
APPENDIX L	REQUEST FOR PAYMENT OF COMPETITION/EVENT/OVERNIGHT COMPENSATION

ARTICLE I

RECOGNITION PROCEDURE

1.01 RECOGNITION AND SCOPE OF BARGAINING UNIT

- 1.011 The Board of Education of the Medina County Joint Vocational School District (hereinafter Board) recognizes the Medina County Vocational Center Education Association (hereinafter Association) as the exclusive bargaining representative for all full-time and part-time regularly employed high school classroom teachers, Instructional Coach and Technology Integration Specialist, school nurse, school counselors, occupational evaluators, long-term substitutes, and Career Development instructor.
- 1.012 Except as otherwise specified in Article VIII, Section 8.08 of this Agreement, a "part-time" employee is an employee whose regularly assigned work schedule satisfies at least one (1) of the following criteria:
 - 1. If employed in an instructional capacity, the work schedule must include at least four (4) class periods, three (3) of which must be instructional, per day for the work year described in Article VIII, Section 8.01 of this Agreement;
 - 2. If employed in a non-instructional capacity, the work schedule must include at least three and one-half (3-1/2) hours per day for the work year described in Article VIII, Section 8.01 of this Agreement; or
 - 3. Whether employed in an instructional or non-instructional capacity, the work schedule must include at least ninety-two (92) full work days, as described in Article VIII, Section 8.02 of this Agreement, over the course of the school year.

Such part-time employees shall be covered only by the following provisions of this Agreement:

Article II Article III Article V, Section 5.01 (prorated) Article V, Section 5.06 (prorated) Article V, Section 5.07 Article V, Sections 5.08 and 5.10 Article VI (as specified) Article VII, Section 7.01 (prorated) Article VII, Section 7.07, subsection 7.072 Article VII, Section 7.06 Article IX (with the Board's contributions prorated, and the further understanding that Section 9.07 does not apply) Article XI, Sections 11.02 and 11.06 Article XV.

1.013 Long-Term Substitutes

- 1. Long-term substitutes are defined as substitute teachers placed in the same assignment for more than sixty (60) days. By the 61st day of employment, all long-term substitutes shall receive a written contract of employment. Long-term substitutes may be utilized to fill positions that are open due to approved leaves of absence and/or to fill vacancies which arise after August 15th. A long-term substitute other than for an approved leave of absence shall not be utilized to fill a vacancy for more than one school year.
- 2. The duration of employment of long-term substitutes shall be for the period specified in their contract of employment, and shall automatically expire at the end of that term without action by the Board or further notice to the teacher. However, long-term substitutes hired on or before November 1st will be evaluated in accordance with Board Policy or Article X (depending on whether they are covered under OTES). The provision of evaluations shall not create an expectancy of continued employment under either Article X – Evaluation Procedure, or Sections 3319.11, 3319.111, 3319.112, or 3319.113 of the Ohio Revised Code, except as may be required by law.
- 3. Neither the provisions of Article VI Reduction in Staff, nor the provisions of Section 3319.17, Ohio Revised Code shall apply to long-term substitutes, whose contracts may be suspended at any time without recourse as the needs of the Board so dictate.
- 4. Long-term substitutes will be informed of their status upon employment.
- 5. Beginning with the 61st day of employment, long-term substitutes shall be placed on the BA-0 step of the salary schedule.
- 6. If the employment of a long-term substitute extends beyond one year due to an approved leave of absence of a bargaining unit member, the long-term substitute shall be advanced to the next step of the pay scale, assuming that they worked a

minimum of one hundred twenty (120) days of at least three and one-half (3 1/2) hours per day in the prior year.

7. To the extent that the provisions of this Article conflict with the Ohio Revised Code, they shall supersede and replace same. Except as otherwise specified above, nothing herein shall be deemed to affect the rights and benefits of long-term substitutes available under this Agreement and law.

1.02 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

1.021 <u>Right to Organize</u>

A bargaining unit member shall have the right to join or not to join any organization for his/her professional and/or economic improvement. Membership shall not be a condition of employment or continued employment.

The Association will be provided with the name, job title, work location, and work e-mail address of all newly employed bargaining unit members as soon as such information is available.

The Association will be provided up to 1 hour and to meet with new bargaining members, and may also provide lunch, on one of the work days prior to the start of the student school year.

1.022 <u>Right to Use Mailboxes</u>

Use of school mailboxes without cost to the Association.

1.023 <u>Right to Make Announcements</u>

Association announcements may be made at regularly scheduled staff meetings at the conclusion of the administrative agenda or on the public address system after school is dismissed.

1.024 <u>Right to Use Designated Bulletin Boards</u>

The bulletin board in the faculty workroom shall be used, but not exclusively, for the purpose of posting Association information.

1.025 <u>Right to Use Facilities, in Accordance with Board Adopted</u> <u>Procedures</u>

> Word processing and printing equipment may be used if materials and supplies are provided by the Association and use does not conflict with school operations. Copies may be made on Boardowned copy equipment at the rate of five cents (\$.05) per copy.

1.026 <u>Right to Have Association Dues Deducted</u>¹

Upon the written authorization of a bargaining unit member, dues shall be deducted in consecutive pays beginning with the first pay in November and until all dues for that school year have been fully paid, provided that:

- A. The Association notifies the Board Treasurer, by October 20 of any year, of the amount of such deductions.
- B. Authorization is filed with the Board Treasurer on appropriate forms between September 1 and October 20 by each bargaining unit member.
- C. It is understood that authorization is irrevocable and continuing except that notification of a desire to withdraw from payroll deduction will be honored by the Board Treasurer if submitted in writing by the bargaining unit member between August 1 and August 31.
- 1.027 <u>Right to Have the Agreement</u>

The Agreement shall be produced and posted on the MCCC portal by the Board.

1.028 Agenda and Minutes and Board Meetings

The Association President shall designate up to two (2) bargaining unit members who will be provided electronic access to copies of all minutes of official Board meetings and all other documents that Board members receive and copies of all materials distributed to Board members at official Board meetings.

- 1.029 <u>Labor-Management Committee</u>
 - A. The Board and Association agree to establish a Labor-Management Committee to consist of no more than three (3) members appointed by the Association President and no more than three (3) members appointed by the Superintendent.
 - B. The Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service shall be requested to provide orientation and training for members of the Committee.

¹ See the Consensus Statement of the parties, dated February 19, 2019, addressing fair share fees following the U.S. Supreme Court decision in *Janus*.

- C. The Committee does not replace the grievance process.
- D. Unless otherwise mutually agreed, one (1) meeting will be held per month with the exception of July. The agenda for meetings will be established in advance by the Association President (or designee) and the Superintendent (or designee).
- E. The Labor-Management Committee will establish an ad-hoc programming/enrollment/recruitment committee to review programming, program guidelines, and strategies for the recruitment of students for new and existing course offerings. The committee will report to Labor-Management no later than November and will meet no less than twice prior to providing that report. This provision is not meant to preclude post-November Committee review as circumstance arises.
- F. In no event shall a Committee meeting be cancelled without mutual agreement. In the event that no items have been submitted by the agenda item deadline, then minutes from past meetings will be evaluated for purposes of revisions and evaluation of effectiveness.

1.03 NO REPRISALS

There will be no reprisals against bargaining unit members by reason of his/her membership in the Association and/or by virtue of participation in any of its activities.

ARTICLE II

NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE

2.01 INITIATING MEETINGS

A written request for negotiations shall be made by either party, not more than ninety (90) days and not less than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration date of this Agreement. A meeting date shall be set no later than fifteen (15) days after receipt of the request unless both parties agree to a later date. The request shall be presented to the Superintendent or Association President according to whom is the requesting party. All proposals from both parties shall be presented in writing at the opening session. A listing of items is not acceptable for purposes of this Section. No new items may be added after the original presentations, without mutual consent of the parties.

2.02 REPRESENTATION

The Board and the Association shall each be represented at all negotiating meetings by a team of negotiators, not to exceed five (5) in number.

2.03 MEETINGS

The negotiating teams shall meet at reasonable times in a sincere effort to reach mutual understanding and agreement on issues submitted for negotiations. While meetings will normally take place outside regular school hours, should it be mutually agreed that it is desirable to hold a meeting during school hours, the Board shall provide substitutes for committee members. Committee members shall be considered in full-time service and relieved of all regular duties, while attending negotiations during school hours.

2.04 GOOD FAITH BARGAINING

Both parties are obligated to deal openly and fairly with each other on all matters and to conduct such negotiations in good faith. Good faith bargaining shall mean that both parties shall consider all issues of bargaining submitted in the bargaining process, and shall refrain from unexplained changes of positions and from raising new and additional issues calculated to avoid the reaching of an agreement. This does not compel either party to agree to a proposal, nor require the making of a concession. All proposals and counterproposals shall be submitted in writing.

2.05 CAUCUS

Upon request of either party, the negotiating meeting shall be recessed to permit the requesting party to caucus.

2.06 ADJOURNMENT

There shall be no time limit for any session, however, either party shall be granted adjournment at any time. A subsequent meeting date shall be established prior to the conclusion of each session if there is further business to conduct. The Board will make facilities of the Career Center available for negotiation meetings at no cost. However, either party may request that negotiations be conducted at a mutually acceptable neutral meeting site. The cost for such facility will be borne by the party making the request.

2.07 CONSULTANTS

Professional and Lay Consultants (not to be considered observers) may be called by either party for consultation on matters under discussion at the expense of the requesting party.

2.08 EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION

Either party shall furnish, upon request of the other, within a time to be decided upon by mutual agreement, all available information pertinent to the issue under consideration. Information considered private by Federal or State statute shall not be considered available information.

2.09 REPORTING

Negotiating teams may keep constituents informed of progress during negotiations. In order for final agreement reached at negotiations sessions to become binding upon the two (2) parties it shall be reduced to writing, signed by the chairpersons of the negotiating committees, ratified by the Association, and approved by the Board. Ratification and approval of the agreement shall be recorded in the official minutes of the Board.

2.10 ALTERNATE PROCEDURE

Both parties may agree to an alternate procedure for conducting negotiations. In all cases, however, the mediation provisions of Sections 2.12 and 2.13 below shall continue to apply unless expressly and specifically waived by written mutual agreement.

2.11 AGREEMENT

While no final agreement shall be executed without ratification by the Association and the Board, the parties mutually pledge that their negotiation representative shall be clothed with the necessary power to make proposals, consider proposals, and make concessions in the course of negotiations.

2.12 DISAGREEMENT

If agreement is not reached within thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of this agreement as provided for in Section 2.01 above, either party may request that the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service provide a mediator to assist the parties.

2.13 EXCLUSIVITY OF PROCEDURE

The negotiations procedure set forth in this Article supersedes and takes precedence over any inconsistent time limits or procedure set forth in ORC Section 4117.14. Mediation, as set forth in Section 2.11 above, constitutes the parties mutually agreed upon, exclusive dispute settlement procedure and shall operate in lieu of any and all of the settlement procedures set forth in ORC Section 4117.14. In the event mediation does not result in an agreement by the expiration date of this Agreement (or such subsequent date as the parties may mutually agree upon), ORC Section 4117.14(D)(2) will apply.

ARTICLE III

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

3.01 **DEFINITIONS**

- 3.011 <u>Grievance</u> is an alleged violation of, misinterpretation of, or misapplication of the terms of this Agreement.
- 3.012 <u>Grievant</u> shall be an individual bargaining unit member or the Association acting on its own behalf or on behalf of the bargaining unit member(s).
- 3.013 <u>Days</u> shall mean calendar days with the further understanding that, except for the thirty (30) day deadline appearing in subsection 3.022 below, days will be suspended during any federally recognized holiday, the Christmas break, the spring break, and the summer recess, unless the parties agree otherwise.
- 3.014 <u>Rights of Grievant</u> The lodging and resolving of grievances shall be the right of each bargaining unit member and the Association acting on its own behalf or on the behalf of bargaining unit members. However, the resolution of any grievance shall not be inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement.
- 3.015 Unless otherwise mutually agreed, the grievant and Association Grievance Representative will receive a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours written notice prior to a grievance meeting held under this Article. For purposes of this Article, email notification may be utilized during the school year, but certified mail is required during winter, spring, and summer breaks.

3.02 PROCEDURE

3.021 <u>Informal Step</u>

If a bargaining unit member believes there is a basis for a grievance, the member is encouraged to first discuss the matter with his/her immediate supervisor or other involved administrator in an effort to resolve the problem informally.

3.022 <u>Step I</u>

A bargaining unit member shall file a written grievance (Appendix B), clearly setting forth all reasons for the grievance, with his/her immediate supervisor within thirty (30) days following the act or condition which is the basis for the grievance. Failure to file a written grievance within this time will result in the grievance being

waived. The immediate supervisor shall, within fourteen (14) days following the filing of the written grievance, deliver to the grievant and the Association Grievance Representative a completed grievance decision form (Appendix B-1) on which he/she shall have clearly set forth the reasons for his/her decision. If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step I, he/she may, within fourteen (14) days of receiving the Step I disposition, proceed to Step II.

3.023 <u>Step II</u>

If the action taken by the immediate supervisor does not resolve the grievance to the satisfaction of the grievant, he/she may appeal, in writing (Appendix B), to the Superintendent. A hearing shall be conducted by the Superintendent within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the grievance. The Superintendent shall, within fourteen (14) days following the hearing, deliver to the grievant and the Association Grievance Representative a completed Grievance Decision Form (Appendix B-1) on which he/she shall have clearly set forth the reason(s) for his/her decision.

- 3.024 <u>Step III</u>
 - A. If the Grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step II, he/she may request the Association to demand a hearing before an arbitrator; however, only the Association will have the right to process a grievance to arbitration.
 - B. The Association shall file such demand with the Superintendent and the American Arbitration Association within twenty-one (21) days after receipt of the written disposition at Step II.
 - C. Selection of the arbitrator and the conduct of any arbitration hearing shall be governed by the American Arbitration Association's Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules The American Arbitration Association's administrative fee shall be shared equally by the Board and Association.
 - D. The cost of the arbitrator's fees and expenses, hearing room, if any, court reporter, and transcript shall be shared equally by the Board and the Association.
 - E. The decision of the arbitrator shall be rendered as promptly as possible and shall be binding on all of the parties. The arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter or modify any terms of the Agreement.

3.03 MISCELLANEOUS

3.031 Failure of Administrator/Grievant to Respond

- A. Should the appropriate administrator fail to act within the prescribed time limitations, the grievant may proceed to the next level of the procedure.
- B. Should the grievant/Association fail to act within the prescribed time limitations, the grievance will be considered waived and further action barred.

3.032 Grievant's Right to Representation

The grievant shall have the right to have a representative present at all conferences/hearings which are part of this procedure.

3.033 Administrator's Right to Representation

The appropriate administrator may be accompanied by a representative at all levels of the procedure.

3.034 Association's Right to Representation

The Association shall have the right to have a representative present at all conference/hearings. The Association Representative shall be allowed to speak for the Association regarding the grievance and any proposed resolution of the grievance.

3.035 <u>Confidentiality of Grievance Files</u>

All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance will be filed in a separate grievance file and will not be kept in the personnel file or included in any other record pertaining to the individual grievant.

- 3.036 Timelines may be extended upon mutual agreement of all parties.
- 3.037 A grievant shall not be subjected to any reprisal by reason of the grievant's filing of a grievance or participation in this grievance procedure. The filing of a grievance that alleges a violation of this provision shall automatically waive and bar any right to assert such a claim under the unfair labor practice provisions of ORC Chapter 4117. Similarly, the filing of an unfair labor practice charge under Chapter 4117 asserting such a reprisal shall automatically waive and bar any right to assert such a claim under the unfair labor practice.

ARTICLE IV

INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTS

4.01 LENGTH OF LIMITED CONTRACT

4.011 <u>Initial Limited Contract</u>

A bargaining unit member new to the District shall be granted a one (1) year limited teaching contract.

4.012 <u>Second Limited Contract</u>

A bargaining unit member re-employed for a second or third year shall receive a one (1) year limited teaching contract.

4.013 <u>Fourth Limited Contract</u>

A limited contract renewed for a fourth time and beyond will be either for one (1) or two (2) year(s) in duration as recommended by the Superintendent.

4.014 <u>Achieving Eligibility for Tenure</u>

- A. A bargaining unit member with four (4) or more successful consecutive teaching years in the District who meets the eligibility criteria for continuing contract status under law during the term of a limited contract shall, if, and only if, recommended by the Superintendent and approved by the Board, be granted a continuing contract within thirty (30) calendar days after such Board approval irrespective of the amount of time remaining on the limited contract. However, a bargaining unit member who has attained continuing contract status elsewhere will be eligible for tenure at the end of his/her second year with the District in accordance with state law.
- B. A bargaining unit member presently employed on the last year of a limited contract who files evidence after March 15 of the contract year showing eligibility for continuing contract status may be issued a one (1) year regular limited contract for the succeeding school year to permit the Board adequate time to evaluate the employee. This one-year contract shall not be construed as an extended limited or probationary contract under ORC Section 3319.11. To the extent that this procedure varies with that set forth in ORC Section 3319.11, this language supersedes and replaces same.

4.02 CONTINUING CONTRACTS

A continuing contract shall be issued to an eligible bargaining unit member, pursuant to ORC Sections 3319.08 and 3319.11.

4.03 TERMINATION OF AN EXISTING CONTRACT

Termination of a contract of a bargaining unit member shall be in accordance with ORC Section 3319.16 and related statutory provisions. The release of an employee pursuant to ORC Section 3319.39 shall be governed by the provisions of that statute.

4.04 NON-RENEWAL OF A LIMITED CONTRACT

4.041 <u>Notice of Intent to Recommend Non-Renewal</u>

The Superintendent shall notify a bargaining unit member by personal service or certified mail by June 1 of any given year if it is the Superintendent's intention to recommend the non-renewal of the individual's limited contract.

4.042 <u>Right to Reason(s) for Recommendation of Non-Renewal</u>

A bargaining unit member who is notified of the Superintendent's intention not to recommend renewal of his/her limited contract may within ten (10) days of receipt of such notice request a meeting with the Superintendent to discuss the reason(s) for the intended recommendation. If requested, such reason(s) shall be in writing. At such meeting, the bargaining unit member may be accompanied by an Association representative.

4.043 <u>Right Following Board Action to Non-Renew</u>

A bargaining unit member whose limited contract has been nonrenewed by the Board after the member was recommended for reemployment by the Superintendent may request a meeting with the Board, in executive session, to discuss the reason(s) for such non-renewal. If requested, such reason(s) will be in writing. The request must be made by the bargaining unit member within ten (10) days of receipt of notice of the Board's action. The meeting will take place no later than the close of the next scheduled regular meeting of the Board following receipt of the request. The bargaining unit member may be accompanied by a representative of the Association of such meeting.

4.044 <u>Effects of Procedures</u>

These provisions of Section 4.04, to the extent they conflict, shall prevail over ORC Sections 3319.11 and 3319.111 as permitted under law.

ARTICLE V

LEAVES

5.01 SICK LEAVE

5.011 <u>Accumulation of Sick Leave</u>

- A. Sick leave shall accumulate, in accordance with the provisions of ORC Section 3319.141 at the rate of one and one-fourth (1-1/4) days per month for a total of fifteen (15) days per year.
- B. A bargaining unit member shall be allowed to accumulate three hundred sixty-five (365) sick leave days; however, severance pay shall be capped at ninety (90) days in accordance with Article 7.053.
- C. Sick leave accumulation shall be reported on each pay stub.

5.012 <u>Advance of Sick Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member shall be advanced five (5) days of sick leave each year, as provided for in ORC Sections 3319.08, 3319.141 and/or related statutory provisions, if accumulated leave is exhausted. A bargaining unit member shall be granted added advancement only after indebtedness of the previous advancement has been repaid. Any advance shall be deducted from future accumulations and/or deducted from the employee's final check if the employee is no longer employed with the Board and has not accumulated enough for repayment of said advancement(s). Nothing herein shall be considered to create an expectation that unpaid leave will be granted to any bargaining unit member who has exhausted all sick leave and advancements nor is the Board in any way limited from docking any such employee's pay and/or in taking appropriate disciplinary action for any unauthorized absence without approved leave.

5.013 <u>Use of Sick Leave</u>

Sick leave may be used by a bargaining unit member for the following reasons:

- A. For absence due to personal illness, injury, pregnancy, exposure to contagious disease which could be communicated to others; and/or
- B. For absence due to illness or injury in the immediate family.

C. For absence due to bereavement resulting from a death in the employee's immediate family.

5.014 Immediate Family Defined

For the purpose of this Section, immediate family shall be defined as: spouse, father, mother, brother, sister, child, grandparents, grandchildren, legal parents, foster parents, foster children, in-laws or anyone who clearly stands in the same relationship with the bargaining unit member as any of those specified.

5.015 <u>Sick Leave Deduction</u>

Sick leave shall be deducted in one-fourth (1/4) day increments. For this purpose, one-fourth (1/4) day shall be defined as two (2)academic periods. It is further understood that the first quarter of the day extends through the first two (2) academic periods of the day and the last quarter of the day includes the last two (2)academic periods of the day.

5.016 Use of sick leave acknowledgment will be completed by the employee within three (3) days of return to work.

5.02 MEDICAL LEAVE (UNPAID)

5.021 <u>Right to Medical Leave</u>

In accordance with Ohio Revised Code Section 3319.13, when sick leave is exhausted a bargaining unit member with a qualifying illness or injury shall, upon request, be granted medical leave without pay for a period of up two (2) years.

- 5.022 <u>Extension of Medical Leave</u>
 - A. A bargaining unit member desiring to extend or renew a leave, shall, as soon as practical, submit a written request to the Superintendent. Extensions leaves granted per subsection 5.021 above may be made at the discretion of the Board.
 - B. The Board reserves the right to require an independent medical opinion on the request. Expenses of the medical opinion and mileage shall be paid for by the Board.
- 5.023 <u>Restrictions</u>

Sick leave shall not accrue during an unpaid medical leave.

5.024 <u>Insurance Coverage(s) While on Leave</u>

Insurance benefits shall be continued for the bargaining unit member provided he/she makes payment in advance for such benefit(s) to the Board Treasurer's Office by the first of each month (beyond any applicable FMLA period requiring the Board to extend coverage without reimbursement).

5.025 <u>Right to Return from Leave</u>

At the expiration of the granted leave, the bargaining unit member will be reinstated to the same certification/licensure area he/she held at the time the leave commenced subject to a fitness for return to duty verification by the member's physician, if requested.

A bargaining unit member on unpaid leave may request to return to duty prior to the expiration of the granted leave period. Such requests may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent; however, such approval for an early return will not unreasonably be withheld.

5.03 PARENTAL LEAVE

5.031 Length of Parental Leave

Parental leave, without pay, shall be granted a bargaining unit member for the purpose of child bearing and/or child rearing. Such leave shall have a maximum duration of the balance of the school year in which the leave begins and the subsequent school year.

5.032 <u>Notice of Leave – Pregnant Employee</u>

A bargaining unit member who is pregnant will be entitled, upon request, to a leave to begin at any time between the commencement of her pregnancy and the date that she is expected to return to active duty following the termination of the pregnancy. She will notify the Superintendent in writing of her desire to take such leave and, except in cases of emergency, will give such notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the date on which her leave is to begin.

5.033 <u>Eligibility for Parental Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member will be entitled, upon request, to an unpaid leave to begin at any time between the birth of a child and one (1) year thereafter. He/she will notify the Superintendent in writing of his/her desire to take such leave and, except in cases of emergency, shall give such notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the date on which his/her leave is to begin.

5.034 <u>Eligibility for Parental Leave (Adoption)</u>

A bargaining unit member adopting a child will be entitled, upon request, to a leave to commence at any time during the first year after receiving de facto custody of the child, or prior to receiving such custody if necessary in order to fulfill the requirements for adoption. The bargaining unit member will notify the Superintendent in writing of his/her desire to take such leave and except in cases of emergency, shall give such notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the date on which his/her leave is to begin.

In addition to the availability for unpaid leave as discussed herein, the following paid leave applies:

- A. For the adoption of an infant child (defined as birth 2 years of age), members may utilize up to six (6) weeks of paid sick leave upon adoption and arrival of the child.
- B. For the adoption of a child between the ages of 2-6, members may utilize up to two (2) weeks of paid sick leave upon adoption and arrival of the child.
- C. No paid leave is available for the adoption of a child over the age of 6 years.

5.035 <u>Right to Return from Parental Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member who is granted a parental leave of absence pursuant to the above, will have the following rights:

- A. Upon return to active duty after a leave which has been charged entirely to sick leave in accordance with Section 5.032, the individual shall immediately be assigned to the same position which he/she held at the time the leave commenced.
- B. If a bargaining unit member gives the Superintendent at least six (6) weeks' notice of his/her desire to return to active duty during parental leave not charged entirely to sick leave he/she shall be assigned, not later than the beginning of the next semester, to a position in the same area of certification/licensure he/she held at the time the leave commenced.

5.036 <u>Right to Substitute While on Parental Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member on a parental leave of absence will not be denied the opportunity to substitute in the District by reason of the fact that he/she is on such leave of absence. However, preparing for or pursuing other full-time employment shall be a violation of this Agreement. This is not intended to interfere with secondary vocations which do not conflict with full-time employment by the Board.

5.037 <u>Right to Insurance Coverage(s) While on Parental Leave</u>

Insurance benefits beyond those extended under the FMLA shall be continued for the bargaining unit member provided he/she makes payment in advance for such benefit(s) to the Board Treasurer's Office by the first of each month.

5.04 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT

- 5.041 The Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), as amended, and its associated regulations will apply to all bargaining unit members who meet its eligibility requirements and will not limit any rights contained in any other parts of this Agreement. FMLA leave will be taken only when the bargaining unit member provides a written application to the Superintendent at least thirty (30) days in advance unless the need for FMLA leave was not foreseeable, in which case notice is to be given as soon as practicable.
- 5.042 For purposes of this Section, "12-month period" is defined as "the 12-month period measured forward from the date the employee's first FMLA leave begins" (i.e. the leave year is specific to each employee). The member is entitled to twelve (12) weeks of leave during the 12-month period beginning on the first date FMLA leave is taken. The next 12-month period commences the first time FMLA leave is taken after the completion of any previous 12-month period.
- 5.043 Should a bargaining unit member believe the Board has violated either a provision of this Section or a provision of the FMLA, the employee may elect to have his/her claim reviewed under either the grievance procedure appearing in Article III of this Agreement or under the enforcement procedures appearing in the FMLA, but not both.
- 5.044 The use of FMLA leave shall in no event extend any unpaid leave available under other provisions of this Article beyond the leave termination period specified in such other provisions of this Article.

- 5.045 During the leave, for up to twelve (12) weeks² per year, as defined above, the Board shall continue to pay the applicable contributions it makes for a bargaining unit member on the active payroll to continue participation in life, health, prescription drug, and dental insurance.
- 5.046 All bargaining unit members who have accumulated at least one year of qualifying service in the District may apply for family leave under the provisions of the federal Family and Medical Leave Act, as amended.

5.05 PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

5.051 <u>Eligibility for Professional Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member being granted professional leave for attendance at a professional conference shall apply for the leave in writing through his/her immediate supervisor on the Professional Visitation Form (Appendix C). The immediate supervisor, recommending the meeting, shall present the request to the Superintendent for final approval. The request shall be made as soon as practical, but except in cases of emergency, shall be given at least five (5) days in advance.

5.052 <u>Rights While on Professional Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member approved for a professional conference shall receive full salary while in attendance at the conference. In addition, the amount of reimbursement for expenses of the conference will be determined at the time of approval.

5.053 <u>Professional Leave Restrictions</u>

If requested by the Administration, a bargaining unit member will file a written and/or oral report on professional meetings for which salary and/or expenses are allowed.

5.06 PERSONAL LEAVE

5.061 <u>Right to Personal Leave</u> Each bargaining unit member shall, upon appropriate notice to the Superintendent (Appendix D), be granted without loss of pay, a maximum of three (3) days of personal leave per school year. All

² For caregivers of military personnel, additional FMLA leave may be available under the statute and affected employees are encouraged to contact the Treasurer's office.

unused personal leave days shall convert to sick leave as of June 30.

5.062 <u>Notice of Intent to Use Personal Leave</u>

Notice of intent to use personal leave shall be provided by the bargaining unit member completing and delivering to his/her immediate supervisor the prescribed form (Appendix D) at least five (5) days in advance of the anticipated absence. However, in the case of an emergency, notice of intent to use personal leave shall be made to the immediate supervisor as soon as possible. The supervisor shall forward the notice to the Superintendent.

5.063 <u>Reason(s) for Personal Leave</u>

Reasons for the use of personal leave shall be:

- A. Funeral not covered under sick leave;
- B. Mandatory court appearances;
- C. Religious holidays;
- D. Personal matters, **excluding vacation (other than the Unrestricted Day described in Letter E of this section)**, which cannot be conducted outside the bargaining unit member's regular working hours; and
- E. Members may use one (1) of the three (3) days of personal leave as an Unrestricted Day that can be used for any reason including, but not limited to, reasons A D in this section. The member must indicate on Appendix D that the day is being taken as the Unrestricted Day.

5.064 <u>Increments of Personal Leave</u>

Personal leave shall be granted in one-fourth (1/4), one-half (1/2) or one (1) day increments. For this purpose, one-fourth (1/4) day has the same meaning as in the case of sick leave under Article V, Section 5.01, subsection 5.015 of this Agreement.

5.065 <u>Restrictions on Personal Leave</u>

Falsifications of information on the notice of intent to use personal leave form (Appendix D) may subject the bargaining unit member to disciplinary action. No more than five (5) bargaining unit members will be granted leave on any given day unless there is a clearly described emergency or unless otherwise authorized by the Superintendent.

5.07 ASSAULT LEAVE

5.071 <u>Right to Assault Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member who must be absent due to disability resulting from a physical assault which occurs as a result of Board employment will be eligible for Assault Leave.

5.072 <u>Application for Assault Leave</u>

Upon the bargaining unit member's delivery to the Superintendent of a signed statement, on forms provided by the Board (Appendix G) he/she shall be granted such leave for the period of the disability, not to exceed one hundred eighty-four (184) work days. Such statement shall include the nature of the disability, the date of its occurrence, the names of the individual causing the assault or the description of the individual if the name is unknown, and the facts surrounding the assault. The bargaining unit member agrees to file criminal charges if the individual(s) causing the assault are known, as a condition of the Board approving such leave. In the absence of extenuating circumstances, a student convicted of assaulting a teacher will not be returned to the bargaining unit member's classroom without the consent of both the Board and the bargaining unit member.

5.073 <u>Eligibility for Assault Leave</u>

The bargaining unit member shall provide a certificate from a licensed physician stating the nature and duration of the disability and the necessity of absence from regular employment. In addition, the Board may require the bargaining unit member claiming more than ten (10) days of assault leave to submit to a medical examination. If the Board requires such a medical examination, the full cost of the examination, including mileage reimbursement, shall be borne by the Board.

5.074 Legal Actions Resulting from Assault

If legal action results, the bargaining unit member shall be granted leave, with no loss of pay, for all necessary absence connected with the legal action.

5.075 <u>Restrictions on Assault Leave</u>

Falsification of either the signed statement or the physician's certificate is grounds, under ORC Section 3319.143, and may subject the bargaining unit member to suspension and/or termination of employment under ORC Section 3319.16 and related statutory provisions.

5.076 <u>Rights While on Assault Leave</u>

- A. A bargaining unit member on assault leave shall receive his/her full daily salary less the amount received by that individual, if any, for Worker's Compensation which covers loss of pay sustained for the injury. However, the bargaining unit member's pay shall not be reduced by benefits received to cover medical expenses, nursing expenses, hospital expenses, medicine and/or rehabilitation.
- B. Leave granted under this section shall not be charged against such leave earned or earnable under ORC Section 3319.141.

5.077 <u>Termination of Assault Leave Benefits</u>

Assault leave benefits shall be discontinued upon the bargaining unit member's ability to return to work or the employee's approval for and receipt of STRS disability retirement benefits, whichever occurs first.

5.08 ASSOCIATION LEAVE

5.081 <u>Right to Association Leave</u>

Bargaining unit members shall be granted an accumulative total of up to ten (10) days of Association leave per work year, to be divided among members as determined by the Association for attendance at official Association functions. This leave shall be granted in increments of not less than one-half (1/2) day periods.

- 5.082 <u>Notice of Intent to Use Association Leave</u> The Association President/Co-President shall notify the Superintendent of the use of such leave by completing and delivering to him the Professional Visitation Form (Appendix C) for the designated member(s). Both the member taking the Association leave, and the Association President/Co-President will sign the Association Leave Request. Except in cases of emergency such notice shall be provided at least five (5) days in advance of the intended absence.
- 5.083 <u>Restrictions on Association Leave</u> A maximum of five (5) bargaining unit members may be excused for Association Leave on any given day.

5.09 SABBATICAL LEAVE

5.091 <u>Right to Sabbatical Leave</u>

Upon presentation to the Superintendent of a satisfactory plan for professional growth, as subsequently described, sabbatical leave may be granted to eligible bargaining unit members, for a period of no longer than one (1) school year.

5.092 <u>Plan of Professional Growth</u>

A satisfactory plan of professional growth shall:

- A. Be received no later than March 1 of the school year preceding that year for which the leave is requested;
- B. Provide evidence that the member of the bargaining unit is to be enrolled as a full-time student in a state accredited college or university; and
- C. Provide evidence of enrollment in a degree program directly related to the educational profession.
- D. Leave also may be granted to a member to further professional studies in a non-degree program or for training/employment in the field which he/she is licensed or certificated.

5.093 Eligibility for Sabbatical Leave

In order to be eligible for sabbatical leave a bargaining unit member must have taught for five (5) consecutive school years in the District.

5.094 <u>Rights While on Sabbatical Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member on sabbatical leave may be paid in accordance with ORC Section 3319.131.

5.095 <u>Insurance Coverage(s) While on Sabbatical Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member on sabbatical leave may continue all insurance coverages provided that at the beginning of each month the member makes payment for the premium of such coverage to the Board Treasurer's Office.

5.096 <u>Restrictions on Sabbatical Leave</u>

The period of sabbatical leave shall not be counted as teaching experience in making salary adjustments.

5.097 <u>Right to Return from Sabbatical Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member who successfully completes a plan for professional growth, shall be reinstated not later than the beginning of the following school year to a position which is equivalent to or higher than the position which he/she left.

5.098 <u>Repayment of Compensation/Tuition</u>

Any bargaining unit member returning from sabbatical leave who has received compensation under this Agreement for tuition and/or under ORC 3319.131, must remain in the employ of the District for a minimum of two (2) full contract years after resuming duties or will be required to repay on a prorated basis any such amounts upon any early, voluntary separation from the District.

5.10 COURT APPEARANCE/ARBITRATION LEAVE

5.101 <u>Right to Court Appearance/Arbitration Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member who, because of his/her employment in the school system, as subsequently defined, is required to appear as a witness by court/or AAA subpoena, will be granted leave for such appearance. For purposes of arbitration, the parties agree to work cooperatively to minimize disruption of the educational environment in the scheduling of witnesses.

5.102 <u>Notice of Intent to Use Court Appearance/Arbitration Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member receiving a subpoena and desiring to use court/arbitration leave shall notify the Superintendent as far in advance as possible.

5.103 <u>Rights While on Court Appearance/Arbitration Leave</u>

- A. A bargaining unit member on court appearance/arbitration leave shall receive his/her full salary and benefits.
- B. Time spent on court appearance/arbitration leave will not be charged against any of the above leave provisions.

5.104 <u>Purpose of Court Appearance/Arbitration Leave</u>

"Because of his/her employment" shall be defined for the purposes of this Section to refer to lawsuits involving the District and incidents involving bargaining unit members and/or students which the member may have occasion to observe and/or have knowledge of because of his/her teaching position. Court appearance/arbitration leave shall not be granted where the Board is an adverse party and where the member is appearing as a witness on behalf of the party opposed to the Board in the action, with the exception to arbitrations scheduled under this Agreement.

5.105 <u>Restrictions on Court Appearance/Arbitration Leave</u>

Court/arbitration leave shall not be used in court cases where the expertise of the bargaining unit member is the basis for the appearance, but rather for matters which specifically relate to circumstances which could only have been observed and/or known because of the employment with this District.

5.106 <u>Other Court Appearances</u>

If a bargaining unit member is required by subpoena to appear as a witness and paid court appearance/arbitration leave is not authorized under the above provisions of this Section, the member may use paid personal leave under Article V, Section 5.06 of this Agreement for such purpose. If the member has exhausted his/her personal leave for the particular school year, the member will be authorized to be absent without pay for the purpose of making the required appearance.

5.11 JURY DUTY LEAVE

5.111 <u>Right to Jury Duty Leave</u>

A bargaining unit member required by law to report for jury duty shall be granted jury duty leave for the duration of such duty.

5.112 Notice of Intent to Use Jury Duty Leave

A bargaining unit member receiving notice to appear for jury duty and desiring to use jury duty leave shall notify the Superintendent as far in advance of the absence as possible.

5.113 <u>Rights While on Jury Duty Leave</u>

- A. A bargaining unit member on jury duty leave shall receive his/her full salary and benefits and may retain any and all amounts received as a stipend for such duty to defray expenses.
- B. Time spent on jury duty leave will not be charged against any of the above leave provisions.

5.12 UNPAID LEAVE

5.121 Right to Unpaid Leave/Non-Medical

A bargaining unit member may apply for an unpaid leave and, under conditions specified in Article 5.02, state law and Board Policy, may be granted leaves of absence without pay. For nonmedical (discretionary) unpaid leave, bargaining unit members may request same from the Superintendent. Nothing herein shall be deemed to create an expectancy that unpaid leave will be granted, nor prevent appropriate disciplinary action for any unauthorized absence.

5.122 Notice of Request to Use Unpaid Leave

Notice of request to use non-medical unpaid leave shall be provided by the bargaining unit member completing and delivering to his/her immediate supervisor the prescribed form (Appendix J) at least five (5) days in advance of the anticipated absence.

5.123 <u>Granting Unpaid Leave</u>

Granting unpaid leave is at the discretion of the Superintendent. In lieu of unpaid leave, the Superintendent will first evaluate the feasibility of approving personal leave, if the employee has not exhausted such leave, under subsection 5.065 of Section 5.06 above.

5.13 MILITARY LEAVE

Bargaining unit members on military leave, including reservists called to active duty, have the right to reemployment as per the terms and conditions specified by ORC Sections 3319.14, 5923.05, or other applicable state or federal law.

5.14 ATTENDANCE INCENTIVE

If a bargaining unit member achieves perfect attendance for a full semester, the Board will pay the employee the sum of \$150. If perfect attendance is maintained for the entire school year, the Board will pay the employee the sum of \$450. In any case, if the employee misses ten (10) or more days over the full school year, no payment will be made. Any payment due will be made on the first regularly scheduled payday in August following the school year. Any absence for any reason will be counted against perfect attendance except approved daily professional leave, jury leave, Association and/or court/arbitration leave.

ARTICLE VI

REDUCTION IN STAFF

6.01 PROCESS OF REDUCTION

If a reduction in the number of bargaining unit members is effected, the reduction shall be achieved pursuant to the provisions of this Article and in accordance with the requirements of Ohio Revised Code Section 3319.17.

6.02 ATTRITION

To the extent possible, the number of persons affected by a reduction in staff will be kept to a minimum by not employing a replacement for a bargaining unit member who retires or resigns, or whose limited teaching contract is terminated in accordance with Article IV, Section 4.03.

6.03 REDUCTION BY OTHER THAN ATTRITION

6.031 <u>Notice to Association</u>

Reduction not achieved through attrition may be made by suspending contracts. If the Board contemplates suspending contracts pursuant to a reduction in force, it will notify the Association in writing not later than two weeks prior to Board action. The notice will include the positions expected to be reduced, the basis for the RIF, the date upon which the suspensions will take effect, and the names of bargaining unit members potentially affected.

6.032 Criteria for Suspension of Teaching Contract

Retention of bargaining unit members and recall of eligible teachers whose contracts have been suspended pursuant to a reduction in force will not be based upon seniority, except in circumstances when choosing between teachers with comparable evaluations. The application of the term "comparable" as applied to teacher evaluations, shall occur in accordance with the Board adopted, standards-based teacher evaluation policy defining that term.

For the transition period of this Master Agreement only, ending on June 30, 2019, comparable evaluations of OTES teachers will be defined as all evaluation ratings above "Ineffective".

- 1. If reductions are necessary, limited contract teachers shall first be reduced in the affected teaching fields (certification/licensure) utilizing the following order:
 - a. Comparable evaluations.

- b. When evaluations are comparable, seniority in the District shall prevail, with the contract of the least senior limited contract teacher in the affected teaching field the first to be suspended.
- 2. Should the necessary reduction of staff required exceed the number of limited contract teachers in the affected field, continuing contract teachers shall be reduced in the affected teaching fields (certification/licensure) utilizing the following order:
 - a. Comparable evaluations.
 - b. When evaluations are comparable, seniority in the District shall prevail, with the contract of the least senior continuing contract teacher in the affected teaching field the first to be suspended.
- 3. When between teachers choosing with comparable evaluations, if the position of a teacher in one "teaching field affected" is eliminated due to reduction in force, and the teacher in that position is also certified/licensed in another teaching field or fields, the teacher may move to the seniority list of any other area of his/her certification/licensure as long as the teacher reduced is displacing a teacher with comparable The least senior teacher in that area of evaluation. certification/licensure will then be the teacher whose contract is suspended.

It is further understood that a part-time bargaining unit member (as defined in Article I, Section 1 of this Agreement) will in all cases be deemed the least senior employee in every relevant area of certification/licensure; should an area of certification/licensure contain more than one (1) such part-time employee, ties shall be broken by mutual agreement of the Association President and the Superintendent or, in the absence of such agreement, by using the procedure specified in subsection 6.042 below.

6.04 SENIORITY

6.041 <u>Seniority Defined</u>

For purposes of this Agreement, seniority will be computed from the most recent date of hire, into a bargaining unit position, of the bargaining unit member as determined by official Board action to employ. Seniority will continue to accrue for each school year in which the bargaining unit member is under a teacher's contract for one hundred twenty (120) days or more, and for all paid leaves of absence. Seniority will not be broken by unpaid leaves of absence, employment by the Board in a position outside the bargaining unit or as a result of a planned reduction from which the employee is recalled, but such time will not be counted in computing seniority. In addition, seniority will not be considered to have been broken if a bargaining unit member had his/her limited teaching contract non-renewed and then was re-employed for the subsequent school year. When seniority is equal, the date of application which resulted in the individual's employment will be the determining factor.

6.042 Breaking of Seniority Ties

- A. When seniority is equal, the tie will be broken by placing the names of the bargaining unit members with equal seniority in a container and the Superintendent shall draw one (1) name at a time. The first name drawn shall be considered the least senior, the second name drawn shall be the next senior, etc. until all names are drawn.
- B. A bargaining unit member involved in a seniority tie shall be given the opportunity to attend the drawing. The drawing shall be scheduled at such a time as to permit the member's attendance or he/she shall be given released time to attend. A representative of the Association shall also be in attendance at such drawing.
- 6.05 RECALL

6.051 Recall Defined

No vacancies will be filled by the Board unless or until procedures set forth in this Article have been complied with. A full-time bargaining unit member who is on suspension status shall be returned to active employment status to fill vacancies for which he/she is certified/licensed in inverse order of reduction.

6.052 Notice of Recall

Recall shall be effected by sending a letter by registered or certified mail to the bargaining unit member at his/her last known address. It shall be the responsibility of each individual to notify the Board of any change in address. A copy of the written notification to the affected teacher will also be provided to the Association President.

6.053 <u>Waiver of Recall Rights</u>

Bargaining unit members whose contracts have been suspended are not required to accept a part-time position. If a bargaining unit member fails to accept full-time active employment status within two (2) calendar weeks from the date notification was delivered, the Superintendent/designee will make an attempt to reach the affected teacher by phone and, if unsuccessful, notify the Association President that the individual shall be considered to have declined the offer and shall be removed from the eligibility list.

6.054 <u>Time of Return Following Recall</u>

If a bargaining unit member has secured temporary employment elsewhere, he/she shall be allowed four (4) calendar weeks to notify his/her temporary employer of his/her resignation from temporary employment before being required to report to work in the District.

6.055 <u>Right Upon Recall</u>

A bargaining unit member on suspension status shall, upon acceptance of the notification to resume full-time active employment status, return to active employment status with the same seniority, accumulation of sick leave, and salary schedule placement to which he/she was entitled at the time the suspension began.

- 6.056 <u>Duration of Recall Rights</u>
 - A. The name of a bargaining unit member with a limited contract shall remain on the recall list for a period of two (2) full school years following the date he/she was placed on the list.
 - B. A bargaining unit member on a continuing contract shall have unlimited recall rights.

6.06 PLACEMENT ASSISTANCE - RETRAINING

- 6.061 A bargaining unit member who is RIF'd, and while on the recall list shall be eligible for the Adult Transition Service and for enrollment in full-time or part-time adult programs or adult classes which are fiscally sponsored by the Board. These adult programs and adult classes will be provided to such persons while on the RIF list if the program or class has not been filled by tuition-paying students but where the Board previously has determined to offer the program or class.
- 6.062 Any bargaining unit member on a recall list shall be given preferential consideration for any vacant aide positions; however, the bargaining unit member shall remain on the recall list according to Section 6.05.

6.07 PART-TIME EMPLOYEES FOLLOWING REDUCTION IN STAFF

A bargaining unit member employed full-time by the Board for five (5) consecutive years whose contract is suspended under the provisions of this Article, and who is re-employed part-time, shall be eligible for the following:

- 1. Insurance fringe benefits under Article IX of this Agreement (with the Board's contributions prorated).
- 2. Severance pay under Article VII, Section 7.05 of this Agreement for full-time years to be paid at the last full-time per diem rate or the last part-time rate, whichever is higher, when the employee retires from employment by the Board under the provisions of the State Teachers Retirement System.

For purposes of this Section, a "part-time" employee is an employee regularly employed on anything less than a full-time schedule. If the part-time employee is at any time offered full-time employment and rejects the offer, the insurance and severance benefits of this Section are forfeited.

Nothing in this Section shall be construed to indicate the part-time employee is eligible for any other benefits enjoyed by the bargaining unit members except at the discretion of the Superintendent; however, if the employee's schedule satisfies any of the criteria appearing in Article I, Section 1.01, subsection 1.012 of this Agreement, the employee shall also be subject to such other provisions of this Agreement as are specified in subsection 1.012.

ARTICLE VII

COMPENSATION AND REIMBURSEMENT

7.01 SALARY SCHEDULE

7.011 <u>Salary Schedule</u>

Effective for the duration of this Agreement, beginning July 1, 2019, the base salary will be \$43,572.28. See Appendix A, attached hereto, for the salary schedule index. Bargaining unit members will receive salary through 26 pay periods.

In addition, a bargaining unit member who achieves 22, 23, or 26 years of service for vertical teachers' salary schedule placement purposes will receive a one-time, lump-sum payment of \$1,000.00, less applicable tax withholdings, with the further understanding that no such employee shall be eligible for this payment more than once over the life of this Agreement.

In addition, there will be a base salary increase of 2.5% for contract year 2020-2021 and a base salary increase of 2.5% for contract year 2021-2022.

7.012 <u>State Teachers Retirement System (STRS) Pick-up Through Salary</u> <u>Restatement</u>

- 1. The total annual salary of each bargaining unit member shall be payable by the Board in two (2) parts:
 - a) cash salary, and
 - b) deferred salary through the salary restatement method of picking up the employee contribution to STRS.

An employee's deferred salary shall equal the amount of the employee contribution to STRS required by law and shall be paid by the Board to STRS on behalf of the employee as a pickup (by means of the salary restatement method) of the employee contribution, otherwise payable by the employee.

An employee's annual cash salary shall be equal to the employee's total contracted annual salary less the employee's deferred salary, and shall be payable subject to applicable payroll deductions to the employee. The Board's total combined expenditure for total annual salary of all bargaining unit members (including deferred salary amounts) shall not be greater than the amounts it would have paid for those items had this Section of the Agreement not been in effect.

- 2. The Board shall compute and remit its employer contributions to STRS based upon an employee's total annual salary including the deferred salary. The Board shall report for Federal and Ohio income tax purposes as an employee's gross income, the employee's total annual salary less the amount of the employee's deferred salary. The Board shall report for municipal income tax purposes as an employee's gross income, both the paid and the deferred salary. The Board shall compute income tax withholding based upon gross income as reported to the respective tax authorities.
- 3. An employee's deferred salary shall be included in the member's total annual salary for the purpose of computing daily rate of pay for determining any particular salary adjustment to be made due to absence or for any other purpose.
- 7.013 Bargaining unit members shall be paid in twenty-six (26) approximately equal installments less appropriate deductions. Extended time shall be paid in a lump sum in September for days worked prior to the start of the school year (provided the required documentation is submitted to the immediate supervisor by not later than Friday of the first full week of school; otherwise payment will be delayed for up to three (3) weeks after submission of the documentation, except that in no event will payment be made if the documentation is not submitted by the last day of the first semester), with the balance in June; the Board Treasurer will document with the lump sum payment how that sum was taxed for withholding purposes under applicable tax laws. Payments shall be made by direct deposit to a financial institution which is a member of the ACH (Automatic Clearing House), and that can accept wire transfer. Direct deposit will be initiated upon notification to the Treasurer through submission of a direct deposit form and blank deposit tickets with proper coding, routing, transit and account numbers. Except by mutual agreement otherwise, election of a financial institution must be made to the Treasurer's Office not later than August 20 to be effective for the succeeding payroll year and, once having made the election, cannot be changed for the balance of that year. The parties recognize that, by operation of the calendar, a three-week hiatus between pays will need to occur every several years in order to avoid a twenty-seventh (27th) pay in a particular year.

7.02 PLACEMENT ON THE SALARY SCHEDULE

7.021 A bargaining unit member's initial placement on the salary schedule shall be determined by an evaluation of his/her military

service, prior teaching experience, related work experience, and education.

- 7.022 Columns on the salary schedule are identified by Roman numerals in the following manner:
 - A. Class I equals a bachelor's degree or equivalent; "equivalent" means five (5) years of appropriate work experience as defined in the <u>Teacher Education and Licensure Standards</u> by a vocational area, plus a minimum of a two (2) year provisional license.
 - B. Class II equals a bachelor's degree plus fifteen (15) semester hours after granting of the bachelor's degree or equivalent; for the bargaining unit member with the "equivalent", this means fifteen (15) semester hours after the granting of the first five (5) year professional license.
 - C. Class III equals one hundred fifty (150) semester hours or equivalent; "equivalent" means five (5) years of appropriate work experience plus a minimum of an eight (8)-year professional vocational certificate or the first renewal of a professional license.
 - D. Class IV equals a master's degree or equivalent; "equivalent" means five (5) years of appropriate work experience plus a bachelor's degree plus an eight (8)-year professional vocational certificate or the second renewal of a five (5) year professional license.
 - E. Class V equals a master's degree or equivalent (as defined in paragraph D above) plus fifteen (15) semester hours after granting of the master's degree or achievement of its equivalent, or forty-five (45) graduate semester hours and the achievement of a master's degree or its equivalent.
- 7.023 In determining proper placement on the salary schedule, quarter hours of college credit may be substituted for semester hours of credit at the rate of three (3) quarter hours equal two (2) semester hours.

7.024 <u>Step Assignment</u>

Step credit (one per year) may be granted to a maximum of ten (10) years, with the further understanding that up to five (5) years of additional credit for documented years of additional prior teaching or work experience may be granted in the initial placement on the

salary schedule of the bargaining unit member by the Superintendent based upon a case-by-case analysis, and shall be in accordance with ORC Section 3317.13, which is basically interpreted as follows:

- A. All years of teaching in public or parochial schools, regardless of training, with each year consisting of at least one hundred twenty (120) days under a regular teacher's contract.
- B. All years of military experience to a maximum of five (5) years in the armed forces of the United States. Active military service of eight (8) or more continuous months shall be counted as a full year.
- C. Teaching personnel coming directly from business and/or industry may be allowed step credit for full-time work experience on the following basis:
 - 1. Five (5) years of experience including an apprenticeship or equivalent training in the vocational area to be taught as approved by the State Department of Education, or successful completion of an oral examination by a panel of experts convened for this purpose, shall qualify the applicant for placement equivalent to the Bachelor Degree and no experience.

The panel of experts shall be composed of three (3) to five (5) members, one of whom will be selected by the Association President (or designee) and who will have expertise in the relevant vocational area. Recognizing that time is of the essence, especially during the summer recess, the selection will be made promptly with the further understanding that the person selected must be readily available.

- 2. Years of experience shall be equated at the rate of two for one. One (1) year of experience on the salary schedule may be granted for each two (2) years of appropriate experience. A year (1) of experience must consist of at least eight (8) continuous months of full-time employment. In determining total years of experience, eight (8) months or more shall be raised to the next year.
- 7.025 All previous experience (teaching, military, and work) must be verified and notarized by the teacher on the forms provided. Salary cannot be paid until proof is submitted.

7.026 Reclassification of salary will be made when a teacher has completed requirements and filed a request by September 15 of any school year as per ORC Section 3317.14. Completion of requirement must be verified with official certified transcripts. Members will be eligible for reclassification for the second (2nd) semester providing requirements are completed and a request is filed by January first (1st).

7.03 EXTENDED TIME

Compensation for extended time shall be at the individual's per diem rate of pay in accordance with Article 8.012.

7.04 REGULAR INSTRUCTOR AS SUBSTITUTE - SUPPLEMENTARY ASSIGNMENT

A bargaining unit member may contract to substitute teach when regular substitutes are unavailable. Such assignments are for services in excess of the regularly contracted assignment. A bargaining unit member who, during his/her planning period, substitutes under a supplemental assignment shall be compensated at the rate of one-sixth (1/6) of the per diem salary at the Class I zero (0) step of the salary schedule in effect for that school year, for each hour or fraction thereof of such substitute service. Where substitute service occurs outside the employee's planning period and involves responsibility for at least 150% of the employee's normal complement of assigned students (rounded to the nearest whole number) the employee, in addition to any compensation that may be payable for substitute service during a planning period, shall be compensated at one-half (1/2) the vocational substitute daily rate, unless such substitute service outside the planning period meets or exceeds the equivalent of four (4) periods in the day, in which case the employee shall receive the full substitute daily rate. To be eligible for substitute service and compensation under this provision, the employee must be approved for and sign a supplemental contract. All service will be rendered on a voluntary basis. Assignments will be made by the principal. This alternative shall be utilized only as a last resort.

7.05 SEVERANCE PAY

7.051 <u>Right to Severance Pay</u>

Upon the service retirement of an employee who has not less than ten (10) years of employment with the state or political subdivision of the state and who has qualified for retirement from a State of Ohio employees retirement system, such employee shall be entitled to receive cash payment calculated in accordance with Section 7.053 below. In addition, a bargaining unit member with ten (10) or more years of teaching experience in the District who is at least fifty (50) years of age and who voluntarily terminates his/her employment with the District with the express purpose of retirement or acceptance of gainful employment in a position for which a license/certificate from the Ohio Department of Education is not required, shall receive severance pay in accordance with the subsections of this Section 7.053 appearing below.

7.052 Rate of Severance Pay

Severance pay will be based upon the daily rate of pay as determined from the individual's basic contract, exclusive of all supplemental contracts and allowances, last in effect prior to the termination of employment.

7.053 <u>Calculation of Severance Pay</u>

Severance pay shall be given for all days of accumulated but unused sick leave, at the time of termination of employment, up to ten (10) days. For a bargaining unit member who has accumulated more than ten (10) days of unused sick leave, those days in excess of ten (10) will be multiplied by one fourth (1/4) and added to the initial ten (10) days. However, no bargaining unit member shall receive a severance pay benefit of more than ninety (90) days pay. If a bargaining unit member is eligible for disability or service retirement and actually retires under ORC Chapter 3307, the member, if entitled to severance pay under subsection 7.051 above, shall receive five (5) days pay in addition to any amount the member would otherwise receive under this subsection and the member's total benefit will be paid, within the timeframe described in subsection 7.056, upon receipt by the Board Treasurer of proof of retirement.

7.054 <u>Restrictions</u>

Receipt of severance pay shall eliminate all sick leave credit accrued by that individual.

7.055 <u>Severance as Death Benefit</u> Except as otherwise specified in subsection 7.057 as to a retiring bargaining unit member, a bargaining unit member with five (5) or more years of teaching service in this District who dies while under contract to the Board shall have the severance calculation as stated in subsection 7.053 paid to his/her estate.

7.056 Retirement/Resignation Notification Incentive

Bargaining unit members who notify the District six (6) months prior to their retirement date will receive an additional \$1,000 in severance pay. The Superintendent may allow revocation of retirement due to unforeseen circumstances if the position has not been filled before the request for revocation is made.

Bargaining unit members with a minimum of ten (10) years of employment with the District who notify the District six (6) months prior to their resignation date, for purposes other than retirement, will also receive a incentive amount of \$1000. The Superintendent may allow revocation of resignation due to unforeseen circumstances if the position has not been filled before the request for revocation is made. This notification incentive is not available to any otherwise eligible teacher whose resignation is in lieu of termination or non-renewal.

7.057 <u>Time of Payment</u>

Payment shall be made within two and one-half (2-1/2) months following the bargaining unit member's termination of employment. Upon request, unless the employee is a retiring bargaining unit member subject to the mandatory requirements appearing in subsection 7.057, the employee's severance pay will be placed in a Section 403(b) account in accordance with applicable Internal Revenue Code ("IRC") provisions and any regulations issued thereunder.

7.058 Payment and Deferral of Severance Pay

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement or Board policy A. to the contrary, in accordance with terms of this subsection and any related provisions of a plan document adopted by the Board to comply with requirements of Section 403(b) of the IRC, retiring bargaining unit members shall have the total amount that otherwise would be payable to them as severance pay under the above subsections of this Section 7.05 mandatorily paid into an annuity contract or custodial account that is designed to meet the tax-gualification requirements of IRC Section 403(b) (a "TSA"). For the purpose of this subsection, this arrangement is referred to as the "403(b) Plan". The provisions of this subsection are effective for all retiring bargaining unit members whose termination of employment is on or after June 30, 2006. A "retiring bargaining unit member" is defined for this purpose as a bargaining unit member who is eligible for service retirement under ORC Chapter 3307 (or the provisions of some other Ohio public employee retirement system) and who actually service retires under that Chapter (or such other Ohio public employee retirement system) upon termination of employment with the Board.

- B. The terms of the 403(b) Plan shall include the following:
 - 1. Participation in the 403(b) Plan shall be mandatory for any retiring bargaining unit member who is entitled to severance pay.
 - 2. An employer contribution shall be made on behalf of the retiring bargaining unit member under the 403(b) Plan in an amount equal to the lesser of:
 - a. The total amount of the bargaining unit member's severance pay under this Section 7.05.
 - b. The maximum contribution amount allowable under the terms of the 403(b) Plan.
 - 3. The required contribution to the 403(b) Plan shall be made within the timeframe described in subsection 7.056 regarding the payment of severance pay.
 - 4. In the calendar year of retirement, or in any other calendar year, the total amount of severance pay that may be paid to a TSA under the 403(b) Plan shall not exceed the maximum contribution amount allowable under the federal income tax law for TSAs that are intended to be tax qualified under IRC Section 403(b). If the amount payable to the 403(b) Plan in any calendar year would exceed the maximum amount that is permitted under the applicable federal income tax law for that year, the excess amount shall be contributed to the 403(b) Plan after the first payroll date in January of the next calendar year; and if there is still any remaining excess amount, the remaining excess shall be paid in cash to the retired bargaining unit member.
 - 5. The TSA that shall be used for the 403(b) Plan shall be the group annuity contract of AIG VALIC. Participants in the 403(b) Plan shall be required to complete AIG VALIC enrollment forms, and unless and until a bargaining unit member does so, no contribution of Severance Pay shall be made to the 403(b) Plan on behalf of the bargaining unit member. A successor

company(ies) to AIG VALIC may be selected at any time by mutual agreement of the Board and the Association.

- 6. If a retiring bargaining unit member is entitled to have a contribution paid to the 403(b) Plan and dies prior to such contribution being paid to the 403(b) Plan, the contribution shall nevertheless be paid to the 403(b) Plan and then be paid to a beneficiary of the bargaining unit member in accordance with the terms of the 403(b) Plan.
- 7. After adoption of the 403(b) Plan, any administrative fees shall be borne by the 403(b) Plan participants.

7.059 <u>Tax Withholding</u>

All IRC Section 403(b) contributions, all deferrals to a TSA, and any cash severance payment to a bargaining unit member shall be subject to reduction for any tax withholding or other withholding that the Treasurer, in his/her sole discretion, determines is required by law. Neither the Board nor the Association guarantee any tax results associated with Section 403(b) contributions, deferrals to a TSA, or cash severance payment made to a bargaining unit member.

7.06 BUSINESS EXPENSES

7.061 <u>Mileage Reimbursement Allowance</u>

- A. A bargaining unit member who is required to use his/her own automobile in the performance of his/her duties shall be reimbursed for all such travel. The reimbursement shall be at the rate allowed by the Internal Revenue Service in effect at the time of travel.
- B. A claim for mileage reimbursement shall be made by the bargaining unit member submitting a voucher (Appendix E). The voucher will be submitted on a monthly basis no earlier than the first of any month following the driving of the mileage and no later than the fifteenth (15th) of that month.
- C. Mileage for the previous month submitted between the 1st 10th of the month will be reimbursed no later than the last day of the month. Mileage for the previous month submitted between the 10th 15th of the month will be reimbursed no later than the 15th of the following month. Mileage for the previous month must be submitted by the 15th of the month in order to be reimbursed.

7.062 Expenses of Meetings, Conferences and/or Other Activities

- A. A bargaining unit member required to attend meetings, conferences and/or other activities connected with his/her employment shall be reimbursed for all actual and necessary expenses incurred in such attendance.
- B. Registration, room and transportation by public conveyance may be paid in advance when the amount exceeds fifty dollars (\$50) providing that:
 - 1. The request for such advance payment is made at least ten (10) days prior to the date the check must be mailed.
 - 2. The bargaining unit member understands that should he/she fail for reasons within his/her control to attend the meeting for which advance payment of expenses have been honored he/she will become liable to the Board for any unreturned amounts.
 - 3. The payment is made to a third (3rd) party.
- C. The balance of the expenses for food, local travel or other items will be reimbursed following the submission of the appropriate expense report(s) including applicable documentation such as room receipts, registration receipts and/or third (3rd) party travel receipts.

7.07 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

7.071 The Board, over the life of this Agreement, will reimburse a bargaining unit member's tuition cost for up to twelve (12) semester hours credit for hours required for certification/licensure, recertification/re-licensure, or other pre-approved coursework. Such amount will be based on the actual cost of the semester hour, but will in no event exceed four hundred fifty dollars (\$450) per semester hour. Payment shall be made following submission of verification of completion, including official certified transcripts, with at least a B grade in letter grade courses and a Pass grade in pass/fail courses. Also, the employee must submit a voucher validating the tuition payment. To qualify for payment, the employee must give advance written notice to the Superintendent of the hours he/she intends to take. This notice must include the course title, course number, number of semester hours, the institution providing training, and verification that such hours are/were required for certification/licensure or re-certification/relicensure or for pre-approved coursework. Requests for payment must be made within six (6) months of completion of class. If the employee's employment with the District is severed for any reason prior to June 30, 2021, the Board may recoup from the employee's final pay, on a prorated basis, the amount expended over the life of this Agreement on behalf of the employee under this provision.

7.072 Additional Tuition Reimbursement

- Independent of any tuition reimbursement for which the А. bargaining unit member may qualify under subsection 7.071 above, the Board will reimburse a newly hired Career Technical Instructor's Career Tech Certification cost, up to 24 credits, if it is required as a condition of employment. The Board's obligation under this provision is restricted to the employee's first attempt to pass this requirement. Bargaining unit members are responsible for maintaining the basic certificate/license that gualifies them for continued employment. Beyond that, if an employee is required by the Administration writing obtain in to some other certificate/license, the Board will reimburse the cost of the fee. An employee will not be adversely affected for not obtaining some additional certificate/license if not required in writing to do so by the Administration.
- B. Payment to an employee under this subsection is subject to the same grade and other requirements and conditions as stated in subsection 7.071 above, if applicable. This subsection is not intended to preclude reimbursement caseby-case, by mutual agreement, for other certifications or credentials that are deemed to benefit both the employee and the Board.

7.08 CURRICULUM REVIEW

- 7.081 A bargaining unit member may be contracted as a consultant for writing/updating curriculum and/or Courses of Study. The reimbursement for these services shall be established prior to the commencement of the activity.
- 7.082 <u>Course of Study/Curriculum</u>
 - A. The generic Course of Study will be reviewed, modified and finalized in accordance with the needs of the District.
- 7.083 <u>Rate of Compensation</u>
 - A. A bargaining unit member who is contracted for curriculum/course of study development will receive compensation at the hourly rate of one-sixth (1/6) of the per diem salary of the Class I zero (0) Step of the salary schedule in effect when the service is rendered for each hour. The

provisions of this subsection shall apply for determining compensation for extra-duty assignments which involve student instruction (examples - banquet coordination and carpentry house coordination which involves student participation and instruction).

7.084 <u>Method of Payment</u>

- A. When work is completed and accepted, an invoice is to be presented to the principal (or designee) who will authorize payment.
- B. Purchase orders are to be encumbered upon agreement to proceed.

7.085 <u>Course of Study/Curriculum Implementation</u>

- A. All work for course of study/curriculum development is to be coordinated through the principal (or designee) using the following guidelines:
 - 1. Number of hours to be contracted is to be mutually agreed upon between a bargaining unit member and the principal (or designee) with the approval of the Superintendent.
 - 2. Additional funds approved by the principal (or designee) and Superintendent shall be allocated for expenses incurred in accordance with expense account procedures.
 - 3. Timelines will be established by the principal (or designee) and the bargaining unit member.
 - 4. Prior to the commencement of writing/updating course of study/curriculum, the development plan will be presented to the Superintendent for approval.
 - 5. The bargaining unit member will log his/her hours worked on a weekly basis, which is to be submitted to the principal (or designee).
 - 6. If extenuating circumstances require more time for completion than originally agreed to, then approval of the Superintendent is required before continuance.

7.09 ADULT EDUCATION CLASSES

- 7.091 A bargaining unit member may attend an adult education class offered by the District tuition-free on a space available basis until the class is full if the class has at least twelve (12) enrollees and the class is State-reimbursed. In such a case, the only charge to the member would be for books and other consumable supplies.
- 7.092 In all cases not covered under subsection 7.091 above, a bargaining unit member will be charged based on the number of enrollees but in no event more than the charge applicable to one not employed by the Board.
- 7.093 A bargaining unit member who believes a class is directly related to his/her essential job functions may apply in writing to the Superintendent for professional visitation and payment by the Board of any cost. Any such application will be evaluated and responded to case-by-case by the Superintendent (or designee).

ARTICLE VIII

WORK YEAR AND WORK DAY

8.01 WORK YEAR

8.011 Length of Work Year

The base work year for a bargaining unit member shall not exceed a total of one hundred eighty-four (184) days divided as follows:

- A. One hundred eighty (180) days for instruction, which may include two (2) days in which classes are dismissed for the purpose of individualized parent/teacher conferences;
- B. Two (2) days for in-service meetings;
- C. One (1) orientation day on the week day immediately preceding the first (1st) day of instruction; and
- D. One (1) work day, without classes, immediately following the last day of instruction.

Professional Development Day

In addition to the 184 required work days per school year, bargaining unit members will be required to complete a professional development work day.

- A. At least one-half of this day will be dedicated to facilitating the completion of state/federal government mandated professional development (eg., Public Works, etc.). Online training will be completed by August 31 at a location of the teacher's discretion.
- B. The other half (1/2) day will be required attendance at one Orientation Night.
- C. Bargaining unit members shall be compensated at their per diem rate of pay for this day. Payments will be made upon verified completion of the online professional training and attendance at one orientation night.

8.012 <u>Extended Time</u>

Extended time in addition to the one hundred eighty-four (184) days identified in subsection 8.011 above will be as follows:

- 1. Cooperative programs with entire class placed year long in on-the-job training for one-half (1/2) day: Career-Based Intervention - fifteen (15) days;
- 2. Guidance twenty (20) days.
- 3. New hires five-fifteen (5-15) days in the first year of employment to be evaluated case by case.
- 4. All other positions, two (2) days to be used as follows:
 - a. Perform extended service for one (1) day to be used for laboratory/classroom preparation and student orientation (where student orientation is applicable).
 - b. One (1) other day for laboratory preparation or youth club activities as approved by the Supervisor.

8.013 Other Extended Days and Supplementals

Other extended days (at the employee's per diem) and supplementals (at 1/6th of Class I zero (0) step of the salary schedule) are to be granted on an as-needed basis as determined by the Superintendent with the employee's concurrence. The Superintendent will not exercise his/her discretion in this regard arbitrarily or capriciously. It is recognized, by way of example, that, where multiple applicants to participate in a particular function exist, a determination to permit one (1) or more, but not all, to participate on a paid basis while others are authorized to participate on an unpaid basis, or to permit all applicants for a function to participate only on an unpaid basis, is not arbitrary or capricious.

8.014 <u>Competition/Events/Overnight Compensation</u>

Independent of any paid time provided for elsewhere in this Agreement, the following Student Organization Competition/Events/Overnight Compensation provisions will be implemented for bargaining unit members who are approved to accompany, chaperone, and directly assist students who participate in local/district/regional and/or state/national/international youth club competitions or other District-approved events (i.e. leadership conferences, etc.):

- A. Forms must be submitted within 30 days of the return date of competition/event to the Treasurer's office for reimbursement.
- B. For any competition/event wherein a bargaining unit member is responsible for the supervision of students overnight, the member will receive \$150 for any workday overnight and \$200 for any overnight that includes/encompasses a non-school day.

8.02 WORK DAY

- 8.021 A work day is broadly defined as eight (8) hours, on the average, devoted to the responsibilities of the job. While it is understood that an average day will normally not require a bargaining unit member to be on duty the entire eight (8) hours, special events may require more than eight (8) hours. The occasion will be announced in advance so that proper arrangements may be made.
- 8.022 Bargaining unit members will have a minimum thirty (30) minute duty-free lunch to be scheduled after 10:25 a.m.
- 8.023 Bargaining unit members will have a minimum of one (1) thirty (30) minute planning period during the regular workday while students are in session.
- 8.024 Any bargaining unit member may consult with the principal prior to the end of the school year on the employee's anticipated class schedule and duty assignments for the subsequent school year based on the information then known.
- 8.025 Reasonable efforts will be taken by the Administration, with input from bargaining unit members, to make teacher classroom preparations and student load equitable. The administration will consider class size, student load, class preparations, industry standards, useable square footage of the classroom/lab, the number of work stations, safety protocol, and the number of students with IEPs and 504 accommodation plans assigned to a class when determining appropriate class sizes and/or the need for aide services.
- 8.026 Every effort will be made to schedule senior labs that offer early placement in the afternoon.

8.03 MEETINGS CALLED BY ADMINISTRATORS

8.031 <u>General Staff Meeting</u>

The Administration may call twelve (12) general staff meetings per work year provided all bargaining unit members affected are given at least seven (7) days notice of such meeting. In no case, however, may the Administration hold more than two (2) such meetings in any one (1) calendar month.

8.032 <u>Departmental Meetings</u>

The Administration may call departmental, curriculum and/or youth activity meetings on a basis not to exceed twelve (12) per work year, provided all bargaining unit members affected are notified at least seven (7) days in advance.

8.033 Length of Meeting

A bargaining unit member will not be required to remain longer than forty-five (45) minutes beyond the normal scheduled departure time to attend any of the above meetings.

8.034 <u>Restrictions</u>

No meeting where attendance is required shall be scheduled for the last school day of any workweek, unless mutually agreed between the parties.

8.04 COMBINED/DUAL PROGRAMS

Career Technical instructors who are assigned to a program which due to enrollment must operate as a combined junior-senior program, shall receive an assigned aide.

8.05 IEP CONFERENCES

I.E.P. conferences will be conducted in accordance with state and federal regulations.

8.06 NEW PROGRAM DELIVERY ASSIGNMENTS

Teachers, other than those newly hired by the District, who are assigned for the first time to a new vocational or academic program delivery model (excluding combined/dual programs) shall be provided with the following additional benefits:

- 1. Instructors of a new program delivery model shall receive \$1,500.00 for implementation.
- 2. Elimination of all extra duty assignments as directed by the supervisor (i.e., consulting time for coordinating correlated math and science courses).

3. The provisions of this Section shall be effective only for teachers in their first year of a new program delivery assignment as identified by the Administration.

ARTICLE IX

INSURANCE

9.01 MEDICAL INSURANCE PLAN

9.011 <u>Right to Coverage</u>

The Board shall provide a comprehensive healthcare plan through a carrier licensed by the State of Ohio, for each bargaining unit member and his/her family through the Medical Mutual SHC Alternate Ideal Plan as set forth in the benefit plan document in Appendix L. The employee's monthly premium contribution cost will be ten percent (10%) of the Board-provided coverage up to a maximum of \$225 family and \$110 single. A comprehensive healthcare plan for purposes of this agreement is defined as one which includes medical insurance, prescription insurance, dental insurance, and vision insurance.

9.012 <u>Spousal Exclusion</u>

If an employee's spouse is eligible to participate, as a current employee or retiree in group health insurance and/or prescription drug insurance sponsored by his/her employer or any public retirement plan, the spouse must enroll in such employer (or public retirement plan) sponsored group insurance coverage(s).

This requirement does not apply to any working spouse who works less than 30 hours per week AND is required to pay more than 50% of the single premium to participate in his/her employer's group health insurance coverage and/or prescription drug insurance coverage, or a retired spouse who is required to pay more than 50% of the single premium in his/her public retirement health insurance and/or prescription drug coverage.

Upon the spouse's enrollment in any such employer (or public retirement plan) sponsored group insurance coverage, that coverage will become the primary payor of benefits and the coverage sponsored by the Board will become the secondary payor of benefits. Any employee's spouse who fails to enroll in any group insurance coverage sponsored by his/her employer or any public retirement plan, at least on a single enrollment basis at the first open enrollment opportunity with such spouse's employer as required by this Section, shall be ineligible for benefits under such group insurance coverage sponsored by the Board.

Every employee whose spouse participates in the Board of Education's group health insurance coverage and/or prescription drug insurance coverage shall complete and submit to the Board, upon request, a written certification verifying whether his/her spouse is eligible to participate in group health insurance coverage and/or prescription drug insurance coverage sponsored by the spouse's employer or any public retirement plan. If any employee fails to complete and submit the certification form by the required date, such employee's spouse will be removed immediately from all health and prescription drug insurance coverages sponsored by the Board. Additional documentation may be required.

A change in the employee's spouse's circumstances i.e., termination of spouse's employment; or disqualification or change in spouse's eligibility for medical benefits, the spouse will be returned to the District health insurance plan upon appropriate notification to the Treasurer's office without a gap in coverage.

If an employee submits false information or fails to timely advise the Plan of a change in the employee spouse's eligibility for employer (or public retirement plan) sponsored group health insurance and/or prescription drug insurance, and such false information or such failure by an employee results in the Plan providing benefits to which the employee's spouse is not entitled, the employee will be personally liable to the Plan for reimbursement of benefits and expenses, including attorneys' fees and costs, incurred by the Plan. Any amount to be reimbursed by the employee may be deducted from the benefits to which the employee would otherwise be entitled. In addition, the employee's spouse will be terminated immediately from group health insurance and/or prescription drug insurance coverage under the Plan. If an employee submits false information, he/she may be subject to disciplinary action by the Board, up to and including termination of employment.

Any employee whose spouse has been excluded from the District's health insurance coverage on a primary basis as a result of the operation of this section will be provided with a health insurance adjustment stipend, payable at the end of any calendar year (first payroll in January), in an amount equal to the excess paid by said spouse for single coverage for that year over \$1,500. For purposes of determining this payment, the amount paid for single coverage will be the lowest cost single coverage offered by the spouse's employer. In addition, the maximum amount of the stipend will not exceed \$1,500. In order to receive payment of this stipend, the employee must provide full documentation of insurance information and paid receipts for the spouse's premium payments.

9.013 <u>Right to Change Coverage Status</u>

- A. A bargaining unit member may change the coverage status (single or family) effective the first (1st) of any month, subject to any requirement of the insurance carrier.
- B. Bargaining unit members may enroll at their initial employment or any time thereafter, effective the first of any month, subject to the rules and regulations of the insurance carrier. Once enrolled, a bargaining unit member shall remain enrolled for twelve (12) consecutive months except in the event of loss of dependent status; change of marital status; termination of spouse's employment; or disqualification or change in spouse's medical benefits.
- C. The parties shall maintain the insurance study committee composed of four (4) bargaining unit members appointed by the Association and four (4) employees appointed by the Superintendent. This committee shall report its recommendations made by consensus to the Board and Association annually by April 1 and any recommendations shall be approved by the Association and the Board before implementation.

9.02 TERM LIFE INSURANCE

9.021 <u>Right to Coverage</u>

The Board shall provide through a carrier licensed by the State of Ohio group term life insurance in the amount of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000) plus an equal amount of accidental death and dismemberment coverage for each bargaining unit member. The full cost of such insurance and any increases shall be paid by the Board.

9.022 <u>Right to Purchase Additional Coverage</u>

The Board shall allow individual bargaining unit members to purchase additional amounts of coverage through payroll deduction, provided the number of individuals electing to take advantage of this opportunity is adequate to meet any requirements of the insurance carrier.

9.023 Option to Purchase Permanent, Whole, or Paid-up Life Insurance

A bargaining unit member shall have the option to purchase permanent, whole or paid-up life insurance at an amount equal to the total provided in subsection 9.021 above. The cost of this insurance, in excess of that provided for in subsection 9.021, shall be paid by the bargaining unit member through payroll deduction. This option shall be available provided there is sufficient interest to meet any requirements of the insurance carrier.

9.03 PRESCRIPTION DRUG

9.031 <u>Right to Coverage</u>

The Board shall provide through a carrier licensed by the State of Ohio prescription drug coverage for each bargaining unit member and his/her family in accordance with the benefit plan document attached as Appendix L.

9.04 DENTAL INSURANCE

9.041 <u>Right to Coverage</u>

The Board shall provide through a carrier licensed by the State of Ohio dental insurance which meets or exceeds the specifications set forth in subsection 9.042. This insurance coverage is subject to network and non-network adjustments.

9.042 <u>Specifications:</u>

A. Maximum benefits per person

	Class I, II and/or III Class IV	\$2,500/year \$1,000 per person lifetime
В.	Deductible - Individual Family (for Classes II, III)	\$50 per calendar year \$100 per calendar year
C.	Benefits Paid	

1. Class I - Preventive and Diagnostic No deductible; 100% of Usual, Customary and Reasonable charges

Routine Oral Exams one every six (6) months Teeth Cleaning one every six (6) months Fluoride Treatments once every twelve (12) months Emergency Paid Treatments Space Maintainers Diagnostic x-rays Tests and Lab Exams

2.	Class II - Basic	85% of the Usual, Customary
	Restorative	and Reasonable Charges

Fillings - Amalgams, Silicate, Acrylic Root Canal Therapy Treatment of Gum Disease Repair of Bridgework and Dentures Extractions and Oral Surgery General Anesthesia only if medically necessary

3. Class III - Major 75% of the Usual, Customary and Reasonable Charges

Inlays, Onlays, Gold Fillings or Crown Restorations Initial Installation of Fixed Bridgework Installation of Partial or Full, Removable Dentures Replacement of Existing Bridgework or Dentures

4. Class IV -Orthodontia No deductible: 60% of Usual, Customary Charges with a lifetime maximum benefit of \$1,000 per person

Full Banded Orthodontic Treatment Appliances for Tooth Guidance Appliances to Control Harmful Habits Retention Appliances Not in Connection with Full Banded Treatment

9.05 VISION INSURANCE

- 9.051 The Board shall provide through a carrier licensed by the State of Ohio vision insurance which meets or exceeds the specifications set forth in subsection 9.053 below.
- 9.052 A bargaining unit member may change the coverage status (single or family) effective the first (1st) of any month subject to the rules and regulations of the carrier.
- 9.053 Specifications:

Examination as needed - UCR coverage for vision examinations as needed.

Frames - UCR coverage for new frames every twelve (12) months per individual.

Lens - UCR coverage for glass or plastic lenses, either clear or tinted, every twelve (12) months per individual.

Contact Lens - Contact lens for cosmetic purposes will receive a \$75 allowance.

9.06 GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 9.061 The Board shall provide to the Association one (1) copy of each signed contract entered into between the Board and the Insurance Company(ies) which shall provide benefits specified in this Agreement. Copies of existing contracts shall be provided to the Association following ratification of this Agreement by both parties.
- 9.062 Following the signing of this Agreement and thereafter as amendments of coverages are made, each bargaining unit member shall receive a plan description for each insurance benefit provided by this Agreement when the Board receives same from carrier.
- 9.063 If overall health insurance costs rise in any one (1) year, and the Board and Association cannot agree on an alternative insurer or alternative plan specifications, the Board may elect to self-insure, either singly or in combination with other employers, so long as (1) coverage and benefit levels meet or exceed the levels currently in place, and (2) the stop-loss coverage is unlimited. Such selfinsurance will continue until the parties reach agreement on an alternative insurer or alternative plan specifications. The Board and its agents will require no more personal details in insurance records to which they have access than is reasonably necessary for administering the self-insured plan and will keep personal medical information confidential to the extent feasible.
 - 9.064 Payroll deductions for employee insurance contributions will be made bimonthly (<u>i.e.</u>, contributions for a particular month will be made from the first two (2) pays of the preceding month), with an insurance year of July 1 through June 30 and a May enrollment period.

9.07 PAYMENT FOR OPTING OUT OF INSURANCE

9.071 A full-time bargaining unit member who elects to opt out of all insurance fringe benefits (except life insurance) will receive a payment of \$2,500 (family coverage) or \$1,500 (single coverage) for each full insurance year (July 1 through June 30) during which such benefits are not taken. It is mutually understood that such payments shall be made through the District's qualified 125 benefit plan and may constitute taxable income to the affected employee. For the purpose of this provision, an employee will be

deemed to have opted out of insurance fringe benefits only if the employee and all of the employee's eligible dependents are not covered under the Board-provided insurance plans.

- 9072To qualify for payment, the employee must notify the Board Treasurer in writing by June 15 of his/her election to opt out of benefits for the following insurance year; provided, however, that if the employee gives such written notice after June 15 but by not later than September 15, he/she will still qualify for such payment but such payment will be prorated in accordance with the formula appearing in the immediately succeeding sentence of this subsection. A new employee hired after July 1 may elect at the outset of employment to opt out of benefits, in which case the payment will be prorated on the basis of all full months within that insurance year for which coverage is not taken (for example, if hired on October 15, the payment would be 8/12 of the amount that would otherwise be due). An employee who opts out may not thereafter opt into benefits during that insurance year except by reason of a qualifying change in insurance status, in which case the employee may opt in but will thereby lose any right to the payment.
- 9.073 Payment to the employee will be made on the second regularly scheduled payday in August following the insurance year for which payment is made.

9.08 125 BENEFIT PLAN

9.081 The Board agrees that it will establish a cafeteria plan under Internal Revenue Code ("IRC") Section 125. The plan will be designed to permit employees to pay on a pre-tax basis their required employee contributions toward the cost of the premiums or other payments that are required under the medical plan of the District. The plan also will have two (2) flexible spending account ("FSA") features. The FSAs will be designed to permit employees to elect to make pre-tax employee contributions to one or both of the accounts; and, therefore, to have the opportunity of receiving reimbursement of (1) medical or other health expenses of an employee, employee's spouse or dependents which are not covered by the medical plan of the District or other insurance, and/or (2) dependent care expenses gualified under IRC Section 129. The terms of the cafeteria plan will be determined by the Board and the Board will interpret and administer the plan as the Board deems necessary for compliance with the IRC Section 125, other IRC provisions, and applicable regulations (including proposed regulations) and rulings thereunder. To the extent required for compliance with IRC Section 125, the Board may also provide for

additional restrictions on the timing of employee elections of coverage under the medical plan of the District. The Board and its Treasurer will prepare IRS Form W-2s and withhold taxes as it reasonably believes is required by law.

9.082 The monthly participant fee will be paid by the employee.

ARTICLE X

EVALUATION PROCEDURES

A. <u>OTES/OSCES</u>

For OTES teachers, the District will utilize the Board's Standards-Based Teacher Evaluation System set forth in Appendix F-1, for OSCES counselors, the District will utilize the Board's Standards-Based Counselor Evaluation System set forth in Appendix F-2, both of which have been mutually developed by the parties. All matters contained within the Systems shall be considered grievable under the grievance procedure contained within this contract.

Any revisions to the Board's Standards-Based Teacher/Counselor Evaluation Systems must be bargained prior to implementation in accordance with law.

B. <u>STAFF EVALUATION COMMITTEE</u>

The Staff Evaluation Committee will continue to provide additional stakeholder input and facilitate the statutorily required consultation with teachers relative to the development and subsequent revision of that Board evaluation system in addition to making recommendations to the Board and Association for approval to changes to this Article for Non-OTES/OSCES teachers.

1. Composition

In addition to participating administrators, the Committee shall be comprised of eight (8) bargaining unit members appointed by the Association President.

- 2. Operational Procedures
 - a. The Committee shall be chaired jointly by a bargaining unit Committee member and an administrator.
 - b. Members of the Committee should be OTES and/or OSCES trained prior to beginning their work. If training prior to beginning work on the committee isn't possible, the member/s will be trained as soon as possible after appointment to the committee.
 - c. The Committee will establish by mutual agreement a meeting calendar and timeline for work completion.

- d. The Committee may establish sub-committees to assist with their work whose members will be jointly appointed by the Committee co-chairs.
- e. All decisions of the committee and any subcommittees established by the committee will be achieved by consensus.
- 3. Compensation

Any Committee work required outside of the work day will be paid at the period substitute rate per hour as approved by the Committee co-chairs.

Release time for Committee work may be granted by the Superintendent upon recommendation of the co-chairs.

4. Secretarial Support

The Board will provide necessary clerical support and assistance to the Committee.

5. Committee Authority

The Committee shall not have the authority to negotiate wages, hours or terms and conditions of employment.

10.01 PROCEDURE (NON-OTES/OSCES TEACHERS)

Non-OTES/OSCES certified/licensed staff will be evaluated by procedures and instruments developed by the Staff Evaluation Committee, utilizing the statutory time frames (i.e., May 1, May 10, June 1).

10.02 FAIR TREATMENT (OTES/OSCES and Non-OTES/OSCES Members)

The evaluation of bargaining unit members shall be evidence-based and shall not be arbitrary or capricious.

ARTICLE XI

INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS

11.01 RIGHT TO REPRESENTATION

A bargaining unit member shall have the right to have an Association representative, of his/her choosing, present as a witness in any conference with an Administrator which the bargaining unit member has reason to believe may result in his/her being disciplined. Further, at the request of the bargaining unit member, a conference may be adjourned to enable the bargaining unit member to procure a representative. Once the bargaining unit member has an Association representative present, the Administrator likewise may have a witness.

11.02 ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILE

11.021 <u>Right to Review File</u>

- A. A bargaining unit member has the right, when providing notice, to review the contents of his/her personnel file and to receive the initial copy of any documents contained therein, exclusive of pre-employment references at no cost to him/her.
- B. A bargaining unit member is entitled to have an Association representative accompany him/her during such review.
- C. At least once (1) every two (2) years a bargaining unit member has the right to indicate those documents, and/or other material(s) in his/her file which he/she believes to be obsolete or otherwise inappropriate for retention. The documents will be reviewed by the appropriate Administrator and if he/she agrees the documents will be forwarded to the District Records Commission for disposal in accordance with the Board's adopted schedule.

11.022 <u>Contents of File</u>

The personnel file shall include teaching certificate(s)/license(s), necessary license(s), health certificate(s), academic record(s), preemployment references, application form(s), teaching contract(s), evaluation documents, documents of disciplinary action, commendations and/or complaints.

11.023 <u>Right to be Informed of Material to be Placed in File</u>

Documents of evaluation, disciplinary action and/or complaints shall not be placed in the personnel file unless the bargaining unit member has had an opportunity to read the material. The individual will acknowledge that he/she has had the opportunity to read the material by affixing his/her signature to the copy to be filed. It is understood that such signature in no way indicates agreement with the contents thereof. The bargaining unit member will also have the right to submit a written answer to such material(s) and his/her answer will be attached to the file copy as long as such written materials are received within thirty (30) days after notification of placement in the personnel file. Should the bargaining unit member refuse to sign the file copy, such refusal shall be noted and the material may then be placed in the file.

11.024 Supervision of File

Personnel files are maintained under the Superintendent's supervision.

11.025 Review of File by Someone Other than the Administration

In the event any person, other than the employee's immediate supervisor or other administrator or a law enforcement officer, seeks to review the personnel file of a bargaining unit member, the member will be notified. Bargaining unit members shall also be notified when law enforcement officers review their files.

11.03 DISCIPLINE

11.031 <u>Standard for Discipline</u>

No bargaining unit member shall be disciplined by the Board or any of its agents in an arbitrary or capricious manner. Suspensions and/or terminations of bargaining unit members will be in accordance with law and for good and just cause.

11.032 <u>Progressive Discipline</u>

Disciplinary action shall consist of four (4) steps. It is understood that such action shall be commensurate with the severity of the bargaining unit member's offense, may be initiated at any level, and may include the repetition of an action without progressing to the next step.

First Step:	Written warning(s) - not to be placed in the bargaining unit member's personnel file;
Second Step:	Written reprimand(s) - will incorporate comments relative to the written warnings in substantiation of previous problems;
Third Step:	Suspension(s) with or without pay;

Fourth Step:

11.04 COMPLAINTS

In the event of a complaint registered with the Administration concerning a bargaining unit member, an Administrator will initially meet with the member to discuss the nature of the complaint in an effort to resolve any issues presented. When practicable, the Administrator and bargaining unit member will meet with the complainant together in an effort to resolve the issue. Information will be gathered prior to initiating any action. It is further understood that unsubstantiated anonymous complaints will not become a matter of record, nor shall they affect the employment status or cause the discipline of a bargaining unit member. This process is not intended, however to preclude notification of law enforcement authorities of the surrounding circumstances, in an appropriate case, prior to such a meeting.

11.05 USE OF ELECTRONIC DEVICES

Neither party will record by mechanical or electronic means any evaluation conference, any grievance, any negotiation session, or any other meetings between Board representatives, Association representatives and Association members without the knowledge and consent of the other party.

11.06 DEDUCTIONS

- 11.061 The Board is permitted to act on behalf of the individual employee to deduct a certain amount from the employee's pay and remit to an agent designated by the employee. It is the purpose of this Section to designate those purposes not otherwise mandated by law for which the Board is willing to act on behalf of an employee and specify the fee for so doing.
- 11.062 The Board is required by the ORC to make payroll deductions from the wages of employees for federal and state income tax, municipal income tax (Section 9.42), and State Teachers Retirement System (Section 3307.26) without prior authorization; and for U.S. savings bonds (Section 9.40) upon individual authorization. Any other deduction requires court action or prior Board authorization.
- 11.063 The Board authorizes in accordance with the provisions of law cited herein deductions be made from an employee's pay upon proper authorization on the appropriate form for the following purposes:
 - A. Savings in a chartered credit union (Section 9.43)

- B. Contributions to charitable corporations, not-for-profit groups and community fund organizations (Section 9.80, 9.81)
- C. Payment of dues to labor or other organizations (Section 9.41)
- D. Payment of group insurance premiums for a plan in which at least 10% of the District employees participate (Section 3917.04)
- E. Savings in a tax-exempt shelter annuity upon the terms and conditions cited in law (Section 9.90, 9.91)
- F. Fund for Children and Public Education (FCPE) the minimum contributions per pay must be five dollars (\$5.00), unless otherwise mutually agreed case-by-case.
- 11.064 The Board Treasurer shall make such deductions as each employee may properly authorize for those matters approved herein by the Board and may make additional deductions authorized by law.

ARTICLE XII

ASSIGNMENTS, TRANSFERS AND VACANCIES

12.01 ASSIGNMENT

12.011 <u>New or Transferred Bargaining Unit Member</u>

A bargaining unit member who is new to the District, who is transferred, or whose assignment is changed under subsection 12.013 below will be served notice of his/her subject area, grade level and room assignment as soon as practicable. Except in cases of emergency, such notice shall be given not later than August 15.

12.012 <u>Transfer Defined</u>

Subject to subsection 12.013 below, a transfer shall be defined as a change in subject area or a change in grade level assignment or location.

12.013 Change in Academics Instructor's Assignment

A change in assignment within the area of certification/licensure to which an academics or applied academics instructor is assigned does not constitute a transfer within the meaning of this Article. Recognizing that an instructor may have a more comprehensive certificate/licensure than another instructor with the same assignment, "area of certification" for this purpose means the narrowest scope of certification/licensure under State standards that covers the assignment in question. Changes in assignment under this provision will be implemented only after consultation with the affected instructor(s). If a voluntary change in assignment is deemed feasible by the Administration, it will be implemented in preference to an involuntary change in assignment. The Administration will minimize involuntary changes to the extent practicable.

12.02 INVOLUNTARY TRANSFER

12.021 <u>Notice of Involuntary Transfer</u>

The Superintendent will provide a bargaining unit member with written notice of his/her intention to involuntarily transfer the bargaining unit member to another grade level and/or subject area as soon as is practicable. Except in cases of emergency, such notice shall be given not later than July 1.

When more than one (1) bargaining unit member is certified in the subject area of the involuntary transfer, the employee with the least seniority (as defined in Article VI, Section 6.04) shall be the person

transferred involuntarily unless the basis of the transfer involves factors and circumstances that would make application of such a seniority preference inappropriate.

12.022 <u>Conference to Discuss Involuntary Transfer</u>

Before the involuntary transfer is finalized the bargaining unit member will be given an opportunity to discuss the need for, and the propriety of, such involuntary transfer with the Superintendent. The bargaining unit member may, at his/her option, have a representative of the Association present at such meeting and receive the written reason(s) for such involuntary transfer.

12.023 <u>Verification of Receipt of Notice</u>

Notice of the intent to make an involuntary transfer shall be signed for or sent by certified mail to the bargaining unit member. If the individual fails to request a meeting to discuss the involuntary transfer within seven (7) days of receipt of the notice, or if the post office is unable to deliver the notice, the Superintendent may proceed to make the involuntary transfer without discussing it with the bargaining unit member involved.

12.024 <u>Reason for Involuntary Transfer</u>

In the event the Superintendent makes an involuntary transfer to meet a specific educational need, he shall provide the bargaining unit member affected with a written explanation of such need. The explanation shall not be without a rational basis in fact.

12.025 <u>Restrictions</u>

Except for involuntary transfer referred to in Section 12.02, no bargaining unit member will be involuntarily transferred.

12.03 VOLUNTARY TRANSFER

If a bargaining unit member meeting certification/licensure qualifications requests a voluntary transfer to a vacant position, the member shall be granted an interview by the Superintendent and/or other administrators, and if denied the request shall be given written reasons for the denial.

12.04 NOTICE OF VACANCIES

12.041 <u>Vacancy in Bargaining Unit Position Defined</u>

Except when Article VI (Reduction in Staff) is in effect, a vacancy in a bargaining unit position shall exist when the Board determines to fill a position after any of the following occurrences:

- A. A bargaining unit member dies;
- B. A bargaining unit member resigns;
- C. A bargaining unit member retires;
- D. A bargaining unit member is transferred;
- E. A bargaining unit member is promoted;
- F. A bargaining unit member has his/her limited teaching contract non-renewed;
- G. A bargaining unit member has his/her teaching contract terminated; and/or
- H. A new position is created within the bargaining unit.

12.042 <u>Vacancy Outside the Bargaining Unit Defined</u>

A vacancy in a non-bargaining unit position shall exist as determined by the Board.

12.043 <u>Posting of Vacancy (August 15 through May 31)</u>

When a vacancy occurs between August 15 and May 31 it shall be posted on the staff bulletin board within fifteen (15) days of the decision to fill the vacancy. Bargaining unit members regularly assigned outside the Medina County Career Center will be afforded written notice of such a vacancy within the aforesaid fifteen (15)day period. Vacancies which the Board intends to fill arising after August 15 may be filled by a long-term substitute for the remainder of that contract year only.

12.044 Notice of Vacancy (June 1 through August 14)

When a vacancy occurs between June 1 and August 14, the Superintendent shall notify all properly certified/licensed bargaining unit members who have requested such notice and the Association President.

12.045 Request for Voluntary Transfer

A bargaining unit member requesting voluntary transfer to a vacant position for the coming school year shall so notify the Superintendent in writing within fifteen (15) days of the posting or the postmark or dispatch of the notice of vacancy providing the vacancy occurs before August 1. Vacancies occurring after August 1 shall be filled at the discretion of the Superintendent and do not have to be posted.

ARTICLE XIII

LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

13.01 COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The Local Professional Development Committee (LPDC) established under this Article shall perform the functions mandated by ORC Section 3319.22 and the rules promulgated under that statute by the State Board of Education. The LPDC shall consist of three (3) bargaining unit members (and one alternate) appointed by the Association and two (2) administrative employees (and one alternate) appointed by the Superintendent and shall exercise District-wide responsibility.

13.02 TERM OF OFFICE

Each LPDC member shall serve a three-year term. Any LPDC vacancy will be filled by the Association or Superintendent, whichever has appointing authority with respect to the vacancy in question.

13.03 ESTABLISHMENT OF MEETINGS

- 13.031 The frequency, time, and place of meetings shall be established by the LPDC.
- 13.032 An LPDC member shall be compensated at the rate of one-sixth (1/6) of the per diem salary at the Class I zero (0) step of the salary schedule in effect for that school year for approved (by consensus of the LPDC) LPDC work performed outside the regular workday or work year.
- 13.033 LPDC members shall be reimbursed for all actual and necessary expenses incurred as part of their LPDC work.

13.04 TRAINING

- 13.041 LPDC members shall be afforded the opportunity to attend training on the purposes, responsibilities, implementation, functioning, and legal requirements of LPDCs.
- 13.042 If the training is available during regular working hours, an LPDC member may be provided release time to attend. If the training is not provided or is not available during the regular workday or work year, an LPDC member shall be compensated at the rate of one-sixth (1/6) of the per diem salary at the Class I zero (0) step of the salary schedule in effect for that school year.

13.05 EMPLOYEE PROTECTION

No reprisals or adverse employment decisions will be taken against a bargaining unit member by reason of his/her involvement in activities of the LPDC.

13.06 APPEALS PROCEDURE

- 13.061 The LPDC shall determine its own appeals procedure. When an administrator's course work is being reviewed, he/she may request to reduce the number of classroom instructors voting so that a majority of voting members are administrators.
- 13.062 The LPDC appeals procedure is not subject to the grievance procedure in Article III of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XIV

RESIDENT EDUCATOR PROGRAM

The Resident Educator Program for beginning teachers licensed after January 1, 2011, is for the purpose of providing educators with coaching, mentoring and guidance that are critical to improving their skills and knowledge and student achievement. The Resident Educator Program will be a Program administered and funded by the Board in alignment with ORC regulations and ODE guidelines.

This program shall be separate from and not replace the negotiated employee evaluation system.

- 14.01 DEFINITIONS
 - A. Resident Educator Program

The 4-Year Resident Educator Program is to provide nonevaluative support and mentoring to Resident Educators in a way that encourages and models effective teaching methods and techniques in their teaching and professional performance. The program is designed to assist new Resident Educators to experience success and professional growth. Successful completion of the Resident Educator Program will be required to qualify for a 5-Year Professional license.

B. Resident Educator Mentor (RE Mentor)

An RE Mentor is a bargaining unit current classroom teacher trained and assigned to provide professional support to a Resident Educator following the ODE guidelines and protocols of the Resident Educator Program in years one and two.

C. Resident Educator (RE)

A Resident Educator is a teacher employed under a resident educator license.

D. Resident Educator Program Coordinator (REPC)

The Resident Educator Program Coordinator is a bargaining unit member that shall be appointed by the Superintendent to coordinate the District's Resident Educator program. The REPC shall be a current classroom teacher and will, if an academic instructor, be released from all duties outside of his/her regular classroom teaching assignment or, if a CTE instructor, receive a forty (40) hour supplemental contract. The REPC shall follow the ODE guidelines and protocols of the Resident Educator Program. E. Resident Educator Facilitator (RE Facilitator)

The RE Facilitator shall be a bargaining unit current classroom teacher trained and assigned to facilitate REs through the Resident Educator Summative Assessment (RESA) in the third and fourth year of the Resident Educator Program following the ODE guidelines and protocols of the Resident Educator Program.

F. Formative Assessment

Formative Assessment is diagnostic and designed to yield information that will help teachers identify specific areas for skill enhancement. Formative assessment consists of collaboration among professionals to provide adequate feedback and assistance to support the growth of individual professional achievement.

- 14.02 REPC, RE Mentor, and RE Facilitators
- A. Qualifications
 - 1. The REPC must have Continuing Contract status, be a bargaining unit member, be a current classroom teacher and have a minimum of seven (7) consecutive years of teaching experience in the District, and must complete the ODE Program Coordinator and Mentor training.
 - 2. The RE Mentor Teacher and RE Facilitator must have a minimum of four (4) years teaching experience in the district and be a bargaining unit member, current classroom teacher and must be trained to act as a mentor/facilitator through the Ohio Department of Education Instructional Mentoring program.
 - 3. The REPC, and/or RE Mentor, and RE Facilitator Teacher must hold a valid teaching certificate/professional license.
 - 4. The REPC, RE Mentor, and RE Facilitator must have demonstrated the ability to work cooperatively and effectively with the professional staff members and have extensive knowledge of and proven experience in implementing a variety of classroom management and instructional techniques.
- B. Selection of RE Mentor/RE Facilitator

Selection of RE Mentor Teacher and RE Facilitator positions shall be made by the Superintendent in consultation with the REPC. Should no RE Mentor/RE Facilitator be available in the area of certification/licensure, the Superintendent, in consultation with the REPC, may assign a Mentor from within the subject area most closely related to that of the Resident Educator.

14.03 COMPENSATION

In addition to mutually agreed upon released time, each RE Mentor/RE Facilitator may be assigned up to two (2) Resident Educators per year and shall receive an annual supplemental stipend of \$1,000 per RE Mentee for years one (1) thru three (3) and a stipend of \$500 per year for years four (4) and beyond. In addition, the Board will pay all training fees required for RE Mentor/RE Facilitator Teachers to receive the mandatory ODE State mentor/facilitator training.

14.04 GENERAL

- A. Other than a notation to the effect that a teacher served as an RE Mentor/RE Facilitator, the teacher's activities in the above capacity shall not be part of that staff member's evaluation.
- B. No Resident Educator shall be required to remain in a resident educator program after advancing to a professional educator license.
- C. Neither the REPC nor any RE Mentor/RE Facilitator will participate in the District's evaluation of any Resident Educator.
- D. Neither the REPC nor any RE Mentor/RE Facilitator will be requested or directed to make any recommendation regarding the continued employment of the Resident Educator.
- E. Neither the REPC nor any RE Mentor/RE Facilitator will be requested or directed to divulge information from the written documentation or confidential RE Mentor/RE Facilitator /Resident Educator discussions. Any violation of this tenet by the RE Mentor/RE Facilitator shall constitute grounds for immediate removal from his/her role as RE Mentor/RE Facilitator.
- F. At any time, either the RE Mentor/RE Facilitator or the Resident Educator may request to have a new RE Mentor/RE Facilitator assigned. RE Mentor/RE Facilitator and the Resident Educator must operate in a trusting and comfortable relationship; therefore, no specifics shall be given as to the request or granting of this option and no prejudice or evaluation is to be given any such change. Decisions will be made by the Superintendent in consultation with the REPC.
- G. The REPC, RE Mentor/RE Facilitator and Resident Educators shall keep confidential all discussions, actions, materials and other information to the extent permitted by law.
- H. RE Mentor/RE Facilitator shall communicate directly with the Resident Educators and shall not discuss/report the performance and progress of the Resident Educator with any administrator, assessor, or other teacher, with the exception of the REPC.

14.05 PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES

The Superintendent, Administrator, REPC. RE Mentor, RE Facilitator and Resident Educator will faithfully execute their responsibilities as delineated in the most current ODE Resident Educator Program Standards and Guidelines, as well as the most current rendition of ORC 3319.223.

ARTICLE XV

EMPLOYMENT OF STRS RETIREES

15.01 TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

This Article governs the terms and conditions of employment of any superannuate—defined as any person who has service retired under the State Teachers Retirement System (ORC Chapter 3307) or any other Ohio public employee retirement system—whom the Board may regularly employ in a position that falls within the description of the bargaining unit appearing in Article I, Section 1.01 of this Agreement. Except as otherwise specified below, any such employee will become a bargaining unit member upon employment and be subject to the provisions of this Agreement.

- 15.011 For initial placement purposes on the teachers' salary schedule, the employee will receive horizontal and vertical credit in accordance with the normal rules, with the further understanding that in no event will the employee receive more than ten (10) years of vertical credit unless otherwise recommended by the Superintendent case-by-case. In those circumstances where the superannuate has retired to STRS following service with the District and is re-employed, this provision shall supersede and replace ORC Sections 3317.13 and 3317.14 with respect to the definition of "years of service" in the same district.
- 15.012 Initially, the employee will receive a one-year limited contract of employment (if employed after the start of the school year, such contract will be for the remainder of that school year). If subsequently reemployed, the employee will thereafter be awarded contracts as specified in Article IV, Section 4.01 of this Agreement. In no event will the employee qualify for a continuing contract.
- 15.013 Neither the evaluation procedures resulting from Article X of this Agreement nor the procedures appearing in ORC Section 3319.111, 3319.112, or 3319.113 shall apply to the employee except as may be required by law. Evaluations may occur at the discretion of the Administration but are not required. The sole requirement for effecting the non-renewal of the employee's limited contract and severing the employment relationship upon expiration of the employee's contract is receipt by the employee of written notice from the Superintendent, on or before April 30 of the school year in which the contract expires (i.e., the last year of a multi-year contract), that the employee will not be reemployed for the following school year. No other notice is required and no action by the Board is required. The procedures appearing in ORC Section 3319.11, including the post-non-renewal procedures appearing in Section 3319.11(G), shall not apply to such contract non-renewal.

- 15.014 Upon employment, the employee will be credited with zero (0) years of seniority and thereafter will not accumulate seniority for any purpose under this Agreement.
- 15.015 The employee is eligible to participate in any insurance fringe benefits offered under Article IX of this Agreement.
- 15.016 The employee will in no event qualify for tuition reimbursement under Article VII, Section 7.07, Sabbatical Leave under Article V, Section 5.09, or severance pay under Article VII, Section 7.05 of this Agreement.

15.02 PROCEDURE

The provisions of this Article supersede and prevail over any inconsistent terms that may appear elsewhere in this Agreement or in any part of the Ohio Revised Code.

ARTICLE XVI

MASTER TEACHER

16.01 ESTABLISHMENT OF COMMITTEE

A Master Teacher Committee shall be established for the purpose of designating teachers in the District as a master teacher in conformance with state law and regulations. The Master Teacher Committee shall be comprised of a majority of practicing bargaining unit members. The Master Teacher Committee shall be comprised of five (5) members as follows:

- 16.012 Three (3) bargaining unit members appointed by the MCCCEA in a manner determined by the MCCCEA; and
- 16.013 Two (2) administrators appointed by the Superintendent.
- 16.014 All members shall hold current Ohio educator licenses.

16.02 OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES

- 16.021 The Master Teacher Committee shall collaboratively determine the time, location and number of committee meetings. The Master Teacher Committee members shall establish it's Plan of Operation for the appropriate designation of a master teacher including, but not limited to, the application and review processes, the dissemination of general information to local Association members and the appeal procedure. The Master Teacher Committee will be consistent with the regulations of the Ohio Department of Education.
- 16.022 <u>Vacancies</u>

The MCCCEA shall decide the process for removing a bargaining unit member from the Master Teacher Committee. The procedures used in the selection process described in Section 16.01 of the Article shall be used to fill any vacancy.

16.023 <u>Terms of Office</u>

The terms of office for MCCCEA members shall be staggered and be a period of three (3) years.

16.03 COMPENSATION

16.031 The Association Master Teacher Committee members may be provided release time for work pertaining to Master Teacher Committee duties that cannot be completed outside the workday. If work is done outside the teacher work day members will be paid at the supplemental hourly rate.

- 16.032 If monies become available and designated for the master teacher program, this money will be distributed under the guidelines as designated. In addition, should local, state, or federal funding become available for compensation of employees designated as master teachers, the MCJVSD Board of Education shall negotiate with the MCCCEA such compensation or monetary disbursement. In the absence of such funding, successful applicants for Master Teacher shall be compensated a one-time amount of \$500.
- 16.034 The Board will provide for ongoing training opportunities for members of the Master Teacher Committee.

16.04 SUPPORT SERVICES

The Master Teacher Committee shall be provided with adequate and secure space for the safe storage of records.

16.05 APPEALS PROCEDURE

The Master Teacher Committee appeals procedure is not subject to the grievance/arbitration procedure outlined in the collective bargaining agreement.

16.06 EMPLOYEE PROTECTION

Under no circumstances is the involvement in the activities of the Master Teacher Committee to be used for adverse employment decisions by the employer; also, involvement in the activities of the Master Teacher Committee will not have an adverse impact on the bargaining unit member's employment evaluation.

ARTICLE XVII

TEACHERS ASSISTING TEACHERS (TAT)

17.01 INTRODUCTION

The purpose of the Teachers Assisting Teachers (TAT) program is to provide bargaining unit members new to the District, regardless of whether or not assigned a mentor under the resident educator program, with a TAT Mentor for purposes of transitioning to the Career Center with an emphasis on the day to day operational functions of a teacher at the Medina County Career Center.

17.02 DEFINITIONS

Throughout this Article, "District mentee" means a classroom teacher to whom a TAT mentor is assigned, and "TAT Mentor" means an experienced teacher assigned under this Article to give professional support, as outlined above, to a District mentee.

17.03 PROCEDURE

- 17.031 A TAT Mentor shall have at least four (4) years of teaching experience in the District.
- 17.032 The Superintendent will assign a TAT Mentor to each newly employed full-time teacher hired by the Board. A newly hired teacher with prior teaching experience or a newly hired part-time teacher may be assigned a mentor. Such new employee may request a mentor. The TAT Mentor Selection Committee identified in subsection 17.037 below is empowered to make recommendations by consensus to the Superintendent who retains the ultimate authority to make this determination. One (1) TAT Mentor will be assigned to each District mentee for the complete school year (or for the remainder of the school year).
- 17.033 The assigned TAT Mentor and District Mentee will consult during their planning time, when possible, and at the beginning or end of the regular school day. Consultation time during the school day outside of planning time will be scheduled as deemed feasible by the principal.
- 17.034 The assigned TAT Mentor and District Mentee will both participate in the New Teacher Orientation Day in August. The TAT Mentor will receive an extra paid extended time day for this in-service. In addition, the TAT Mentor will be issued a supplemental contract. Payment under this provision will be made as follows:

- A. TAT Mentor of a first year teacher who is new to the Career Center \$1500.00.
- B. TAT Mentor of a teacher in years 2-4 of the profession and new to the Career Center \$750.00.
- C. TAT Mentor of a teacher with more than 5 years in the profession and new to the Career Center \$500.00.
- D. Payment under this provision will be made as follows:
 - 1. The supplemental contract will be paid at completion of the school year as a mentor.
 - 2. A TAT Mentor who withdraws from the program prior to completion will not receive payment.
 - 3. A TAT Mentor assigned to a District Mentee hired after the start of the school year will receive a prorated payment if the TAT Mentor completes the school year.
- 17.035 No TAT Mentor will be evaluated in his/her role as a mentor, but positive mention may be made in a TAT Mentor's regular teaching evaluation regarding participation in the program.
- 17.036 Any classroom/career technical teacher may volunteer to become a TAT Mentor by submitting a completed TAT Mentor application form to the principal.
- 17.037 A mentor selection committee composed of two (2) administrators and three (3) bargaining unit members appointed by the Association will review the candidates and select by consensus a pool of potential mentors who will be recommended to the Superintendent. From this pool, the Superintendent will assign mentors in accordance with subsection 17.032 above.
- 17.038 The TAT Mentor shall assist, but not evaluate, the District Mentee. Information shared between the TAT Mentor and the District Mentee as part of this program will not be used as part of the Board's evaluation of the District Mentee or as the basis for nonrenewal of either the TAT mentor or the District Mentee.

ARTICLE XVIII

EFFECTS AND DURATION OF CONTRACT

18.01 NON-DISCRIMINATION

No bargaining unit member shall be discriminated against by the Board or Association in violation of any federal or state laws prohibiting employment discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, handicap, age, sexual orientation or domicile.

18.02 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Board retains the rights, powers, duties, and obligations of management provided by the Ohio Revised Code, specifically Section 4117.08(C).

18.03 FILING AND MAINTENANCE OF CERTIFICATES/LICENSES

The Board is under no legal obligation to continue the employment of any bargaining unit member who fails to maintain appropriate licensure/certification.

18.04 CONFLICT OF LAW

If any provision of this Agreement or any application of the provision of this Agreement is found contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction, then such provision(s) of the Agreement or application thereof shall be inoperative, but the remaining provisions shall remain in effect. Upon request of either the Association or the Board within ten (10) days after knowledge of such finding, the parties will meet solely for the purpose of negotiating the affected provision.

18.05 DEFINITION OF TERMS

Throughout this Agreement, the terms certified, certificate, and certification shall be construed to also include, respectively, licensed, license, and licensure.

18.06 DURATION

This Agreement shall become effective upon ratification by the Association and adoption by the Board and shall remain in full force and effect through and including midnight June 30, 2022. BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE MEDINA COUNTY JOINT VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Steven Chrisman, Superintendent

Aaron Butts, Treasurer

C 000 ille Tresa Goodwin, Principal

Jeff Assistant Principal

MEDINA COUNTY CAREER CENTER EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

U

Susan Dodge, OEA LRC

Tom Tom Jackson, Association Co-President

Rich, Conkle, Instructor

XYO) e

Janette Forro, Instructor

ach Holdridge, Instructor 1

Dave Yorko, Instructor

82

CONSENSUS STATEMENT

ISSUE A-4/B-2 (2016)

WORK DAY AND WORK YEAR

1. During the collaborative discussions utilizing the interest based bargaining model which resulted in a successor agreement, representatives of the parties reached consensus on several important issues concerning the need to more adequately respect the time constraints placed upon teaching professionals. More specifically, though the language of the Agreement broadly references an eight (8) hour day ("on the average"), there was recognition that teachers often work in excess of that, whether it be on campus or off.

2. In light of the increasing and changing demands placed on the profession, there was consensus following lengthy and thoughtful dialogue, that the number and duration of meetings be carefully monitored by the Administration to account for these growing demands, with the goals of having targeted agendas, relevant and helpful information provided, and appropriate advance notification of the time and place of administratively directed meetings.

3. Further, because of this recognition of the nature of a typical teacher's day, the Administration agreed that to enhance a professional environment and reduce opportunities for misunderstanding, requests for variations on teacher work day for matters that arise during the course of the year will be channeled to/through the Principal. The goals here would be to reduce inconsistency and, at the same time, allow for the proper use of professional (if not informal) "flex" time. In addition to agreeing that communicating this updated process requires efforts by both the Administration and the Association, the parties also found mutuality around the importance and need for regular attendance by our teachers during instructional time.

4. The parties also addressed the unique circumstances existing at the Career Center with regard to the recently mandated changeover, for student accounting purposes, from "days" to "hours." While many of our contemporaries are discussing how to deal with time in excess of state minimums, given the distinctive structure and operational logistics of career and technical centers, the opposite holds true here and we must avoid having to overly extend the work year in order to satisfy the minimums. Consensus was reached that extending the student day slightly (8:05 start time) and adding "virtual" time through a universal "Employability" class requirement were strategies that will be piloted in the upcoming year in order to avoid or reduce problems engendered by calamity days. The Administration also committed to pursuing the development of meaningful online instruction options to assist in making up time lost to inclement weather.

<u>CONSENSUS STATEMENT</u> <u>FEBRUARY 19, 2019</u> <u>TRANSITIONING TO AUTOMATED ABSENCE REPORTING SYSTEM</u>

During the collaborative discussions utilizing the interest based bargaining model which resulted in a successor agreement, representatives of the parties reached consensus on the importance of an effective "roll out" of the expected transition of the Career Center to a more automated system of absence reporting and documentation. As the Board moves closer to obtaining a specific system and identifies a desired effective date for implementation, it was agreed that the parties would work closely to discuss logistics and address potential issues proactively, so as to allow for a stress-free transition to the new system. Since the implementation is likely to occur prior to the end of the 2019 - 2022 contract, it is expected that necessary language changes, if any, may be dealt with through memoranda of understanding with an eye toward ultimately updating/revising the contract during successor contract negotiations.

<u>CONSENSUS STATEMENT</u> <u>FEBRUARY 19, 2019</u> <u>PRESERVATION OF FAIR SHARE FEE LANGUAGE</u>

This section is null and void as a matter of law based on Supreme Court decision in *Janus v. AFSCME, Council 31*, 585 U.S. (2018) and will not be implemented, but is preserved should the law change in future years.

1.03 FAIR SHARE FEE

- 1.031 The Board shall deduct from the pay of bargaining unit members who elect not to become or to remain members of the Association, a Fair Share Fee for the Association's representation of such non-members during the term of this Agreement1. No nonmember filing a timely demand shall be required to subsidize partisan political or ideological causes not germane to the Association's work in the realm of collective bargaining.
- 1.032 The notice of the amount of the annual Fair Share Fee, which shall not be more than one hundred (100%) percent of the unified dues of the UEP (MCVCEA, NEOEA, UniServ, OEA, NEA) dues of the Association, shall be transmitted by the Association to the Board's Treasurer by September 15th of each year during the term of this Agreement for the purpose of determining the amounts to be payroll-deducted. The Association shall also transmit to the Board's Treasurer by September 15th the names of the teachers who have elected not to join the Association (those who will be paying a fair share fee).

¹This provision shall not apply to any bargaining unit members who, as of April 30, 2009, were not members of the Association and it is expressly agreed that these individuals will never be required to pay a fair share fee.

1.033 The Board's Treasurer will deduct the fair share fee from the paychecks of bargaining unit members on the first pay date which occurs on or after January 15th annually.

In case of newly hired bargaining unit members after the beginning of the school year, the payroll deduction shall commence on the first pay date on or after the later of:

- a. Sixty (60) calendar days employment in a bargaining unit position; or
- b. January 15th.
- *1.034 Termination of membership can only be done at the end of the membership year.*
- 1.035 The Fair Share Fee shall be the responsibility of the Association to prescribe an internal procedure to determine a rebate, if any, for nonmember which conforms to the provisions of Section 4117.09 (C) of the Ohio Revised Code.
- *1.036* No teacher is required to become a member of the Association.
- 1.037 The Association recognizes its obligation to fairly and equitably represent all teachers whether or not they are members of the Association.
- 1.038 The Association agrees to indemnify and hold the Board harmless from any payments, judgments, costs, or expenses incurred as a result of the implementation and enforcement of this provision provided that (1) the Board shall give ten (10) days written notice of any claim made or action filed against the employer by a non-member for which indemnification may be claimed; and (2) the Board acted in good faith compliance with the Fair Share Fee provision of this Agreement; however, there shall be no indemnification of the Board if the Board intentionally or willfully fails to apply (except due to court order) or misapplies such Fair Share Fee provision herein.
 - a. The Association reserves the right to designate counsel to represent and defend the Board; provided however that the Board reserves the right to employ cocounsel at its own expense.
 - b. The Board agrees to (1) give full and complete cooperation and assistance to the Association and its counsel at all levels of the proceeding, (2) permit the Association or its affiliates to intervene as a party if it so desires, and/or (3) to not oppose the Association or its affiliates' application to file briefs amicus curiae in the action.

CERTIFIED SALARY INDEX 2019-2020					
FY20	% increase	2.50%			\$39.47
Base	\$43,572.28				
		II		IV	V
0	\$43,572	\$44,879	\$46,082	\$48,592	\$51,102
	1	1.03	1.0576	1.1152	1.1728
1	\$46,082	\$47,389	\$48,592	\$51,102	\$53,611
	1.0576	1.0876	1.1152	1.1728	1.2304
2	\$48,592	\$49,899	\$51,102	\$53,611	\$56,121
	1.1152	1.1452	1.1728	1.2304	1.288
3	\$51,102	\$52,409	\$53,611	\$56,121	\$58,631
	1.1728	1.2028	1.2304	1.288	1.3456
4	\$53,611	\$54,919	\$56,121	\$58,631	\$61,141
	1.2304	1.2604	1.288	1.3456	1.4032
5	\$56,121	\$57,428	\$58,631	\$61,141	\$63,650
	1.288	1.318	1.3456	1.4032	1.4608
6	\$58,631	\$59,938	\$61,141	\$63,650	\$66,160
	1.3456	1.3756	1.4032	1.4608	1.5184
7	\$61,141	\$62,448	\$63,650	\$66,160	\$68,670
	1.4032	1.4332	1.4608	1.5184	1.576
8	\$63,650	\$64,958	\$66,160	\$68,670	\$71,180
	1.4608	1.4908	1.5184	1.576	1.6336
9	\$66,160	\$67,467	\$68,670	\$71,180	\$73,689
10	1.5184	1.5484	1.576	1.6336	1.6912
10	\$68,670	\$69,977	\$71,180	\$73,689	\$76,199
	1.576	1.606	1.6336	1.6912	1.7488
11	\$71,180	\$72,487	\$73,689	\$76,199	\$78,709
10	1.6336	1.6636	1.6912	1.7488	1.8064
12	\$73,689	\$74,997	\$76,199	\$78,709	\$81,219
10	1.6912	1.7212 • 77 500	1.7488	1.8064	1.864
13	\$76,199 1.7488	\$77,506	\$78,709	\$81,219	\$83,728
14		1.7788 \$80,016	1.8064	1.864 \$83,728	1.9216
14	\$78,709 1.8064	ъо,016 1.8364	\$81,219 1.864	φο3,720 1.9216	\$86,238 1.9792
15	\$81,219	\$82,526	\$83,728	\$86,238	\$88,748
15	1.864	φ02,520 1.894	φ03,720 1.9216	1.9792	2.0368
16	\$83,728	\$85,036	\$86,238	\$88,748	\$91,258
10	1.9216	φ03,030 1.9516	φ00,230 1.9792	2.0368	2.0944
17	\$86,238	\$87,545	\$88,748	\$91,258	\$93,768
17	1.9792	2.0092	2.0368	2.0944	2.152
20	\$88,748	\$90,055	\$91,258	\$93,768	\$96,277
20	2.0368	2.0668	2.0944	2.152	2.2096
24	\$91,258	\$92,565	\$93,768	\$96,277	\$98,787
4 7	2.0944	2.1244	2.152	2.2096	2.2672
27	\$93,768	\$95,075	\$96,277	\$98,787	\$101,297
<u> </u>	2.152	φ93,073 2.182	2.2096	2.2672	2.3248

APPENDIX A

CERTIFIED SALARY INDEX 2020-2021					
FY21	% increase	2.50%			\$40.45
Base	\$44,661.59				
				IV	V
0	\$44,662	\$46,001	\$47,234	\$49,807	\$52,379
	φ++,002 1	φ-10,00 T 1.03	1.0576	1.1152	1.1728
1	\$47,234	\$48,574	\$49,807	\$52,379	\$54,952
	1.0576	1.0876	1.1152	1.1728	1.2304
2	\$49,807	\$51,146	\$52,379	\$54,952	\$57,524
	1.1152	1.1452	1.1728	1.2304	1.288
3	\$52,379	\$53,719	\$54,952	\$57,524	\$60,097
	1.1728	1.2028	1.2304	1.288	1.3456
4	\$54,952	\$56,291	\$57,524	\$60,097	\$62,669
	1.2304	1.2604	1.288	1.3456	1.4032
5	\$57,524	\$58,864	\$60,097	\$62,669	\$65,242
	1.288	1.318	1.3456	1.4032	1.4608
6	\$60,097	\$61,436	\$62,669	\$65,242	\$67,814
	1.3456	1.3756	1.4032	1.4608	1.5184
7	\$62,669	\$64,009	\$65,242	\$67,814	\$70,387
	1.4032	1.4332	1.4608	1.5184	1.576
8	\$65,242	\$66,581	\$67,814	\$70,387	\$72,959
	1.4608	1.4908	1.5184	1.576	1.6336
9	\$67,814	\$69,154	\$70,387	\$72,959	\$75,532
10	1.5184 \$70,387	1.5484 \$71,727	1.576 \$72,959	1.6336 \$75,532	1.6912 \$78,104
10	۶ <i>۲</i> 0,387 1.576	¢71,7∠7 1.606	۶ <i>72</i> ,959 1.6336	1.6912	1.7488
11	\$72,959	\$74,299	\$75,532	\$78,104	\$80,677
	1.6336	1.6636	1.6912	1.7488	1.8064
12	\$75,532	\$76,872	\$78,104	\$80,677	\$83,249
	1.6912	1.7212	1.7488	1.8064	1.864
13	\$78,104	\$79,444	\$80,677	\$83,249	\$85,822
	1.7488	1.7788	1.8064	1.864	1.9216
14	\$80,677	\$82,017	\$83,249	\$85,822	\$88,394
	1.8064	1.8364	1.864	1.9216	1.9792
15	\$83,249	\$84,589	\$85,822	\$88,394	\$90,967
	1.864	1.894	1.9216	1.9792	2.0368
16	\$85,822	\$87,162	\$88,394	\$90,967	\$93,539
	1.9216	1.9516	1.9792	2.0368	2.0944
17	\$88,394	\$89,734	\$90,967	\$93,539	\$96,112
	1.9792	2.0092	2.0368	2.0944	2.152
20	\$90,967	\$92,307	\$93,539	\$96,112	\$98,684
	2.0368	2.0668	2.0944	2.152	2.2096
24	\$93,539	\$94,879	\$96,112	\$98,684	\$101,257
07	2.0944	2.1244	2.152	2.2096	2.2672
27	\$96,112	\$97,452	\$98,684	\$101,257	\$103,829
	2.152	2.182	2.2096	2.2672	2.3248

CERTIFIED SALARY INDEX 2021-2022					
FY22	% increase	2.50%			\$41.47
Base	\$45,778.13				
				N/	
				IV	V
0	\$45,778	\$47,151	\$48,415	\$51,052	\$53,689
	1	1.03	1.0576	1.1152	1.1728
1	\$48,415	\$49,788	\$51,052	\$53,689	\$56,325
	1.0576	1.0876	1.1152	1.1728	1.2304
2	\$51,052	\$52,425	\$53,689	\$56,325	\$58,962
3	1.1152	1.1452	1.1728 \$56,225	1.2304	1.288
3	\$53,689 1.1728	\$55,062 1.2028	\$56,325 1.2304	\$58,962 1.288	\$61,599 1.3456
4	\$56,325	\$57,699	\$58,962	\$61,599	\$64,236
4	1.2304	457,099 1.2604	φ 5 8,902 1.288	1.3456	1.4032
5	\$58,962	\$60,336	\$61,599	\$64,236	\$66,873
5	1.288	1.318	1.3456	1.4032	1.4608
6	\$61,599	\$62,972	\$64,236	\$66,873	\$69,510
U	1.3456	1.3756	1.4032	1.4608	1.5184
7	\$64,236	\$65,609	\$66,873	\$69,510	\$72,146
	1.4032	1.4332	1.4608	1.5184	1.576
8	\$66,873	\$68,246	\$69,510	\$72,146	\$74,783
	1.4608	1.4908	1.5184	1.576	1.6336
9	\$69,510	\$70,883	\$72,146	\$74,783	\$77,420
	1.5184	1.5484	1.576	1.6336	1.6912
10	\$72,146	\$73,520	\$74,783	\$77,420	\$80,057
	1.576	1.606	1.6336	1.6912	1.7488
11	\$74,783	\$76,156	\$77,420	\$80,057	\$82,694
	1.6336	1.6636	1.6912	1.7488	1.8064
12	\$77,420	\$78,793	\$80,057	\$82,694	\$85,330
	1.6912	1.7212	1.7488	1.8064	1.864
13	\$80,057	\$81,430	\$82,694	\$85,330	\$87,967
	1.7488	1.7788	1.8064	1.864	1.9216
14	\$82,694	\$84,067	\$85,330	\$87,967	\$90,604
	1.8064	1.8364	1.864	1.9216	1.9792
15	\$85,330	\$86,704	\$87,967	\$90,604	\$93,241
	1.864	1.894	1.9216	1.9792	2.0368
16	\$87,967	\$89,341	\$90,604	\$93,241	\$95,878
47	1.9216	1.9516	1.9792	2.0368	2.0944
17	\$90,604	\$91,977	\$93,241	\$95,878	\$98,515
20	1.9792 \$93,241	2.0092 \$94,614	2.0368 \$95,878	2.0944 \$98,515	2.152 \$101,151
20	۵۹۵,241 2.0368	۵94,614 2.0668	φ95,878 2.0944	۵,515 2.152	۵.2096
24	\$95,878	\$97,251	\$98,515	\$101,151	\$103,788
24	۶95,878 2.0944	۹ <i>91</i> ,251 2.1244	۵,515 2.152	2.2096	۵,700 2.2672
27	\$98,515	\$99,888	\$101,151	\$103,788	\$106,425
~ ~ /	پهور,515 2.152	پهه ,000 2.182	2.2096	\$103,788 2.2672	2.3248

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE FORM

AGGREVIED	
PROGRAM	DEPARTMENT
SUPERVISOR	DATE OF INFORMAL DISCUSSION
PERSON OR PERSONS TO WHOM GRIE	EVANCE IS DIRECTED
	INITIATED ON LEVEL
STATEMENT OF GRIEVANCE:	

RELIEF SOUGHT:

HAVE YOU DISCUSSED THIS WITH YOUR SUPERVISOR? yes _____ no _____

IF YES, WHAT ACTION HAS BEEN TAKEN SO FAR?

Grievant

GRIEVANCE DECISION FORM

LEVEL I DECISION	
DATE	SIGNATURE
	GRIEVANT'S DESIRE
	AGGRIEVED
LEVEL II DECISION	
DATE	SIGNATURE
	GRIEVANT'S DESIRE
	AGGRIEVED

MEDINA COUNTY CAREER CENTER PROFESSIONAL VISITATION FORM

TO: SUPERINTENDENT	
FROM:	_ DATE SUBMITTED:
SUBJECT: APPROVAL FOR PROFESSION	AL VISITATION WITH PAY
MEETING:	
DATES:	
PLACE:	
ORGANIZATION:	
ESTIMATED COST TO BOARD OF EDUCA	TION:
Registration	
Transportation	
Meals	
Lodging	
Other	
Total	
SUBSTITUTE NEEDED: YES Period	□ 1/2 AM□ 1/2 PM□ Whole□ NO □
Previous days of professional visitation this so	chool year
SUPERVISOR	
Comments:	
DIRECTOR	APPROVED DENIED
Comments:	
SUPERINTENDENT	
Board of Education Action (when necessary)	

APPENDIX D

MEDINA COUNTY CAREER CENTER PERSONAL LEAVE

Revised 02/19

This form must be submitted to the Superintendent through the immediate supervisor. It is understood that except in cases of emergency this notice must be submitted to the supervisor five (5) days in advance of the planned absence. Written explanation of reason for leave must be provided when request is submitted with less than five (5) days advance notice.

I intend to use	1/4 Day	1/2 Day	Full Day	of personal leave on	n//for Month Day Year	r one of the
following reasor	1S:				Monui Day ican	
	a. Attend	lance at a fur	ieral not cove	ered under sick leave;	;	
	b. Manda	atory court a	ppearance;			
	c. Religio	ous Holiday;				
					Unrestricted Day descr of my regular working	
	e. Unrest	tricted Day L	eave (One da	y permitted per scho	ol year for any reason).	
Reason for emer	gency reque	st (less than	five [5] days a	advance notice):		
SUBSTITUTE N	EEDED:	AM	РМ	FULL DAY	NO SUB NEEDED)
Signature of Emp	ployee				Durint Lost Nomo	
Acknowledgeme	ont of recein	+ bu immodia	to cupervisor	u	Print Last Name	Date
AUKIIUWIEUguin		. Dy minicula	le super visor	Signature		Date
Acknowledgeme	ent of receipt	t by Principa				
		5 1				
		5 1	lSignatu	re		Date
Verification t	hat employe		Signatu		Leave Approval	Date
Verification t to cover this a	hat employe absence.		Signatu		Leave Approval	Date
Verification to cover this a	absence.		Signatu]	Date

APPENDIX E

MEDINA COUNTY CAREER CENTER **MILEAGE TRAVEL REPORT**

Revised – 1/2/19

NAME _____

DEPT._____

PROGRAM _____

MONTH_____

DATE	DESTINATION	PURPOSE/ACTIVITY/CONTACT	MILES

DATE _____

SIGNED ______(Instructor)

APPROVED ______(Director/Supervisor) _____

APPROVED _____

(Superintendent)

TOTAL MILES _____

X 58¢ = \$

TOTAL \$_____

BOARD OF EDUCATION MEDINA COUNTY CAREER CENTER

PROFESSIONAL STAFF 3220/page 1 of 14

STANDARDS-BASED TEACHER EVALUATION

The Board of Education is responsible for a standards-based teacher evaluation policy which conforms to the framework for evaluation of teachers as approved by the State Board of Education and aligns with the "Standards for the Teaching Profession" as set forth in State law.

The Board adopts the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System ("OTES") model as approved by the State Board of Education.

The evaluation policy is intended to provide an evaluation model that is research-based, transparent, fair, and adaptable to the needs of the District. Purposes of teacher evaluation are:

- To serve as a tool to advance the professional development of teachers.
- To inform instruction.
- Identify and document observed teacher competencies
- Facilitate teacher/evaluator communication.
- Identify areas for improvement and positive assistance.
- To assist teachers in remedying identified needs.
- To provide an information source for consideration in administrative decisions regarding the promotion and retention decisions for teachers.

This policy shall be implemented as set forth herein and included in the collective bargaining agreement with the Medina County Vocational Center Education Association (MCVCEA) and in all extensions and renewals thereof.

This policy has been developed in consultation with teachers employed by the Board.

Staff Evaluation Committee

Given the dynamic nature of the mandated teacher evaluation process, the Board authorizes the Superintendent to utilize the OTES Committee set forth in the collective bargaining agreement with the MCCCEA for the express purpose of recommending necessary changes to the Board for the appropriate revision of this policy.

Definitions

"OTES" – stands for the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System as adopted by the Ohio State Board of Education in 2011, or as otherwise modified by the State Board of Education.

"**Teacher**" – For purposes of this policy, "teacher" means a licensed instructor who spends at least 50% of his/her time providing content-related student instruction and who is working under one of the following:

- a. A license issued under ORC Sections 3319.22, 3319.26, 3319.222 or 3319.226;
 - 1. SGI's, Math Coaches, **Intervention Specialists**, and Title I Reading teachers providing direct instruction will be included. or
- b. A permanent certificate issued under ORC Section 3319.222 as it existed prior to September, 2003; or
- c. A permanent certificate issued under ORC Section 3319.222 as it existed prior to September, 2006; or
- d. A permit issued under ORC Section 3319.301.

Substitute teachers and teachers not meeting this definition are not subject to evaluation under this policy. Regular and Part Time bargaining unit members who do not meet the definition will be evaluated utilizing the evaluation procedures of the collective bargaining agreement in effect between the Board and the MCVCEA.

The Board will not evaluate a teacher who was on leave from the District for 50% or more of the school year and/or submitted notice of retirement that was accepted by the Board no later than December 1st of the year the teacher was scheduled to be evaluated. To be exempted from this process by virtue of retirement, a teacher must notify the Board on or before November 15th.

The Superintendent, Treasurer, and any "other administrator" as defined by ORC Section 3319.02 are not subject to evaluation under this policy

"**Credentialed Evaluator**" – For purposes of this policy, each teacher subject to evaluation will be evaluated by a person who:

- a. Meets the eligibility requirements under ORC Section 3319.111(D); and
- b. Holds a credential established by the Ohio Department of Education for teacher evaluation; and
- c. Has completed state-sponsored evaluation training and has passed an online credentialing assessment; and
- d. Is employed by the Board as an administrator. The Board shall authorize the Superintendent/designee to approve and maintain a list of credentialed evaluators as necessary to effectively implement this policy.

"Core Subject Area" – means reading and English language arts, mathematics, science, foreign language, government, economics, fine arts, history and geography.

"eTPES" – is the Electronic Teacher and Principal Evaluation System (eTPES) is the electronic system used by the District to report evaluation data to ODE.

"Evaluation Cycle" – is the period of time for the completion of the evaluation procedure. The evaluation cycle is completed when student growth measures resulting from assessments that were administered in the previous school year are combined with the teacher performance ratings resulting from performance assessments that are conducted for the current school year to assign a summative evaluation rating.

"Evaluation Factors" – refers to the multiple measures that are required by law to be used in the teacher evaluation procedure. The two factors, which are weighted equally, are student growth measures at fifty percent (50%) and teacher performance at fifty percent (50%).

"Evaluation Framework" – means the document created and approved by the Ohio Department of Education (ODE) in accordance with section 3319.111(A) of the Ohio Revised Code that establishes the standards-based framework for the evaluation of teachers developed under section 3319.112 of the Ohio Revised Code.

"Evaluation Instruments" – refers to the forms used by the teacher's evaluator. Those forms, developed by the ODE, are located in the Appendix to this policy.

"Evaluation Procedure" – the procedural requirements set forth in this policy to provide specificity to the statutory obligations established under sections 3319.111 and 3319.112 of the Ohio Revised Code and to conform to the framework for the evaluation of teachers developed under section 3319.112 of the Ohio Revised Code.

"Evaluation Rating" – means the final summative evaluation level that is assigned to a teacher pursuant to terms of this policy. The evaluation rating is assigned at the conclusion of the evaluation cycle when the teacher performance rating is combined with the results of student growth measures where fifty percent (50%) of the evaluation rating is based on student growth measures as provided for in this policy and fifty percent (50%) the evaluation rating is based on a teacher performance rating as provided for in this policy. Each completed evaluation will result in the assignment of one of the following evaluation ratings to Accomplished, Skilled, Developing, or Ineffective.

"Student Growth" – means a unit of academic growth projected for a student over specified period of time, and which has been established according to a set of procedures defined either by the value-added data system provider employed by the State of Ohio or by the school district for approved vendor assessments or locally developed student learning objectives (SLOs).

"Student Learning Objectives" ("SLOs") – A measurable academic growth target that a-is set at the beginning of the course/term for all students or for subgroups of students to be achieved by

completion of an established interval based upon baseline data gathered at the beginning of the course.

"Shared Attribution Measures" – encompasses student growth measures that can be attributed to a group as determined in consultation with the Student Growth Measures Committee.

"Value-Added" – refers to the EVAAS Value-Added methodology provided by SAS, Inc., which provides a measure of student progress at the district and school level based on each student's scores on state issued standardized assessments.

"Vendor Assessment" – student assessments approved by the Ohio Department of Education that measure mastery of the course content for the appropriate grade level, which may include nationally normed standardized assessments, industry certification exams, or end-of-course examinations for grade level and subjects for which the Value-Added measure does not apply.

"**Remediation Plan**" – refers to a written plan which shall be collaboratively put into place with the teacher and the assigned credentialed evaluator, in order to directly address any deficiencies cited in the evidence that is gathered during walkthroughs and formal observations. The Remediation Form (See Appendix) will be utilized for this purpose.

"Teacher Performance" – is the assessment of a teacher's performance, resulting in a performance rating. As an evaluation factor, the teacher performance dimension is based on direct observations of a teacher's practice (including materials and other instructional artifacts) and walkthroughs that are performed by a credentialed evaluator. Teacher performance results are reported as a teacher performance rating that may be coded as "1" indicating lowest performance to "4" indicating highest performance.

Teacher-Student Data Linkage (TSDL) – refers to the process of connecting the teacher(s) of record [based upon above definition] to a student and/or defined group of students' achievement scores for the purpose of attributing student growth to that teacher.

Standards-Based Teacher Evaluation

Teacher evaluations will utilize multiple factors, with the intent of providing meaningful feedback to each teacher and assigning an effectiveness rating based in equal part upon teacher performance and student growth.

Each teacher evaluation will result in an effectiveness rating of:

- a. Accomplished;
- b. Skilled;
- c. Developing; or
- d. Ineffective

The specific standards and criteria for distinguishing between these ratings/levels of performance shall be the same as those developed by the State Board of Education, which are incorporated herein by reference.

The Medina County Joint Vocational School District will utilize eTPES for reporting compliance with the Standards Based Teacher Evaluation process. The Superintendent shall annually cause to be filed a report to the department of education the number of teachers for whom an evaluation was conducted as well as the number of teachers assigned each rating as set forth above, aggregated by teacher preparation programs from which and the years in which the teachers graduated. Only the student growth measure results and performance ratings will be reported to eTPES, unless otherwise required by legislation.

Fifty percent (50%) of each evaluation will be based upon teacher performance and fifty percent (50%) on student growth as set forth herein. Any modifications to these percentages must be in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code and in consultation with the Staff Evaluation Committee.

Assessment of Teacher Performance

Teacher performance will be evaluated during formal observations and periodic informal observations also known as "classroom walkthroughs." Such performance, which will comprise fifty-percent (50%) of a teacher's effectiveness rating, will be assessed through a holistic process by trained and credentialed evaluators based upon the following *Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession:*

- a. Understanding student learning and development and respecting the diversity of the students they teach;
- b. Understanding the content area for which they have instructional responsibility;
- c. Understanding and using varied assessment to inform instruction, evaluate and ensure student learning;
- d. Planning and delivering effective instruction that advances individual student learning;
- e. Creating learning environments that promote high levels of learning and student achievement;
- f. Collaborating and communicating with students, parents, other educators, district administrators and the community to support student learning; and
- g. Assuming responsibility for professional growth, performance and involvement.

Orientation/Training of Teachers

Not later than September 15 of each year, or in the case of a new teacher, within thirty (30) days of the first day employed, each teacher shall be notified in writing of the name and position of his or her evaluator, and will be briefed of the District's performance expectations, evaluation procedures, criteria, and the evaluation instruments which will be used in the evaluation process.

Annual updates on the teacher evaluation framework and system will be provided bargaining unit members by the OTES Committee.

FORMAL OBSERVATION AND CLASSROOM INFORMAL (WALKTHROUGH) SEQUENCE

Schedule of Evaluation

Except as otherwise provided herein, all instructors who meet the definition of "teacher" under R.C. 3319.111 and this policy shall be evaluated based on at least two formal observations and periodic classroom walkthroughs each school year. Unless mutually agreed upon with his/her evaluator, no teacher shall be evaluated more than once annually.

Teachers on a limited contract who are under consideration for renewal/nonrenewal shall receive at least three formal observations in addition to periodic classroom walkthroughs.

Teachers with four (4) years in the District and either a continuing contract and/or who have received the first renewal of a professional license and who receives a rating of "Accomplished" on his/her most recent evaluation will be evaluated once every three years (unless such teacher otherwise requests), so long as the teacher's student academic growth measure for the most recent school year for which data is available is average or higher. However, at least one observation, which includes a conference with the teacher, must be held each year.

Teachers with four (4) years in the District and either a continuing contract and/or who have received the first renewal of a professional license and who receive a rating of "Skilled" on his/her most recent evaluation will be evaluated once every two years (unless such teacher otherwise requests), so long as the teacher's student academic growth measure for the most recent school year for which data is available is average or higher. However, at least one observation, which includes a conference with the teacher, must be held each year.

Evaluations will be completed by May 1st and each teacher will be provided a written report of the results of his/her evaluation by May 10th. Written notice of nonrenewal will be provided by June 1st.

In evaluating teacher performance in these areas, the Board shall utilize the measures set forth by the Ohio Department of Education's OTES "Teacher Performance Evaluation Rubric" for instructional planning, instruction and assessment, and professionalism, set forth in the Appendix.

Additional Criteria for Performance Assessment

A teacher's performance shall be assessed based on the Ohio Educator Standards (or comparable standards) and rubrics for teaching and the criteria set forth in the evaluation instrument. (See Appendix).

Teacher instructional performance assessments shall be based solely on the evidence provided by the teacher, on the formal observations of the teacher by the teacher's assigned evaluator, and the walkthroughs that are set forth in this agreement.

All monitoring or observation of the instructional/classroom performance of a teacher shall be conducted openly and with full knowledge of the teacher.

All results and conclusions of performance assessments shall be documented and supported by evidence.

In implementing performance assessments, the District shall conduct all assessments so as to observe the legal and constitutional rights of teachers; and no teacher performance information shall be collected by video or audio devices without the permission of the teacher.

Formal Observation Procedure

A minimum of two (2) formal observations shall be conducted. A formal observation shall last a minimum of thirty (30) continuous minutes.

If one (1) observation is required it will be completed between September 16th and May 1st of the school year.

If two (2) observations are required, the first observation will take place by the end of the first semester. The second observation will occur during the second semester. There shall be at least two weeks between formal non-continuous observations unless otherwise agreed to by the teacher.

If three (3) observations are required, the first observation will take place in the first semester. The second and third observations will take place at least 6 weeks apart before May 1st.

Teachers shall not receive a formal observation on a day before or after any break of more than three (3) days and/or after an absence due to an extended illness of more than five (5) work days.

The evaluator will not use tape recording devices, public address, or visual recording systems and similar devices for observing the work performance of a bargaining unit member. Observation Conference All formal observations shall be preceded by a pre-observation conference between the evaluator and the teacher within five (5) working days of the scheduled observation. At the pre-observation conference teachers shall provide evidence for the classroom situation to be observed. Discussion topics for the Pre -Conference will come from the OTES Pre/Post Conference Question Form provided by ODE.

A post-observation conference shall be held after each formal observation. The post observation conference shall take place within five (5) working days following the formal observation. The evaluation will be emailed to the instructor no later than 24 hours prior to the meeting unless mutually agreed upon.

Informal Observation/Classroom Walkthrough Procedure

A walkthrough is a formative assessment process that focuses on one or more of the following components and results in brief written notes or a summary:

- 1. evidence of planning;
- 2. lesson delivery;
- 3. differentiation;
- 4. resources;
- 5. classroom environment;
- 6. student engagement;
- 7. assessment; or
- 8. or any other component of the standards and rubrics approved for teacher evaluation.

The walkthrough shall consist of at least 5 consecutive minutes, but not more than 10 consecutive minutes in duration.

The teacher shall be provided access to the walkthrough template.

The teacher will receive a copy of walkthrough data within three days.

Either the teacher or the evaluating administrator may schedule a meeting within 5 work days of the walkthrough to discuss any walkthrough where the evidence indicates an area of concern.

Assessment of Student Growth

In determining student growth measures, the Board adopts the Ohio Department of Education's Ohio Teacher Evaluation System (OTES), which calculates student growth by assessing

achievement for an individual student occurring between two points in time. It is important to note that a student who has forty-five (45) or more unexcused absences for the school year will not be included in the determination of student academic growth.

Classroom teachers will be required to develop Student Learning Objectives (SLOs) for the purpose of measuring student growth. There will be at least one (1) SLO per teacher per school year, to a maximum of 4 SLOs. The SLO's will be developed and shared with the evaluating administrator on or before October 1st. The duration for measuring progress under an SLO will be at least one (1) grading period. A pre and post assessment will be submitted to the evaluating administrator.

In general, the Board will utilize the following categories to determine this aspect of a teacher's evaluation, depending upon the instructor involved:

- **A1:** Teachers instructing in value-added subjects exclusively¹;
- **A2:** Teachers instructing in value-added courses, but not exclusively²;
- **B:** Teachers instructing in areas with Ohio Department of Education approved vendor assessments with teacher-level data available;
- **B2:** Teachers instructing in areas with Ohio Department of Education approved vendor assessments, but not exclusively; or
- C: Teachers instructing in areas where no teacher-level value-added or approved vendor assessment available.³

Where value-added methodologies exist for A1 and A2 teachers, the Board will utilize them in the evaluation process, to the extent set forth in the District's Guidelines for Student Growth Measurement. Teachers instructing in value-added courses, but not exclusively, will utilize teacher value-added and locally determined measures proportionate to the teacher's schedule.

When an approved Ohio Department of Education vendor assessment is utilized in the measurement of student growth, it will be included in the evaluation process for B teachers to the extent set forth in the District's Guidelines for Student Growth Measurement.

When neither teacher-level value-added data nor Ohio Department of Education-approved assessments are available, the District shall use locally-determined Student Growth Measures.

 $^{^{\}rm 1}$ The entire student academic growth factor of the evaluation (i.e. 50%) shall be based on the value-added progress dimension.

² For these teachers, value added will be used for the student academic growth factor in proportion to the part of a teacher's schedule of courses or subjects for which the value-added progress dimension is applicable. Teachers with multiple subjects that have value-added data will be issued reports for a composite of reading and math; for other assessments (approved vendor and local measures), the assessment data measures should be representative of the teacher's schedule.

³ If used, only one "shared attribution" measure can be utilized per instructor.

Student Growth Measures may be comprised of SLOs, shared attribution, and/or non-Value-Added vendor data.

An SLO must be based upon the following criteria: Baseline and Trend Data, Student Population, Interval of Instruction, Standards and Content, Assessment(s), Growth Targets, and Rationale for Growth Targets. When new SLO's are developed or revised, the process will include consultation with the OTES Committee.

Data from these approved measures of student growth will be scored on five (5) levels in accordance with the Ohio Department of Education/OTES guidance:

Descriptive Rating	Numerical Rating
Most Effective	5
Above Average	4
Average	3
Approaching Average	2
Least Effective	1

Student Growth Measures (SGM)

When utilizing vendor assessments to construct SGMs, all related materials shall be purchased, and all affected staff shall be trained on utilization and other considerations by September 30th.

When utilizing SLOs to construct SGMs, the teacher shall submit the completed SLO template for approval of the SLO no later than September 30th.

- 1. The OTES committee shall review all submitted SLOs by October 15.
- 2. Any SLO that is rejected by the OTES Committee or the Superintendent shall be returned to the teacher/group with specific designation of deficiencies by [e.g., October 15] with a timeline (e.g., 10 days) for the resubmittal of the corrected SLO.

Teachers shall administer the final assessment to determine student growth as defined in the approved SGMs.

Prior to submitting the SGM results to the designated evaluator, the teacher may request that the OTES Committee review the results for the sole purpose of verifying accuracy.

The District may use shared attribution SGM scores as determined in consultation with the OTES Committee.

Job sharing arrangements: The percentage of SGM scores applicable to teachers in an approved job sharing arrangement shall have been agreed to by the individual teachers in the job sharing arrangement and documented by the building principal.

Co-teaching arrangements (e.g. Inclusion): Teachers who have an approved co-teaching arrangement shall have a percentage of the SGM score for the individual teachers in the co-teaching arrangement based on the time each has spent with the student(s).

High stakes employment decisions will not be materially informed by consideration of the student growth portion of the teacher evaluation unless or until there has been a minimum of three consecutive years of SGM data from the same grade level, subject matter, and/or age level.

Final Evaluation Procedures

Each teacher's performance rating will be combined with the assessment of student growth measures to produce the summative evaluation rating, based upon the criteria developed by the Ohio Department of Education.

Response to Evaluation

A copy of the summative evaluation report (See Appendix) will be given to the teacher at least 3 work days prior to the evaluation conference.

The evaluation report shall be signed by the evaluator. The evaluation report should then be signed by the teacher to verify notification to the teacher that the evaluation will be placed on file, but the teacher's signature should not be construed as evidence that the teacher agrees with the contents of the evaluation report.

The teacher shall have the right to make a written response to the evaluation and to have it attached to the evaluation report to be placed in the teacher's personnel file.

<u>Professional Growth Plans and Professional Improvement/Remediation</u> <u>Plans</u>

Based upon the results of the annual teacher evaluation, each teacher must develop either a professional growth plan or professional improvement plan as follows:

- A. Teachers whose final summative performance rating is "Accomplished" will develop their growth plan independently and submit their plan to their credentialed evaluator. Professional growth and improvement plans for a school year shall be developed not later than September 15th of that school year. The professional growth plan (See Section FA of the Appendix) shall include the following components:
 - 1. Identification of area(s) for future professional growth;

- 2. Specific resources and opportunities the teacher wants to explore to enhance his/her skills, knowledge, and practice including a review of Board-approved and funded options, if applicable
- 3. Outcomes that will enable the teacher to increase student learning and achievement.
- B. Teachers whose final summative performance rating is "Skilled must develop a professional growth plan (See Section FB of the Appendix) collaboratively with their credentialed evaluator for the evaluation cycle. Professional growth and improvement plans for a school year shall be developed not later than September 15th of that school year.

The professional growth plan shall include the following components:

- 1. Identification of area(s) for future professional growth;
- 2. Specific resources and opportunities to assist the teacher in enhancing skills, knowledge, and practice, including a review of Board-approved and funded options, if applicable; and
- 3. Outcomes that will enable the teacher to increase student learning and achievement.
- C. Teachers whose final summative rating is "Developing" will develop a professional growth plan (See Section FB of the Appendix) with their credentialed evaluator for the evaluation cycle. The administration will assign the evaluator for the subsequent evaluation cycle and approve the professional growth plan, utilizing the components set forth in "Teacher Evaluation Form." Professional growth and improvement plans for a school year shall be developed not later than September 15th of that school year.

The professional growth plan shall include the following components:

- 1. Identification of area(s) for future professional growth;
- 2. Specific resources and opportunities to assist the teacher in enhancing skills, knowledge, and practice;
- 3. Outcomes that will enable the teacher to increase student learning and achievement.
- D. Teachers who whose final summative rating is "Ineffective" will develop a professional improvement plan with their credentialed evaluator. The administration will assign the evaluator for the subsequent evaluation cycle and approve the professional improvement plan, utilizing the components set forth in "Teacher Evaluation Form." Improvement plans for the next school year shall be developed not later than June 1st of each school year. The improvement plan shall include the following components:

- 1. An Improvement Statement identifying specific area(s) for improvement as related to the Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession;
- 2. A desired level of performance that is expected to improve and a reasonable time period (minimum of 6 weeks) to correct deficiencies;
- 3. A specific Plan of Action that must be taken by the teacher to improve his/her performance with sources of evidence (measurable goals) to document the completion of the improvement plan;
- 4. A description of educational supports and/or opportunities for professional development, including a review of Board-approved and funded options, if applicable, needed to improve the identified area(s).

In accordance with ODE guidance, a teacher may be placed on an improvement plan at any time based on noted deficiencies in any individual component of the evaluation system.

Board Professional Development Plan

The Board shall meet the requirements of ORC 3319.112(A)(8)(9) to provide professional development and sufficient financial resources to support the professional learning required by this policy (including adequate funding for growth and improvement plans) and in accordance with the Ohio State Board of Education's statewide evaluation framework. The Board's plan will be reviewed annually.

<u>Retention and Promotion Decisions/Removal of Poorly Performing</u> <u>Teachers</u>

It is the purpose of this Standards-Based Teacher Evaluation Policy to improve the quality of instruction, enhance student learning and strengthen professional competence through meaningful feedback and targeted professional development. In addition, the evaluations produced will serve to inform the Board on employment decisions, i.e., retention, promotion of teachers, renewal of teaching contracts, and the removal/nonrenewal of poorly performing teachers.

The removal of poorly performing teachers shall be in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code and any applicable provisions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

High stakes employment decisions (i.e. dismissal, retention) will not be materially informed by consideration of the student growth portion of a teacher's evaluation until the end of the 2018-2019 contract year.

Nothing in this policy will be deemed to prevent the Board from exercising its rights to nonrenew, terminate, or suspend a teaching contract as provided by law and the terms of the collective bargaining agreement in effect between it and the MCCCEA. The evaluation system and procedures set forth in this policy shall not create an expectation of continued employment for teachers on a limited contract that are evaluated under this policy. The Board reserves the right to non-renew a teacher evaluated under this policy in accordance with R.C. 3319.11 notwithstanding the teacher's summative rating.

R.C. 3319.02, 3319.11, 3319.111, 3319.112, 3319.22, 3319.222, 3319.226, 3319.26, 3319.58, 3333.0411 A.C. 3301-35-03(A)

Note: Any part of this policy that is deemed unlawful will be updated by the Staff Evaluation Committee. The Committee will notify any bargaining unit members who are evaluated under this policy of the changes that are necessary to the policy to comply with the law. As the teacher evaluation system is implemented and matures, LEAs may consider a phased-in, stepped approach in designing percentage breakdowns within categories. Some student growth data will be based on the previous year's results (due to testing schedules and evaluation requirements for evaluation schedule). The Value-Added metric will utilize a three-year average, which will itself mature on a rolling basis as LEAs implement teacher Value-Added on a phased-in schedule beginning in 2010-11.

Ohio Teacher Evaluation System Model

Teacher Performance Rubric

Teacher Performance Evaluation Rubric

The *Teacher Performance Evaluation Rubric* is intended to be scored holistically. This means that evaluators will assess which level provides the best *overall* description of the teacher. The scoring process is expected to occur upon completion of each thirty (30) minute observation and post-conference. The evaluator is to consider evidence gathered during the pre-observation conference, the observation, the post-observation conference, and classroom walkthroughs (if applicable). When completing the performance rubric, please note that evaluators are not expected to gather evidence on all indicators for each observation cycle. Likewise, teachers should not be required to submit additional pieces of evidence to address all indicators. The professionalism section of the rubric may use evidence collected during the pre-observation and post-observation conferences as well as information from the Professional Growth and/or Improvement Plan (if applicable).

INST	INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING					
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished	
INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING	FOCUS FOR LEARNING (Standard 4: Instruction) Sources of Evidence: Pre-Conference	The teacher does not demonstrate a clear focus for student learning. Learning objectives are too general to guide lesson planning and are inappropriate for the students, and/or do not reference the Ohio standards.	The teacher communicates a focus for student learning, develops learning objectives that are appropriate for students and reference the Ohio standards but do not include measureable goals.	The teacher demonstrates a focus for student learning, with appropriate learning objectives that include measurable goal(s) for student learning aligned with the Ohio standards. The teacher demonstrates the importance of the goal and its appropriateness for students.	The teacher establishes challenging and measurable goal(s) for student learning that aligns with the Ohio standards and reflect a range of student learner needs. The teacher demonstrates how the goal(s) fit into the broader unit, course, and school goals for content learning and skills.	
	ASSESSMENT DATA (Standard 3: Assessment)	The teacher does not plan for the assessment of student learning or does not analyze student learning data to inform lesson plans.	The teacher explains the characteristics, uses, and limitations of various diagnostic, formative, and summative assessments but does not consistently incorporate this knowledge into lesson planning.	The teacher demonstrates an understanding that assessment is a means of evaluating and supporting student learning through effectively incorporating diagnostic, formative, and/or summative assessments into lesson planning.	The teacher purposefully plans assessments and differentiates assessment choices to match the full range of student needs, abilities, and learning styles, incorporating a range of appropriate diagnostic, formative, and summative assessments into lesson plans.	
	<i>Sources of Evidence:</i> Pre-Conference	The teacher does not use or only uses one measure of student performance.	The teacher uses more than one measure of student performance but does not appropriately vary assessment approaches, or the teacher may have difficulty analyzing data to effectively inform instructional planning and delivery.	The teacher employs a variety of formal and informal assessment techniques to collect evidence of students' knowledge and skills and analyzes data to effectively inform instructional planning and delivery.	Student learning needs are accurately identified through an analysis of student data; the teacher uses assessment data to identify student strengths and areas for student growth.	



INS	RUCTIONAL PLANNING				
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished
INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING	PRIOR CONTENT KNOWLEDGE / SEQUENCE / CONNECTIONS (Standard 1: Students; Standard 2: Content;	The teacher's lesson does not build on or connect to students' prior knowledge, or the teacher may give an explanation that is illogical or inaccurate as to how the content connects to previous and future learning.	The teacher makes an attempt to connect the lesson to students' prior knowledge, to previous lessons or future learning but is not completely successful.	The teacher makes clear and coherent connections with students' prior knowledge and future learning—both explicitly to students and within the lesson.	The teacher uses the input and contributions of families, colleagues, and other professionals in understanding each learner's prior knowledge and supporting their development. The teacher makes meaningful and relevant connections between lesson content and other disciplines and real-world experiences and careers as well as prepares opportunities for students to apply learning from different content areas to solve problems.
	Standard 4: Instruction) Sources of Evidence: Pre-Conference			The teacher plans and sequences instruction to include the important content, concepts, and processes in school and district curriculum priorities and in state standards.	The teacher plans and sequences instruction that reflects an understanding of the prerequisite relationships among the important content, concepts, and processes in school and district curriculum priorities and in state standards as well as multiple pathways for learning depending on student needs. The teacher accurately explains how the lesson fits within the structure of the discipline.
INSTRUCT	KNOWLEDGE OF STUDENTS	The teacher demonstrates a lack of familiarity with students' backgrounds and has made no attempts to find this information.	The teacher demonstrates some familiarity with students' background knowledge and experiences and describes one procedure used to obtain this information.	The teacher demonstrates familiarity with students' background knowledge and experiences and describes multiple procedures used to obtain this information.	The teacher demonstrates an understanding of the purpose and value of learning about students' background experiences, demonstrates familiarity with each student's background knowledge and experiences, and describes multiple procedures used to obtain this information.
	(Standard 1: Students) <i>Sources of Evidence:</i> Analysis of Student Data Pre-Conference	The teacher's plan for instruction does not demonstrate an understanding of students' development, preferred learning styles, and/or student backgrounds/prior experiences.	The teacher's instructional plan draws upon a partial analysis of students' development, readiness for learning, preferred learning styles, or backgrounds and prior experiences and/or the plan is inappropriately tailored to the specific population of students in the classroom.	The teacher's instructional plan draws upon an accurate analysis of the students' development, readiness for learning, preferred learning styles, and backgrounds and prior experiences.	The teacher's analysis of student data (student development, student learning and preferred learning styles, and student backgrounds/prior experiences) accurately connects the data to specific instructional strategies and plans. The teacher plans for and can articulate
					specific strategies, content, and delivery that will meet the needs of individual students and groups of students.



l st	ruction and Assessment				
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished
INSTRUCTION AND ASSESSMENT	LESSON DELIVERY (Standard 2: Content; Standard 4: Instruction; Standard 6: Collaboration and Communication)	A teacher's explanations are unclear, incoherent, or inaccurate, and are generally ineffective in building student understanding. The teacher uses language that fails to engage students, is inappropriate to the content, and/or discourages independent or creative thinking.	Teacher explanations are accurate and generally clear but the teacher may not fully clarify information based on students' questions about content or instructions for learning activities or the teacher may use some language that is developmentally inappropriate, leading to confusion or limiting discussion.	Teacher explanations are clear and accurate. The teacher uses developmentally appropriate strategies and language designed to actively encourage independent, creative, and critical thinking.	Teacher explanations are clear, coherent, and precise. The teacher uses well-timed, individualized, developmentally appropriate strategies and language designed to actively encourage independent, creative, and critical thinking, including the appropriate use of questions and discussion techniques.
	Sources of Evidence: Formal Observation Classroom Walkthroughs/ Informal Observations	The teacher fails to address student confusion or frustration and does not use effective questioning techniques during the lesson. The lesson is almost entirely teacher-directed.	The teacher re-explains topics when students show confusion, but is not always able to provide an effective alternative explanation. The teacher attempts to employ purposeful questioning techniques, but may confuse students with the phrasing or timing of questions. The lesson is primarily teacher-directed.	The teacher effectively addresses confusion by re-explaining topics when asked and ensuring understanding. The teacher employs effective, purposeful questioning techniques during instruction. The lesson is a balance of teacher-directed instruction and student-led learning.	The teacher accurately anticipates confusion by presenting information in multiple formats and clarifying content before students ask questions. The teacher develops high-level understanding through effective uses of varied levels of questions. The lesson is student-led, with the teacher in the role of facilitator.
	DIFFERENTIATION (Standard 1: Students; Standard 4: Instruction) Sources of Evidence: Pre-Conference Formal Observation Classroom Walkthroughs/ Informal Observations	The teacher does not attempt to make the lesson accessible and challenging for most students, or attempts are developmentally inappropriate.	The teacher relies on a single strategy or alternate set of materials to make the lesson accessible to most students though some students may not be able to access certain parts of the lesson and/or some may not be challenged.	The teacher supports the learning needs of students through a variety of strategies, materials, and/or pacing that make learning accessible and challenging for the group	The teacher matches strategies, materials, and/or pacing to students' individual needs, to make learning accessible and challenging for all students in the classroom . The teacher effectively uses independent, collaborative and whole- class instruction to support individual learning goals and provides varied options for how students will demonstrate mastery.
	RESOURCES (Standard 2: Content; Standard 4: Instruction) Sources of Evidence: Pre-Conference Formal Observation Classroom Walkthroughs/ Informal Observations	Instructional materials and resources used for instruction are not relevant to the lesson or are inappropriate for students.	The teacher uses appropriate instructional materials to support learning goals, but may not meet individual students' learning styles/needs or actively engage them in learning.	Instructional materials and resources are aligned to the instructional purposes and are appropriate for students' learning styles and needs, actively engaging students.	Instructional materials and resources are aligned to instructional purposes, are varied and appropriate to ability levels of students, and actively engage them in ownership of their learning.



l st	ruction and Assessment				
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished
		There is little or no evidence of a positive rapport between the teacher and students. For example, the teacher may respond disrespectfully to students or ignore their questions or comments.	The teacher is fair in the treatment of students and establishes a basic rapport with them. For example, the teacher addresses students questions or comments but does not inquire about their overall well-being.	The teacher has positive rapport with students and demonstrates respect for and interest in all students. For example, the teacher makes eye contact and connects with individual students.	The teacher has positive rapport with students and demonstrates respect for and interest in individual students' experiences, thoughts and opinions. For example, the teacher responds quietly, individually, and sensitively to student confusion or distress.
STRUCTION AND A	CLASSROOM ENVIRONMENT (Standard 1: Students; Standard 5: Learning Environment; Standard 6:	There are no evident routines or procedures; students seem unclear about what they should be doing or are idle.	Routines and procedures are in place, but the teacher may inappropriately prompt or direct students when they are unclear or idle.	Routines and procedures run smoothly throughout the lesson, and students assume age-appropriate levels of responsibility for the efficient operation of the classroom.	Routines are well-established and orderly and students initiate responsibility for the efficient operation of the classroom.
		Transitions are inefficient with considerable instructional time lost. Lessons progress too slowly or quickly so students are frequently disengaged.	The teacher transitions between learning activities, but occasionally loses some instructional time in the process.	Transitions are efficient and occur smoothly. There is evidence of varied learning situations (whole class, cooperative learning, small group and independent work).	Transitions are seamless as the teacher effectively maximizes instructional time and combines independent, collaborative, and whole-class learning situations.
	Sources of Evidence: Pre-Conference Formal Observation Classroom Walkthroughs/ Informal Observations	The teacher creates a learning environment that allows for little or no communication or engagement with families.	The teacher welcomes communication from families and replies in a timely manner.	The teacher engages in two-way communication and offers a variety of volunteer opportunities and activities for families to support student learning.	The teacher engages in two-way, ongoing communication with families that results in active volunteer, community, and family partnerships which contribute to student learning and development.
		Expectations for behavior are not established or are inappropriate and/or no monitoring of behaviors occurs. The teacher responds to misbehavior inappropriately.	Appropriate expectations for behavior are established, but some expectations are unclear or do not address the needs of individual students. The teacher inconsistently monitors behavior.	A classroom management system has been implemented that is appropriate and responsive to classroom and individual needs of students. Clear expectations for student behavior are evident . Monitoring of student behavior is consistent, appropriate, and effective.	A classroom management system has been designed, implemented, and adjusted with student input and is appropriate for the classroom and individual student needs. Students are actively encouraged to take responsibility for their behavior. The teacher uses research-based strategies to lessen disruptive behaviors and reinforce positive behaviors.



Instr	Instruction and Assessment					
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished	
		The teacher does not routinely use assessments to measure student mastery.	The teacher uses assessments to measure student mastery, but may not differentiate instruction based on this information.	The teacher uses assessment data to identify students' strengths and needs, and modifies and differentiates instruction accordingly, although the teacher may not be able to anticipate learning obstacles.	The teacher uses assessment data to identify students' strengths and needs, and modifies and differentiates instruction accordingly, as well as examines classroom assessment results to reveal trends and patterns in individual and group progress and to anticipate learning obstacles.	
INSTRUCTION AND ASSESSMENT	ASSESSMENT OF STUDENT LEARNING (Standard 3: Assessment)	The teacher rarely or never checks the students' understanding of content. The teacher fails to make adjustments in response to student confusion.	The teacher checks for student understanding and makes attempts to adjust instruction accordingly, but these adjustments may cause some additional confusion	The teacher checks for understanding at key moments and makes adjustments to instruction (whole-class or individual students).The teacher responds to student misunderstandings by providing additional clarification.	The teacher continually checks for understanding and makes adjustments accordingly (whole-class or individual students). When an explanation is not effectively leading students to understand the content, the teacher adjusts quickly and seamlessly within the lesson and uses an alternative way to explain the concept.	
	Sources of Evidence: Pre-Conference Formal Observation Classroom Walkthroughs/ Informal Observations Post-Conference	The teacher persists in using a particular strategy for responding to misunderstandings, even when data suggest the approach is not succeeding.	The teacher gathers and uses student data from a few sources to choose appropriate instructional strategies for groups of students.	The teacher gathers and uses student data from a variety of sources to choose and implement appropriate instructional strategies for groups of students.	By using student data from a variety of sources, the teacher appropriately adapts instructional methods and materials and paces learning activities to meet the needs of individual students as well as the whole class.	
2		The teacher does not provide students with feedback about their learning.	Students receive occasional or limited feedback about their performance from the teacher.	The teacher provides substantive, specific, and timely feedback of student progress to students, families, and other school personnel while maintaining confidentiality.	The teacher provides substantive, specific, and timely feedback to students, families, and other school personnel while maintaining confidentiality. The teacher provides the opportunity for students to engage in self-assessment and show awareness of their own strengths and weaknesses. The teacher uses student assessment results to reflect on his or her own teaching and to monitor teaching strategies and behaviors in relation to student success.	



Profe	Professionalism					
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished	
PROFESSIONALISM	PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES (Standard 6: Collaboration and Communication; Standard 7: Professional Responsibility and Growth)	The teacher fails to communicate clearly with students and families or collaborate effectively with professional colleagues.	The teacher uses a variety of strategies to communicate with students and families and collaborate with colleagues, but these approaches may not always be appropriate for a particular situation or achieve the intended outcome.	The teacher uses effective communication strategies with students and families and works effectively with colleagues to examine problems of practice, analyze student work, and identify targeted strategies.	The teacher communicates effectively with students, families, and colleagues. The teacher collaborates with colleagues to improve personal and team practices by facilitating professional dialogue, peer observation and feedback, peer coaching and other collegial learning activities.	
	Sources of Evidence: Professional Development Plan or Improvement Plan; Pre-conference;	The teacher fails to understand and follow regulations, policies, and agreements.	The teacher understands and follows district policies and state and federal regulations at a minimal level.	The teacher meets ethical and professional responsibilities with integrity and honesty. The teacher models and upholds district policies and state and federal regulations.	The teacher meets ethical and professional responsibilities and helps colleagues access and interpret laws and policies and understand their implications in the classroom.	
	Post-conference; daily interaction with others	The teacher fails to demonstrate evidence of an ability to accurately self-assess performance and to appropriately identify areas for professional development.	The teacher identifies strengths and areas for growth to develop and implement targeted goals for professional growth.	The teacher sets data-based short- and long-term professional goals and takes action to meet these goals.	The teacher sets and regularly modifies short-and long-term professional goals based on self-assessment and analysis of student learning evidence.	



Pre-Conference Sample Questions

The questions provided are intended to guide thinking and conversation; every question may not be answered or relevant for every observation.

FOCUS FOR LEARNING

(Standard 4: Instruction)

- » What is the focus for the lesson?
- » What content will students know/understand? What skills will they demonstrate?
- » What standards are addressed in the planned instruction?
- » Why is this learning important?

ASSESSMENT DATA

(Standard 3: Assessment)

- » What assessment data was examined to inform this lesson planning?
- » What does pre-assessment data indicate about student learning needs?

PRIOR CONTENT KNOWLEDGE/ SEQUENCE/CONNECTIONS

(Standard 1: Students/Standard 2: Content/ Standard 4: Instruction)

- » What prior knowledge do students need?
- » What are the connections to previous and future learning?
- » How does this lesson connect to students' real-life experiences and/or possible careers?
- » How does it connect to other disciplines?

KNOWLEDGE OF STUDENTS

(Standard 1: Students)

- » What should the evaluator know about the student population? (See Data Measures Inventory for the Classroom)
- » How is this a developmentally appropriate learning activity?

LESSON DELIVERY

(Standard 2: Content/Standard 4: Instruction)

- » How will the goals for learning be communicated to students?
- » What instructional strategies and methods will be used to engage students and promote independent learning and problem solving?
- » What strategies will be used to make sure all students achieve lesson goals?
- » How will content-specific concepts, assumptions and skills be taught?

DIFFERENTIATION

(Standard 1: Students/Standard 4: Instruction)

- » How will the instructional strategies address all students' learning needs?
- » How will the lesson engage and challenge students of all levels?
- » How will developmental gaps be addressed?

RESOURCES

(Standard 2: Content/Standard 4: Instruction)

- » What resources/materials will be used in instruction?
- » How will technology be integrated into lesson delivery?

CLASSROOM ENVIRONMENT

(Standard 1: Students/Standard 5: Learning Environment)

- » How will the environment support all students?
- » How will different grouping strategies be used?
- » How will safety in the classroom be ensured?
- » How will respect for all be modeled and taught?

ASSESSMENT OF STUDENT LEARNING

(Standard 3: Assessment)

- » How will you check for understanding during the lesson?
- » What specific products or demonstrations will assess student learning/achievement of goals for instruction?
- » How will you ensure that students understand how they are doing and support students' self-assessment?
- » How will you use assessment data to inform your next steps?

PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES: COLLABORATION AND COMMUNICATION

(Standard 6)

- » How do you cooperate with colleagues?
- » How do you work with others when there is a problem?
- » What is your communication style with students? With families? With colleagues?
- » In what ways do you seek the perspectives of others? Give an example.

PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES: PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND GROWTH

(Standard 7)

- » How do you apply knowledge gained from other experiences into your teaching?
- » Discuss ways you reflect and analyze your teaching.
- » What are some proactive ways you further your own professional growth?

Post-Conference Sample Questions

The questio s provided are intended to guide thinking and conversation; every question may not be answered or relevant for every observation.

FOCUS FOR LEARNING

(Standard 4: Instruction)

- » What was the focus for the lesson?
- » Talk about the content that you hoped students would know and understand by the end of the lesson. What skills did they demonstrate to you?
- » What standards were addressed in the planned instruction?
- » Why was this learning important?
- » How was the appropriateness of the goal communicated to students?
- » How did your stated goals fit into the unit, course and school goals?

ASSESSMENT DATA

(Standard 3: Assessment)

- » What assessment data was examined to inform the planning for the observed lesson?
- » What did pre-assessment data indicate about student learning needs?
- » What formal or informal techniques did you use to collect evidence of students' knowledge and skills?
- » How did your assessment data help you identify student strengths and areas of improvement?

PRIOR CONTENT KNOWLEDGE/ SEQUENCE/CONNECTIONS

(Standard 1: Students/Standard 2: Content/ Standard 4: Instruction)

- » What prior knowledge did students need and how did you connect that to their future learning?
- » How did this lesson connect to students' real-life experiences and/or possible careers?
- » How did it connect to other disciplines?

KNOWLEDGE OF STUDENTS

(Standard 1: Students)

- » How did this lesson demonstrate your familiarity with the students' background knowledge and experiences?
- » Talk about how this lesson was developmentally appropriate for your students.
- » What strategies did you plan for and implement to meet the needs of individual students?

LESSON DELIVERY

(Standard 2: Content/Standard 4: Instruction)

- » How were the goals for learning communicated to students?
- » What instructional strategies and methods were used to engage students and promote independent learning and problem solving?
- » What strategies were used to make sure all students achieve lesson goals?
- » How were content-specific concepts, assumptions and skills taught?
- » What questioning techniques did you use to support student learning?
- » How did you ensure this lesson was student led?

DIFFERENTIATION

(Standard 1: Students/Standard 4: Instruction)

- » How did the instructional strategies address all students' learning needs?
- » How did the lesson engage and challenge students of all levels?
- » How were developmental gaps addressed?
- » Why is it important to provide varied options for student mastery?

RESOURCES

(Standard 2: Content/Standard 4: Instruction)

- » What resources/materials were used in instruction?
- » How was technology integrated into lesson delivery?
- » How did students show ownership of their learning?

CLASSROOM ENVIRONMENT

(Standard 1: Students/Standard 5: Learning Environment)

- » How did the environment support all students?
- » How were different grouping strategies used?
- » How was safety in the classroom ensured?
- » How was respect for all modeled and taught?

ASSESSMENT OF STUDENT LEARNING

(Standard 3: Assessment)

- » How did you check for understanding during the lesson?
- » What specific products or demonstrations assessed student learning/achievement of goals for instruction?
- » How did you ensure that students understand how they are doing and support students' self-assessment?
- » How did you use assessment data to inform your next steps?
- » Why is it important to provide specific and timely feedback?

PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES: COLLABORATION AND COMMUNICATION

(Standard 6)

- » How do you cooperate with colleagues?
- » How do you work with others when there is a problem?
- » What is your communication style with students? With families? With colleagues?
- » In what ways do you seek the perspectives of others? Give an example.

PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES: PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND GROWTH

(Standard 7)

- » How do you apply knowledge gained from other experiences into your teaching?
- » Discuss ways you reflect and analyze your teaching.
- » What are some proactive ways you further your own professional growth?

STANDARDS-BASED SCHOOL COUNSELOR EVALUATION

The Board of Education is responsible for a standards-based school counselor evaluation policy which conforms to the framework for the evaluation of school counselors as approved by the State Board of Education and aligns with the "Standards for School Counselors" as set forth in State law.

The Board of Education adopts the Ohio School Counselor Evaluation System (OSCES) as approved by the State Board of Education.

The Board believes school counselors play a critical role in supporting student learning and success and maintaining a positive school environment. The standards based system of school counselor evaluations is designed to provide meaningful and consistent feedback to support counselor professional growth and inform employment decisions.

This policy shall be implemented as set forth herein and shall be included in the collective bargaining agreement with the MCVCEA, and in all extensions and renewals thereof.

This policy has been developed in consultation with school counselors.

The Board authorizes the Superintendent to establish and maintain an ongoing union, with continuing participation by the union representatives for the express purpose of recommending necessary changes to the Board for the appropriate revision of the policy.

Staff Evaluation Committee

Given the dynamic nature of the state mandated evaluation systems for teachers and counselors, the Board authorizes the Superintend to utilize the Staff Evaluation Committee set forth in the collective bargaining agreement with the MCCCEA for the express purpose of recommending necessary changes to the Board for the appropriate revision of this policy.

Definitions

"OSCES" - Stands for the Ohio School Counselor Evaluation System as adopted by the Ohio State Board of Education, or as otherwise modified by the State Board of Education.

"School Counselor" – For purposes of this policy, "school counselor" means an employee who holds a license issued pursuant to O.A.C. 3301-24-05 by the Ohio Department of Education in the area of school counseling and who is assigned to a position in that capacity.

Teachers and other employees who do not meet this definition are not subject to evaluation under this policy. Full time bargaining unit members who do not meet the definition will be evaluated in accordance with Board policy and/or utilizing the evaluation procedures of the collective bargaining agreement in effect between the Board and the union representatives.

The Board will not evaluate a counselor who was on leave from the District for 50% or more of the school year and/or submitted notice of retirement that was accepted by the Board no later than December 1st of the year the

counselor was scheduled to be evaluated. To be exempted by virtue of retirement, a counselor must notify the Board in writing on or before November 15th.

"Credentialed Evaluator"- For purposes of this policy, each counselor subject to evaluation will be evaluated by a person who:

- a. Meets the eligibility requirements under R.C. §3319.113 and the state framework; and
- b. Holds a credential established by the Ohio Department of Education for counselor evaluation; and
- c. Has completed the state-sponsored evaluation training
- d. Is employed by the Board as an administrator.

The Board shall authorize the Superintendent/designee to approve and maintain a list of credentialed evaluators as necessary to effectively implement this policy.

"Evaluation Cycle" – is the period of time for the completion of the evaluation procedure. The evaluation cycle is completed when selected student metrics are combined with the counselor performance ratings resulting from performance assessments on the standards that are conducted for the current school year to assign a summative evaluation rating.

"Evaluation Factors" – refers to the multiple measures that are required by law to be used in the school counselor evaluation procedures, including performance on all six (6) areas identified by the standards and the ability to produce positive outcomes using student metrics selected by the Board. School counselors will receive a score in each of the six standards and the student metrics, which shall be weighted equally (1/7 of the final summative score).

"Evaluation Framework" – means the standards-based framework adopted by the State Board of Education for the evaluation of school counselors in accordance with R.C. 3319.113.

"Evaluation Instruments" – refers to the forms used by the school counselor's evaluator as developed locally. Those forms are located in the Appendix to this policy.

"Evaluation Procedure" – the procedural requirements set forth in this policy are intended to provide specificity to the statutory obligations established under R.C. 3319.113 and to conform to the framework for the evaluation of school counselors developed under R.C. 3319.113.

"Evaluation Rating" – means the final summative evaluation level that is assigned to a school counselor pursuant to terms of this policy. The evaluation rating is assigned at the conclusion of the evaluation cycle when the school counselor performance rating is combined with the results of student metrics. Each completed evaluation will result in the assignment of one (1) of the following evaluation ratings to Accomplished, Skilled, Developing, or Ineffective.

"**High Performing School Counselor**" - is a school counselor who earns a summative rating of "Accomplished" or "Skilled" on his/her most recent evaluations.

"School Counselor Performance" – is the assessment of a school counselor's performance on each of the six State-adopted standards, resulting in a performance rating. As an evaluation factor, the school counselor performance dimension is based on direct observations of a counselor's practice by a credentialed evaluator.

Performance results are reported as a performance rating that may be coded as "1" indicating lowest performance to "4" indicating highest performance.

"Student Metrics" - the locally determined measure(s) that assess a school counselor's ability to produce positive student outcomes.

Standards-Based School Counselor Evaluation

School Counselor evaluations will utilize multiple factors, with the intent of providing meaningful feedback to each school counselor and assigning an effectiveness rating based upon school counselor performance and the counselor's assessment on selected student metrics.

- A. Accomplished;
- B. Skilled;
- C. Developing; or
- D. Ineffective.

The specific standards and criteria for distinguishing between these ratings/levels of performance shall be the same as those developed by the State Board of Education, which are incorporated herein by reference.

The Superintendent shall annually cause to be filed a report to the Ohio Department of Education (ODE) in accordance with requirements mandated by ODE. The Board will utilize the ODE's guidelines for reporting this information.

Assessment of School Counselor Performance

School Counselor performance will be evaluated during formal observations and periodic informal observations. Such performance will be assessed through a holistic process by trained and credentialed evaluators based upon the following *Ohio Standards for School Counselors:*

- A. Comprehensive School Counseling Program Plan;
- B. Direct Services for Academic, Career and Social/Emotional Development;
- C. Indirect Services: Partnerships and Referrals;
- D. Evaluation and Data;
- E. Leadership and Advocacy; and
- F. Professional Responsibility, Knowledge and Growth.

Orientation/Training of Teachers

Not later than September 15 of each year, or in the case of a new teacher, within thirty (30) days of the first day employed, each teacher shall be notified in writing of the name and position of his or her evaluator, and will be briefed of the District's performance expectations, evaluation procedures, criteria, and the evaluation instruments which will be used in the evaluation process.

Annual updates on the teacher evaluation framework and system will be provided bargaining unit members by the OTES Committee.

FORMAL OBSERVATION AND INFORMAL OBSERVATION (walkthrough) SEQUENCE

Schedule of Evaluation

Except as otherwise provided herein, all instructors who meet the definition of "counselor" under R.C. 3319.113 and this policy shall be evaluated based on at least two formal observations and periodic informal observations (walkthroughs) each school year. Unless mutually agreed upon with his/her evaluator, no counselor shall be evaluated more than once annually.

Counselors on a limited contract who are under consideration for renewal/nonrenewal shall receive at least three formal observations in addition to periodic classroom walkthroughs.

Counselors with four (4) years in the District and either a continuing contract and/or who have received the first renewal of a professional license and who receives a rating of "Accomplished" on his/her most recent evaluation will be evaluated once every three years (unless such counselor otherwise requests), so long as the counselor's metric of student outcomes for the most recent school year for which data is available is skilled or higher.

- A. School Counselors shall be evaluated based on at least two (2) formal observations of at least thirty (30) minutes each and informal observations each school year.
- B. A high performing school counselor with four (4) years in the District and either a continuing contract and/or who have received the first renewal of a professional license will be evaluated less frequently as follows:
 - 1. A school counselor who receives a rating of "Accomplished" on his/her most recent evaluation may be evaluated every three (3) years, as long as the counselor's metrics for student outcomes for the most recent year for which data is available, is "skilled" or higher. If the determination is made to evaluate every three (3) years, the counselor will nevertheless be provided with at least one (1) observation and conference in any year that such counselor is not formally evaluated.
 - 2. A school counselor who receives a rating of "Skilled" on his/her most recent evaluation may be evaluated every other year, as

long as the counselor's metrics for student outcomes for the most recent year for which data is available, is "skilled" or higher. If the determination is made to evaluate every other year, the counselor will nevertheless be provided with at least one (1) observation and conference in any year that such counselor is not formally evaluated.

Evaluations will be completed by May 1st and each school counselor will be provided a written report of the results of his/her evaluation by May 10th. Written notice of nonrenewal will be provided by June 1st.

Each school counselor evaluated under this policy shall annually complete a "Self-Assessment" utilizing the Self-Assessment Summary Tool approved by the Board.

Formal Observation Procedure

A minimum of one (1) formal observation shall be conducted for high performing school counselors, and a minimum of two (2) formal observations shall be conducted for all other counselors evaluated under this policy. A formal observation shall last a minimum of thirty (30) continuous minutes.

If one (1) observation is required it will be completed between September 16th and May 1st of the school year.

If two (2) observations are required, the first observation will take place by the end of the first semester. The second observation will occur during the second semester. There shall be at least two weeks between formal non-continuous observations unless otherwise agreed to by the counselor.

If three (3) observations are required, the first observation will take place in the first semester. The second and third observations will take place at least 6 weeks apart before May 1st.

The observations will not be conducted when school counselors are engaged in counseling activities with students that require confidentiality.

Counselors shall not receive a formal observation on a day before or after any break of more than three (3) days and/or after an absence due to an extended illness of more than five (5) work days.

The evaluator will not use tape recording devices, public address, or visual recording systems and similar devices for observing the work performance of a bargaining unit member.

Observation Conference

All formal observations shall be preceded by a pre-observation conference between the evaluator and the counselor within five (5) working days of the scheduled observation. At the pre-observation conference counselors shall provide evidence for the classroom situation to be observed. Discussion topics for the Pre -Conference will come from the OSCES Pre/Post Conference Question Form provided by ODE.

A post-observation conference shall be held after each formal observation. The post observation conference shall take place within five (5) working days following the formal observation. The evaluation will be emailed to the instructor no later than 24 hours prior to the meeting unless mutually agreed upon.

Informal Observation/Walkthrough Procedure

The observations will not be conducted when school counselors are engaged in counseling activities with students that require confidentiality.

An informal observation is a formative assessment process that focuses on one (1) or more of the components included in the State-adopted standards.

The walkthrough shall consist of at least 5 consecutive minutes, but not more than 10 consecutive minutes in duration.

Informal observations shall not unreasonably disrupt and/or interrupt the work day.

The counselor shall be provided access to the walkthrough template.

The counselor will receive a copy of walkthrough data within three (3) days.

Either the counselor or the evaluating administrator may schedule a meeting within 5 work days of the walkthrough to discuss any walkthrough where the evidence indicates an area of concern.

Assessment of Student Metrics

The Staff Evaluation Committee will select student metrics that will be utilized for school counselor evaluations in the areas of academics, career, and social emotional development. Any modifications to the metrics that will be used in school counselor evaluations will be adopted before the start of the school year.

Data from these approved measures of student growth will be scored on four (4) levels, with a score of "1" being the lowest and "4" being the highest.

Final Evaluation Procedures

Each school counselor's performance rating for each of the six (6) standards will be combined with the assessment of student metrics to produce the final summative.

Response to Evaluation

A copy of the summative evaluation report (See Appendix) will be given to the counselor at least 3 work days prior to the evaluation conference.

The evaluation report shall be signed by the evaluator. The evaluation report should then be signed by the counselor to verify notification to the counselor that the evaluation will be placed on file, but the counselor's signature should not be construed as evidence that the counselor agrees with the contents of the evaluation report.

The counselor shall have the right to make a written response to the evaluation and to have it attached to the evaluation report to be placed in the counselor's personnel file.

Professional Growth Plans and Professional Improvement Plans

Based upon the results of the annual evaluations conducted in accordance with this policy, each school counselor must develop either a professional growth plan or professional improvement plan as follows:

- A. School counselors with a final summative rating of "Accomplished" will develop a professional growth plan independently and submit their plan to their credentialed evaluator.
- B. School counselors with a final summative rating of "Skilled" will develop a professional growth plan collaboratively with their evaluator.
- C. Counselors with a final summative rating of "Developing" will develop a professional growth plan (See Section FB of the Appendix) with their credentialed evaluator for the evaluation cycle. The administration will assign the evaluator for the subsequent evaluation cycle and approve the professional growth plan, utilizing the components set forth in "Counselor Evaluation Form."
- D. Counselors with a final summative rating of "Ineffective" will develop a professional improvement plan with their credentialed evaluator. The administration will assign the evaluator for the subsequent evaluation cycle and approve the professional improvement plan, utilizing the components set forth in "Counselor Evaluation Form." Improvement plans for the next school year shall be developed not later than June 1st of each school year. The improvement plan shall include the following components:
 - 1. An Improvement Statement identifying specific area(s) for improvement as related to the Ohio Standards for the School Counselors;
 - 2. A desired level of performance that is expected to improve and a reasonable time period (minimum of 6 weeks) to correct deficiencies;
 - 3. A specific Plan of Action that must be taken by the counselor to improve his/her performance with sources of evidence (measurable goals) to document the completion of the improvement plan;
 - 4. A description of educational supports and/or opportunities for professional development, including a review of Board-approved and funded options, if applicable, needed to improve the identified area(s).

Professional growth and improvement plans for a school year shall be developed not later than September 15th of that school year.

In accordance with ODE guidance, a counselor may be placed on an improvement plan at any time based on noted deficiencies in any individual component of the evaluation system.

Board Professional Development Plan

The Board shall meet the requirements of ORC 3319.112(A)(8)(9) to provide professional development and sufficient financial resources to support the professional learning required by this policy (including adequate funding for growth and improvement plans) and in accordance with the Ohio State Board of Education's statewide evaluation framework. The Board's plan will be reviewed annually.

Retention and Promotion Decisions/Removal of Poorly Performing School counselors

The removal of poorly performing counselors shall be in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code and any applicable provisions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

Nothing in this policy will be deemed to prevent the Board from exercising its rights to non-renew, terminate, or suspend a counselor's contract as provided by law and the terms of the collective bargaining agreement in effect between it and the MCVCEA. The evaluation system and procedures set forth in this policy shall not create an expectation of continued employment for counselors on a limited contract that are evaluated under this policy. The Board reserves the right to non-renew a counselor evaluated under this policy in accordance with R.C. 3319.11 notwithstanding the counselor's summative rating.

R.C. 3319.02, 3319.11, 3319.111, 3319.112, 3319.22, 3319.222, 3319.226, 3319.26, 3319.58, 3333.0411 A.C. 3301-35-03(A)

NOTE: Any part of this policy that is deemed unlawful will be updated by the Staff Evaluation Committee. The Committee will notify any bargaining unit members who are evaluated under this policy of the changes that are necessary to the policy to comply with the law.

School Counselor Evaluation Rubric

The School Counselor Evaluation Rubric is intended to be scored holistically. This means the evaluator will assess which level provides the best overall description of the school counselor. The evaluator is to consider evidence gathered during the pre-observation conference, the observation, the post-observation conference, and informal observations of school counselor activities (if applicable) when completing the rubric.

Standard One: Comprehensive School Counseling Program Plan – School counselors collaboratively envision a plan for a comprehensive school counseling program that is developmental, preventative, responsive and in alignment with the school's goals and mission.

	Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished
	The school counselor cannot articulate components of a comprehensive school counseling program.	The school counselor articulates all components of a comprehensive school counseling program.	The school counselor articulates all components of a comprehensive school counseling program, reflects on future program needs and works to design a plan of implementation.	The school counselor implements all components of a comprehensive school counseling program and frequently reflects on future program development.
	The school counselor does not collaborate with key stakeholders to set the goals, priorities and implementation strategies when a comprehensive school counseling program is being designed.	The school counselor collaborates with key stakeholders on a limited basis to set goals, priorities and implementation strategies that partially align to the school's goals and mission when a comprehensive school counseling program is being designed.	The school counselor collaborates with key stakeholders to set the goals, priorities and implementation strategies that align to the school's goals and mission when a comprehensive school counseling program is being designed.	The school counselor collaborates with key stakeholders to set the goals, priorities and implementation strategies that align to the school's goals and mission when a comprehensive school counseling program is being designed and suggests enhancements and adjustments for program based on needs and results.
	The school counselor identifies no resources to implement the program.	The school counselor identifies resources needed to partially implement the program.	The school counselor identifies resources to fully implement the program.	The school counselor utilizes resources to fully implement the program from an innovative or diverse set of partners.
Evidence				

Standard Two: Direct Services for Academic, Career and Social/Emotional Development – School counselors develop a curriculum, offer individual student planning and deliver responsive services to assist students in developing and applying knowledge, skills and mindsets for academic, career and social/emotional development.

doddornio,	Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished
	The school counselor lacks knowledge of academic program and/or does not deliver counseling, activities, and/or experiences that support students' academic progress and goals.	The school counselor uses knowledge of the academic program to plan and deliver counseling, activities and/or experiences that support students' academic progress and goals.	The school counselor plans and delivers effective comprehensive counseling, activities and/or experiences to support students' academic progress and goals and makes adjustments as needed.	The school counselor plans and delivers effective comprehensive counseling, activities and/or experiences in collaboration with stakeholders to support students' academic progress and goals and makes adjustments as needed.
	The school counselor does not deliver developmentally appropriate counseling, activities, and/or experiences that build students' awareness of Ohio-specific college, career and education options and resources.	The school counselor inconsistently or ineffectively provides developmentally appropriate counseling, activities and/or experiences that build students' awareness of Ohio-specific college, career and education options and resources.	The school counselor plans and delivers effective comprehensive counseling, activities and/or experiences to support students' awareness of Ohio-specific college, career and education options and resources and makes adjustments as needed.	The school counselor plans and delivers effective comprehensive counseling, activities and/or experiences to enhance students' and parents/guardians' awareness of Ohio-specific college, career and education options and resources and makes adjustments as needed.
	The school counselor does not deliver counseling, activities and/or experiences that promote student well- being.	The school counselor attempts to deliver counseling, activities and/or experiences that promote student well- being with limited success.	The school counselor consistently delivers counseling, activities, and/or experiences that promote students' social/emotional development and well-being.	The school counselor plans and delivers effective comprehensive counseling, activities and/or experiences in collaboration with stakeholders to promote students' social-emotional development and well-being and makes adjustments as needed.
Evidence				

Standard Three: Indirect Services: Partnerships and Referrals – School counselors collaborate and consult with school personnel, parents/guardians, community partners and agencies/organizations to coordinate support for all students.

parents/gu	parents/guardians, community partners and agencies/organizations to coordinate support for all students.						
	Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished			
	The school counselor provides no information to parents/guardians and school personnel for students' academic, career and social-emotional development.	The school counselor provides relevant information upon request to parents/guardians and school personnel for students' academic, career and social-emotional development.	The school counselor provides relevant information on a regular basis through collaboration with parents/guardians and school personnel for students' academic, career and social- emotional development.	The school counselor provides relevant information on a regular basis and initiates collaboration with parents/guardians and school personnel for students' academic, career and social-emotional development.			
	The school counselor does not coordinate school and community resources to support students and promote their success.	The school counselor attempts to coordinate school and community resources to support students and promote their success, but has limited success.	The school counselor coordinates school and community resources to support students and promote their success.	The school counselor coordinates school and community resources, and positively influences the types of services the partners provide to support students and promote their success.			
	The school counselor does not make referrals on behalf of students to parents/guardians or school personnel to appropriate mentors, professionals, agencies and services.	The school counselor makes referrals and connections on behalf of students to parents/guardians or school personnel to appropriate mentors, professionals, agencies and services only upon request.	The school counselor makes referrals and connections on behalf of students to parents/guardians or school personnel to appropriate mentors, professionals, agencies and services.	The school counselor makes referrals and connections on behalf of students to parents/guardians or school personnel to appropriate mentors, professionals, agencies and services and follows up within the guidelines of confidentiality when appropriate.			
Evidence							

	tandard Four: Evaluation and Data – School counselors collaboratively engage in a cycle of continuous improvement using data to identify						
needs, plar		ams, evaluate impact and adjust acco	• •				
	Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished			
	The school counselor does not monitor student performance and progress.	The school counselor does limited monitoring of individual and group student performance and progress data to identify gaps and develops some appropriate interventions to enhance or improve student success.	The school counselor monitors individual and group student performance and progress data to identify gaps and develops appropriate interventions to enhance or improve student success.	The school counselor monitors individual and group student performance and progress data to identify gaps and develops appropriate interventions to enhance or improve student success, and fosters student self-monitoring.			
	The school counselor does not monitor effectiveness of the program.	The school counselor uses some data with minimal effectiveness to conduct program monitoring, assesses implementation and effectiveness, and makes adjustments for program improvement accordingly.	The school counselor effectively uses data to conduct program monitoring, assesses implementation and effectiveness, and makes adjustments for program improvement accordingly.	The school counselor uses comprehensive data to conduct regular program monitoring, assesses implementation and effectiveness, and collaborates with stakeholders to make adjustments for program improvement accordingly.			
Evidence							

Standard Five: Leadership and Advocacy – School Counselors lead school efforts and advocate for policies and practices that support an equitable, safe, inclusive and positive learning environment for all students.

Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished
The school counselor does not attempt to establish professional relationships within the school through communication, teamwo and collaboration.	The school counselor attempts to establish professional relationships within the school through communication, teamwork rk and collaboration with limited success.	The school counselor establishes and maintains professional relationships within and outside of the school through communication, teamwork and collaboration.	The school counselor establishes and strengthens strategic professional relationships within and outside of the school through communication, teamwork and collaboration.
The school counselor does not advocate for no responds to the needs o diverse populations.	· · ·	The school counselor effectively advocates for and responds to the needs of diverse populations, resulting in a positive impact on practices that promotes an inclusive, responsive and safe school environment for its diverse members.	The school counselor effectively advocates for practices within and outside of the school community and proactively addresses the changing needs of diverse populations resulting in a positive impact that promotes an inclusive, responsive and safe school environment for its diverse members.
The school counselor is unable to identify community, environment and institutional factors that enhance or impede development and does not advocate for equity of opportunity for all students.	institutional factors that enhance or impede development but does not	The school counselor identifies community, environmental and institutional factors that enhance or impede development and advocates for equity of opportunity for all students.	The school counselor identifies community, environmental and institutional factors that enhance or impede development and collaborates with stakeholders to advocate for programs, policies and practices that ensure equity of opportunity for all students.
The school counselor does not promote the program or the role of th school counselor in achieving the school's mission and student success.	The school counselor occasionally promotes the program and is beginning to articulate the role of the school counselor in achieving the school's mission and student success.	The school counselor effectively and consistently promotes the program and articulates the role of the school counselor in achieving the school's mission and student success.	The school counselor effectively and consistently promotes the program and articulates the role of the school counselor in achieving the school's mission and student success, and contributes to the advancement of the school counseling profession.

Evidence		

	Indard Six: Professional Responsibility, Knowledge and Growth – School Counselors adhere to the ethical standards of the profession, gage in ongoing professional learning and refine their work through reflective analysis.					
	Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished		
	The school counselor does not adhere to the American School Counselor Association and other relevant ethical standards for school counselors nor the relevant federal, state and local codes and policies.	he school counselor has limited adherence to American School Counselor Association and other relevant ethical standards for school counselors and all relevant federal, state and local codes and policies.	The school counselor adheres to American School Counselor Association and other relevant ethical standards for school counselors and all relevant federal, state and local codes and policies.	The school counselor adheres to American School Counselor Association and other relevant ethical standards for school counselors and all relevant federal, state and local codes and policies. The counselor also helps colleagues access and interpret codes and policies and understand implications.		
	The school counselor does not engage in self-reflection of practice, review data to set goals for improvement or participate in professional learning.	The school counselor engages in limited self-reflection of practice, reviews minimal data ineffectively to set goals for improvement and participates in professional learning to meet some goals, enhance skills and stay current on professional issues.	The school counselor engages in thoughtful self- reflection of practice, reviews data to set goals for improvement and participates in professional learning to meet goals, enhance skills and stay current on professional issues.	The school counselor engages in thoughtful and ongoing self-reflection of practice; consistently reviews data to set and monitor goals for improvement; and participates in professional learning to meet goals, enhance skills and stay current on professional issues, educating others on learnings when appropriate.		
	The school counselor does not attend professional meetings nor belong to organizations at the local, state or national level.	The school counselor attends professional meetings and/or belongs to organizations at the local, state or national level.	The school counselor actively participates in both professional meetings and organizations at the local, state or national levels.	The school counselor coordinates, facilitates and/or provides leadership in professional meetings and organizations at the local, state or national level.		
Evidence						

Metric(s) o	Metric(s) of Student Outcomes – School counselors demonstrate an ability to produce positive student outcomes using pre-determined metrics.					
	Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished		
	The school counselor does not collect data nor demonstrate a positive change in students' knowledge, behavior or skills.	The school counselor collects data but cannot demonstrate a positive change in students' knowledge, behavior or skills.	The school counselor clearly demonstrates a positive change in students' knowledge, behavior or skills within at least one student domain.	The school counselor clearly demonstrates a positive change in students' knowledge, behavior or skills within three student domains.		
Evidence						

Appendix I: Pre and Post Observation Questions

Pre-Observation Planning and Post-Observation Resource Questions

The following sample questions are intended to guide thinking and conversation during pre-observation and post-observation conferences. The purpose of these conferences is to promote communication, understanding and reflection on professional practices. All questions will not apply to all observations.

Pre-Observation

- What are your goals for the school counseling program?
- What do you want to accomplish for the observation?
- How will you know if you accomplish your goals for the observation?
- How will your actions support the overall plan for the school counseling program?
- What could I observe you doing on a typical day?
- What is the rationale and context for what I will observe?
- What made you choose this particular activity?
- How will you prepare for the activity?
- What prior knowledge does the participant need to have for this activity?
- How can you get immediate feedback to make sure the participants understand the most important parts of your presentation?
- Discuss ways you meet the needs of students through individual planning.
- How will you help students develop skills for personal or social success?
- What collaboration might you have with colleagues in preparation for the observation?
- What might be some strategies for collaboration with colleagues inside and outside of your department?
- What outcome are you focused on?
- How do you plan to help students develop skills for academic success, career development, personal or social success?
- What data do you plan to collect that monitor's student progress?
- How will you know that students demonstrate positive outcomes as a result of your work with them?

Post-Observation

- What do you feel was the strongest point of the observation? Why?
- To what extent do you think you accomplished your goals for the observation? How do you analyze and reflect on your work? In reflecting on this observation, what feedback would you give yourself?
- What would you do differently for the next observation in an attempt to accomplish your goals?
- How has monitoring data help improve student outcomes?
- After the observation, what will be your next steps?
- What would you most like to improve?
- What are some thoughts about providing responsive services to meet student needs?
- Discuss ways you could meet the needs of students through systems support.
- Discuss ways in which you can advocate for different groups of students?
- How can I (as your evaluator) help support your goals for the program

Professional Growth Plan

As a result of the evaluation process, teachers and evaluators should focus on accelerating and continuing teacher growth through professional development. Professional development should be individualized to the needs of the teacher, and specifically relate to his/her areas of refinement as identified in the teachers' evaluation. The evaluator should recommend professional development opportunities, and support the teacher by providing resources (e.g., time, financial).

Collaborative Teacher Evaluat	or	
<u>Annual Focus</u> These are addressed by the evaluator as appropriate for this teacher.	Date Record dates when discussed	<u>Areas for Professional Growth</u> supports needed, resources, professional development Comments during conference with teacher and evaluator are made appropriate to the needs of the teacher.
G oal 1 : Student Achievement/Outcomes for Students Goal Statement: Evidence Indicators:		
Goal 2 : Teacher Performance on the Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession Goal Statement: Evidence Indicators:		

The signatures above verify that the teacher and evaluator have discussed and agreed upon this Professional Growth Plan.

Improvement Plan

Teacher Name:		Grade Level/ Subject:	
School year:	Building:	Date of Improvement Plan Conference:	

Written improvement plans are to be developed in the circumstances when an educator makes below expected academic growth with his/ her students AND/OR receives an overall ineffective rating or an ineffective rating on any of the components of the OTES system. The purpose of the improvement plan is to identify specific deficiencies in performance and foster growth through professional development and targeted support. If corrective actions are not made within the time as specified in the improvement plan, a recommendation may be made for dismissal or to continue on the plan.

Section 1: Improvement Statement - List specific areas for improvement as related to the Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession. Attach documentation.

Performance Standard(s) Addressed in this Plan	Date(s) Improvement Area or Concern Observed	Specific Statement of the Concern: Areas of Improvement

Section 2: Desired Level of Performance - List specific measurable goals to improve performance. Indicate what will be measured for each goal.

Beginning Date Ending Date		Level of Performance	
		Specifically Describe Successful Improvement Target(s)	

Improvement Plan (continued)

Section 3: Specific Plan of Action

Describe in detail specific plans of action that must be taken by the teacher to improve his/her performance. Indicate the sources of evidence that will be used to document the completion of the improvement plan.

Sources of Evidence that Will Be Examined	-
	Sources of Evidence that Will Be Examined

Section 4: Assistance and Professional Development

Describe in detail specific supports that will be provided as well as opportunities for professional development.

Date for this Improvement Plan to Be Evaluated:

Teacher's Signature: _____ Date: _____

Evaluator's Signature: _____Date: _____

The evaluator's signature on this form verifies that the proper procedures as detailed in the local contract have been followed.

Improvement Plan: Evaluation of Plan

Teacher Name:		Grade Level/ Subject:	
School year:	Building:	Date of Evaluation:	

The improvement plan will be evaluated at the end of the time specified in the plan. Outcomes from the improvement plan demonstrate the following action to be taken;

Improvement is demonstrated and performance standards are met to a satisfactory level of performance*

The Improvement Plan should continue for time specified:

Dismissal is recommended.

Comments: Provide justification for recommendation indicated above and attach evidence to support recommended course of action.

I have reviewed this evaluation and discussed it with my evaluator. My signature indicates that I have been advised of my performance status; it does not necessarily imply that I agree with this evaluation.

Teacher's Signature: _____ Date: ____

Evaluator's Signature: ____ Date: ___

The evaluator's signature on this form verifies that the proper procedures as detailed in the local contract have been followed.

*The acceptable level of performance varies depending on the teacher's years of experience. Teachers in residency—specifically in Years 1 through 4—are expected to perform at the Developing level or above. Experienced teachers—with five or more years of experience—are expected to meet the Proficient level or above.

MEDINA COUNTY CAREER CENTER

ASSAULT LEAVE REQUEST

Name of Assaulted Teacher	Date
Date of assault	Time
Location where assault occurred	
Nature of injury	
Identity and/or description of assailant	
	necessary)
It is understood that the assaulted teach	er will cooperate with the Board of
Education in legal massaulter teach	1

Education in legal proceedings. Falsification of reports is grounds for dismissal under Section 3319.16 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Signature of Assaulted Teacher

Please attach a statement by your physician defining the nature and anticipated duration of disability.

Forms must be completed and reviewed by the Superintendent before eligibility will commence.

APPENDIX H-1

REPORT OF ADMINISTRATIVE VISIT (NON-OTES)

Teacher _____

Date _____ Length of _____ Observation _____

Comments:

Administrator _____

White Copy: Teacher

MEDINA COUNTY CAREER CENTER <u>Teacher Appraisal</u> (Non-OTES)

(one copy for Supervisor, one for Director, one for Teacher and one for Superintendent)

Teacher _____

Assignment

Observation Dates_____Conference Date _____

Comments:

Teacher's SignatureSupervisor's Signature(Signatures signify that this report has been read and discussed by both parties.)

APPENDIX I

MEDINA COUNTY CAREER CENTER

ADM. 14 Revised 6/16

REQUEST FOR ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

TO: Superintendent

DATE: _____

FROM:____

Print Name

SUBJECT: Request for ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

	I am requesting the following date(s) for ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY
	(Date)
REASON:	

Signed: _____

Employee Signature

		ACKNOWLEDGED	
	Signed:	Supervisor	
		Date	
		Approved	Denied
Superintendent			

TO BE SUBMITTED AT LEAST 5 DAYS IN ADVANCE

MEDINA COUNTY CAREER CENTER

ADDITIONAL EXTENDED DAYS AND SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICE FORM

TO:	SUPERINTENDENT		
FROM:		DATE:	
SUBJECT:	APPROVAL FOR ADDITONAL EXTENDED SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICE PAY	D DAYS OR	
PURPOSE:			
PLACE:			
ORGANIZA	TION:		
SUPERVISC	R	APPROVED	
Comments: _			
DIRECTOR _			
Comments: _			
SUPERINTE	NDENT	APPROVED	
Board of Edu	cation Action (when necessary)	APPROVED	

Appendix K

in carrier /	Alternate Ideal Plan	
Alternate Ideal Plan Benefits - NON-Grandfath		
Benefits	Network	Non-Network Facility Charges
Benefil Period	January 1 st thro	ugh December 31 st
Dependent Age Limit	26; Removal u	upon End of Month
Working Spouse Language	Applies to Medica	A & Prescription Drug
3 Month Deductible Carryover	Doe	s Apply
Pre-Existing Condition Waiting Period (does not apply to members under the age of 19)	Does Not Apply	
Blood Pint Deductible	0	pints
Lifetime Maximum	Unl	limited
Benefit Period Deductible - Single / Family1	\$150 / \$300	\$300 / \$600
Coinsurance	90%	70%
Coinsurance Out-of-Pocket Maximum (Excluding Deductible) - Single / Family	\$750/\$1,500	\$1,500 / \$3,000
Maximum Out-of-Pocket Including Deductible - Single / Family	\$900 / \$1,800	\$1,800 / \$3,600
Physician/Office Services		1 700 0 1 1 1
Office Visit (Illness/Injury) ²	\$20 copay, then 100%	70% after deductible
Specialist Office Visit ²	\$20 copay, then 100%	70% after deductible
Urgent Care Office Visit ²	\$20 copay, then 100%	70% after deductible
All Immunizations	100%	70% after deductible
Preventative Services	1004	70% -9
Preventive Services, in accordance with state and federal law ³	100%	70% after deductible
Routine Physical Exam (Age 21 and older) ²	100% (One exam pe	70% after deductible r benefit period)
Well Child Care Services (Birth to age 21) ²	100%	70% after deductible
		and Routine Hearing Exams and Immunizations)
Nell Child Care Laboratory Tests (Birth to age 21)	100%	70% after deductible
Rouline Mammogram (One per benefit period)	100%	70% after deductible
Routine Pap Test (One per benefit period)	100%	70% after deductible
Routine EKG, Chest X-ray, Complete Blood Count, Comprehensive Metabolic Panel, Urinalysis (Age 9 and over, one each per benefit period)	100%	70% after deductible
Dutpatient Services		
Surgical Services	90% after deductible	70% after deductible
Diagnostic Services	90% after deductible	70% after deductible
hysical Therapy & Occupational Therapy - Facility nd Professional	90% after deductible	70% after deductible
hiropractic Therapy - Professional Only	(Combined 40 visits	
	90% after deductible (12 visits per t	
peech Therapy - Facility and Professional	90% after deductible 70% after deductible (20 visits per benefit period)	
ardiac Rehabilitation	90% after deductible	70% after deductible
mergency use of an Emergency Room ⁴	\$50 copay, then 90%	\$50 copay, Ihen 70%
	\$100 copay, then 90%	\$100 copay, then 70%

Prepared by Group HealthCare Consultants, Inc

Medina	Alternate Ideal Plan	
Alternate Ideal Plan Benefits - NON-Grandfathere		
Benefits	Network	Non-Network Facility Charges
Inpatient Facility		
Semi-Private Room and Board	90% after deductible	70% after deductible
Malemily	90% after deductible	70% after deductible
Skilled Nursing Facility	90% after deductible 70% after deductible 120 days per benefit period)	
Organ Transplants	90% after deductible	70% after deductible
Additional Services		
Allergy Testing and Treatments	\$20 copay, then 100%	70% after deductible
Ambulance	90% after deductible	70% after deductible
Durable Medical Equipment	90% after deductible	70% after deductible
Home Healthcare	90% after deductible (120 visits per	70% after deduct/ble benefit period)
Additional Services - cont'd.		
Hospice	90% after deductible	70% after deductible
Private Duty Nursing	90% after deductible	70% after deductible
Mental Health and Substance Abuse - Federal Mental Health Parity		
Inpatient Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services	Panafile anid are based on the	wareanding medical banafis
Oulpatient Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services	Benefits paid are based on corresponding medical benefits	
Prescription Drug	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Retail Program with Oral Contraceptive Coverage	SuperMedScript ^{7,8} Retail Program filling and up to two refill \$10 Generic / \$20 Formulary Bra	s of a prescription drug
	SuperMedScript ^{7,8} Retail Program retail fill of a pre \$20 Generic / \$40 Formulary Bra	scription drug
Aall Order Program with Oral Contraceptive Coverage 90 Day Supply	SuperMed Script ^{7,8} Hor \$25 Generic / \$50 Formulary Bran	me Delivery Program nd / \$100 Non Formulary Brand

Services requiring a copayment are not subject to the single/family deductible.

Deductible expenses incurred for services by a non-network provider will also apply to the network deductible out-of-pocket limits. Deductible expenses incurred for services by a network provider will also apply to the non-network deductible and coinsurance out-ofpocket limits

Non-Contracting and Facility Other ProvIders will pay the same as Non-Network.

Benefits will be determined based on Medical Mutual's medical and administrative policies and procedures.

This document is only a partial listing of benefits. This is not a contract of insurance. No cerson other than an officer of Medical Mulual may agree, orally or in writing, to change the benefits listed here. The contract or certificate will contain the complete listing of covered services.

In certain Instances, Medical Mutual's payment may not equal the percentage listed above However, the covered person's coinsurance will always be based on the lesser of the provider's billed charges or Medical Mutual's negotiated rate with the provider.

	Medina Alternate Ideal Plan	
	Alternate Ideal Plan Be	nefits - NON-Grandfathered
Benefits	Network	Non-Network Facility Charges

'Maximum family deductible. Member deductible is the same as single deductible

²The office visit copay applies to the cost of the office visit only.

³Preventive services include evidence-based services that have a rating of "A" or "B" in the United States Preventive Services Task Force, routine immunizations and other screenings, as provided for In the Patient Protection and Atfordable Act

⁴Copay waived if admitted The copay applies to room charges only All other covered charges are not subject to deductible. ³Copay waived if admitted The copay applies to room charges only. All other covered charges are subject to deductible and consumance

coinsurance If the member requests a brand name drug and a generic equivalent drug is manufactured, the member pays the Generic Copayment plus the difference between the brand and generic costs. If a generic drug is not manufactured, the member pays the

SuperMed Script contains the following:

-Generic Incentive: If the physician requests a brand-name drug and a generic equivalent exists, the member pays the generic copayment PLUS the difference between the cost of the generic drug and the brand-name drug.

-Home Delivery Incentive: When a member chooses to fill a prescription a fourth time at a relail pharmacy within 180 days, the member will pay twice the normal relail copayment.

⁸Coverage includes Preventive Medications, in accordance with Federal Law. Rx Selections and Coverage Management

Medina County Career Center <u>REQUEST FOR PAYMENT OF</u> <u>COMPETITION/EVENT/OVERNIGHT COMPENSATION</u>

Competition/Event/Overnight compensation days are to be used to accompany students that are participating in a regional, state, national and/or international contest or other District-approved events (i.e., leadership conferences, etc.).

DATE: _____

REQUESTED BY: _____

I hereby certify that I have completed _____ competition/event/overnight compensation day(s) and therefore request reimbursement for same. Please refer to Article VIII, Section 8.014 for specific rules regarding Competition/Event/Overnight Compensation Requests and payment.

SIGNATURE OF EMPLOYEE: ______

Date of	School Day	Non-School	Day
Competitio	n (\$150)	(\$200)	Activity

Additional pages may be attached, if necessary. Please provide enough details to allow the Treasurer to justify your activities.

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: Verified by Supervisor:	Date:		
Principal:	Date:		
<u>COMPETITION/EVENT/OVERNIGHT COMPENSATION REQUEST FORMS ARE DUE WITHIN 30 DAYS</u> <u>OF THE COMPETITION/EVENT/OVERNIGHT</u>			